TABLE OF CONTENTS

Univ	ersity General Information	2
	Creighton Colleges and Schools	. 2
	Mission, Learning Outcomes, and Goals and Objectives	. 4
	Accreditations and Approvals	. 5
	University Libraries	6
	Campus Facilities	6
	Recognition of Scholarship and Leadership	. 6
	The Alumni Association	7
	Nondiscrimination Statement	. 7
	Diversity and Inclusion Policy	. 7
	Services for Students with Disabilities	. 7
	Email as Official Means of Communication	. 8
	Graduation Rates	. 8
	Degree Policies	8
	Joint and Dual Degree Definitions	. 8
	The Jesuit Order	8
	American Jesuit Colleges and Universities	. 8
Univ	ersity Administration	10
Med	icine	14
;	School of Medicine	14
	Admission	14
	Application Process	15
	Requirements for Admission	15
	Academic Calendar	16
	The M.D. Curriculum	17
	Academic Policies	54
	Immunization Requirement	54
	Dual Degree Programs	55
	MD/PhD	55
	MD/MBA	56
	PostBaccalaureate Program (PBP)	56
Indo	v	50

UNIVERSITY GENERAL INFORMATION

About Creighton

There is no university in the country like Creighton University in terms of size, the array of professional and graduate programs offered, and the strong commitment to Catholic and Jesuit ideals and values. Founded in 1878 and one of 27 Jesuit colleges and universities in the United States, Creighton is a vibrant and diverse learning community that offers its students more than an education.

Nationally recognized for providing a challenging and balanced educational experience, the University offers a rigorous academic agenda with a broad range of disciplines, providing more than 8,000 undergraduate, graduate and professional students with degree programs that emphasize education of the whole person—academically, socially and spiritually. The student body represents all 50 states and U.S. territories, as well as more than 40 countries.

Creighton offers 140 academic programs in nine colleges and schools (arts and sciences, business, nursing, law, dental, medicine, pharmacy, OT, PT and other health professions, graduate school, and adult learning and degree completion). Creighton study abroad programs take students to dozens of locations around the world annually.

Creighton University made its inaugural appearance in the prestigious National Universities category of U.S. News & World Report's 2020 list of "Best Colleges." Out of approximately 1,900 four-year colleges and universities nationwide ranked by U.S. News, universities in the National Universities category are recognized for offering a full range of undergraduate majors, plus master's and doctoral programs, as well as for producing groundbreaking research. A top-ranking National University classification marks an elevation in Creighton's reputation. For 16 years in a row, Creighton had been recognized as No. 1 in the Midwest category. View more details.

Location

Omaha, with a metropolitan area population of nearly 1 million, is Nebraska's largest city. It is located on the western bank of the Missouri River, which serves as the Nebraska-lowa border, and is home to four Fortune 500 companies and five Fortune 1,000 companies. The city is the major urban area between Chicago and Denver and between Kansas City and Minneapolis. Creighton's 120-acre campus is within walking distance of downtown and riverfront business, sports/recreational, cultural and entertainment districts. Creighton also is conveniently located close to hotels and the airport.

Omaha is on a number of "best" lists, as reported by the Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce, including: No. 1, Best Cities for College Grads (*ZipRecruiter, 2018*); No. 1, Beyond Silicon Valley. 5 Up-and-Coming Tech Hotspots (*Livability, 2018*); and No. 5, 10 U.S. Cities Where Employees are the Happiest (*Fortune, 2019*); among others.

In addition to the main campus in Omaha and online education accessible from anywhere in the world, Creighton has a College of Nursing campus in Hastings, Nebraska, and a health sciences campus in Phoenix, Arizona.

History

Edward and Mary Lucretia Creighton, along with Edward's brother John, settled in Omaha in the mid-1850s. John married Mary Lucretia's sister Sarah Emily Wareham in 1868 and the four are considered the founders of Creighton University. Edward's work with the transcontinental telegraph and freighting, ranching, railroading and banking became a major force in the city's economic development. The two brothers were widely known for their business enterprises and the two couples were equally widely regarded for their philanthropy.

Edward died in 1874 and his widow included \$100,000 in her will to establish Creighton College in her husband's memory. Mary Lucretia died in 1876 and her executors, who included her brother-in-law John, purchased 6.2 acres of land at the northwest corner of what is currently 24th and California streets. They began to build a school and transferred the land, building and additional securities to Bishop James O'Connor of Omaha.

The bishop asked the Jesuits to operate the school and the first president arrived in Omaha in late 1877; the school opened on Sept. 2, 1878, to 120 students. Bishop O'Connor in 1879 surrendered his trust to the Jesuits, who incorporated the University under Nebraska law.

Edward and Mary Lucretia's generosity is credited with establishing Creighton College, while John and Sarah Emily's philanthropy enlarged it to a five-school university. Today, Creighton University consists of the main campus in Omaha, a health sciences campus in Phoenix, a satellite nursing campus in Hastings, Nebraska, online and partnership educational programs, and nine schools and colleges:

- · College of Arts and Sciences (1878)
- · School of Medicine (1892)
- · School of Law (1904)
- School of Dentistry (1905)
- · School of Pharmacy and Health Professions (1905)
- · Heider College of Business (1920)
- College of Nursing (four-year bachelor's degree program began in 1958; college established in 1971)
- College of Professional Studies (established as University College in 1983)

Creighton Colleges and Schools College of Arts and Sciences (https://ccas.creighton.edu)

The College of Arts and Sciences is the oldest and largest of Creighton's nine colleges and schools. The college offers more than 60 majors and minors; an 11:1 faculty-to-student ratio; and research opportunities for undergraduates in all disciplines. Creighton encourages student involvement in research through the Center for Undergraduate Research and Scholarship (CURAS); almost 400 undergraduate students present research at national and regional scholarly conferences annually. These efforts and others have resulted in Creighton being named among only 90 universities in the nation for undergraduate research opportunities by U.S. News & World Report. Excellence in research is one reason Creighton has produced 20 Goldwater Scholars in the last 14 years, ranking first among Catholic universities for success in this prestigious undergraduate scientific research scholarship.

More than half of the college's students attend graduate or professional school upon graduation, including at such institutions as Harvard, Stanford, Oxford and Cambridge universities. The College of Arts and Sciences hosts a chapter of Phi Beta Kappa, the nation's oldest and most prestigious honor society for liberal arts and sciences graduates. Interdisciplinary programs include such areas as neuroscience, healthy lifestyle management, sustainability studies, digital humanities, health administration, justice and peace studies, and more. The Department of Journalism, Media and Computing prepares students for success in today's technology-driven world by melding programs in journalism, graphic design and computing.

Heider College of Business (https://business.creighton.edu)

Established in 1920, the Heider College of Business is Creighton's first named college, in recognition of philanthropists Charles (BSC'49) and Mary Heider. It is among only 2 percent of schools in the world accredited in both business and accounting by the Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business International. The faculty includes more chartered financial analysts than any other higher education institution in the world.

For 2019, Heider College was ranked a Top 100 business program by *U.S. News & World* Report; undergraduate finance ranked 17th; undergraduate accounting ranked 15th; graduate finance ranked 15th; and graduate accounting ranked 25th. The college reports 99 percent of recent graduates were employed or in graduate school within six months of graduation, and accounting majors have had a 100 percent placement rate for the past 10 years.

Students receive real-world experience, including investing University funds through the Portfolio Practicum class; planning the Creighton Business Symposium, the largest U.S. student-planned business event; and working with the Business Ethics Alliance, the leading nonprofit dedicated to city-level business ethics programming. Programs offering interdisciplinary opportunities include 3/3 Law (business and law degrees attained in six years); Pre-Healthcare (combines a business degree with completion of requirements for health care professional programs); and the MD/MBA (students complete an MBA during the third year of medical school).

College of Nursing (https://nursing.creighton.edu)

Creighton University's College of Nursing has achieved a national reputation for innovative curricula and programs that keep pace with the ever-changing field of nursing. Creighton's accelerated BSN degree program was one of the first in the nation. Creighton was the first nursing program in Nebraska to offer a Doctor of Nursing practice (DNP) degree and preparation for one of the newest nursing roles, the clinical nurse leader (CNL). Creighton nursing faculty are nationally and internationally known for both clinical research and the scholarship of teaching and learning.

Education is delivered at three campuses, in Omaha and Hastings, Nebraska, and Phoenix, and is supplemented by select online courses and tracks. In addition to BSN, MSN and DNP degrees, the College of Nursing offers post-graduate certificates in a number of areas, including adult-gerontology acute care nurse practitioner, family nurse practitioner, neonatal nurse practitioner, pediatric acute care nurse practitioner, psychiatric mental health nurse practitioner and clinical nurse leader.

Creighton BSN graduates meet or exceed the national average for first-time pass rates on the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX-RN). In addition, annual pass rates on the certification examination for nurse practitioner-track graduates generally range from 90 to 100 percent for first-time test-takers.

College of Professional Studies (https://adultdegrees.creighton.edu)

For over 35 years, Creighton University's College of Professional Studies has been helping adult students fulfill their dreams of completing their college degrees. The College of Professional Studies provides on-campus and online undergraduate degrees, certificates and noncredit programs. Through bachelor's degree programs in leadership, Emergency Medical Services and Healthy Lifestyle Management, students develop the skills needed to enhance their careers or change course in their professional lives. In 2019, Creighton's online bachelor's degree programs were ranked No. 33 nationally by *U.S. News & World Report*.

Transferring into the College of Professional Studies puts students on the fast track to reaching their goals. The college generously accepts up to 80 hours of transfer credits. Students are assisted in creating a Prior Learning Passport, which can allow them to earn credits based on their professional certifications and licenses, military service and standardized national exam results.

Graduate School (https://gradschool.creighton.edu)

Since 1926, Creighton University's Graduate School has been teaching students to have the wisdom, judgment and faith to work for a more just society. Currently, more than 1,500 students are developing their skills and unleashing their potential through 45+ master's and doctoral degree programs in fields such as business, health care, leadership, conflict resolution, education, ministry, science and more. Over two-thirds of students are enrolled in an online program, allowing them to work toward a graduate degree wherever and whenever it's convenient for them.

Students come from across the country and around the world to earn their degree from Creighton University. For example, 45 states and 10 countries are represented in the online Doctoral Program in Interdisciplinary Leadership (EdD).

In addition to master's and doctoral degree programs, the Graduate School also offers 22 graduate certificates and over 25 dual degree options. No matter students' passions or interests, they find a graduate program at Creighton to help them reach their goals.

School of Dentistry (https://dentistry.creighton.edu)

The School of Dentistry, which opened in a new technology-rich education and clinic building in 2018, has a reputation for excellence; faculty members serve in leadership and advisory roles with local, regional and national organizations. Graduates become general dentists or pursue residency programs, advanced degrees and specialty training in nearly all 50 states; 20 to 25 percent of Creighton dental graduates achieve post-doctoral training. Creighton is considered to have one of the most affordable private dental schools in the United States.

Hands-on clinical experience as well as community service are hallmarks of a Creighton dental education: the dental clinic serves more than 12,000 patients annually; students and faculty volunteer through OneWorld

Community Health Center, "Give Kids a Smile," Heart Ministry Clinic, Special Olympics, outreach in the Dominican Republic, and more. Creighton's Healthy Smiles program provided preventive dental services for approximately 2,500 elementary school children last year.

Forty-one percent of Creighton dental students come from states without dental schools; Creighton has contracts with Idaho and Wyoming and offers Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education (WICHE) seats for dental students from New Mexico and North Dakota. Creighton is a dental pipeline school for Native American students interested in dentistry

School of Law (https://law.creighton.edu)

The School of Law was established in 1904. Today, the 296 students in the School of Law are taught by 28 full-time professors and 45 adjunct faculty members who are prosecutors, public defenders and other practicing attorneys. Last year's graduates accepted offers of employment in 16 states.

Creighton law students have the flexibility to earn a JD degree in two, three or four years. Other programs include earning a JD plus a master's degree in negotiation and dispute resolution in three years; the Government and Leadership (GOAL) Program, which provides a JD and a master's degree in three years, including an externship in Washington, D.C.; and the joint JD/MBA with the Heider College of Business.

Innovative educational experiences include a constitutional law seminar offered every other year allowing face-to-face discussion with a U.S. Supreme Court justice; the summer program, "From Nuremberg to the Hague," featuring the study of international criminal law, war crimes and the Holocaust in Germany and The Netherlands; and an annual immersion trip to the Dominican Republic that encourages law students to reflect on life, law and poverty in a less-developed nation.

The School of Law assists students interested in public-interest law by offering summer grants to first- and second-year students for otherwise unpaid externships with government and nonprofit law offices. Students also gain experience through the Abrahams Legal Clinic, which gives free legal services to low-income individuals, especially victims of domestic violence, and the Immigration and Refugee Clinic, which assists clients in cooperation with the nonprofit Immigration Legal Center, an affiliate of the Justice for Our Neighbors network.

School of Medicine (https://medschool.creighton.edu)

The School of Medicine was established in 1892 as the John A. Creighton Medical College. The medical school's primary Omaha clinical partner, CHI Health, has 15 hospitals throughout Nebraska and Western Iowa, including the two campuses in Omaha for CHI Health Creighton University Medical Center. In 2018, Creighton announced it is constructing a health sciences campus in Phoenix – expanding existing relationships, providing new opportunities for students, and meeting a critical need for health care professionals in the Southwest.

Creighton graduates' medical licensing scores and pass rates consistently exceed the national average and 96 percent of 2019 graduates matched with their specialty of choice. One hundred percent of Creighton medical students perform community service while in medical school. Creighton was the first Catholic university to receive the prestigious Community Service Award from the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC); the award recognized the student-founded

and student-run Magis Medical Clinic, which provides free health care for uninsured and underinsured people in Omaha.

Faculty members and their research are world-renowned. The medical school is an international leader in hereditary cancer and osteoporosis, with other outstanding programs including infectious disease, cardiovascular disease, nutrition/metabolism and neuroscience. A landmark study conducted at Creighton suggested that boosting vitamin D3 intake can significantly reduce the risk of breast and other cancers. Researchers in biomedical sciences, medical microbiology/immunology and pharmacology are making discoveries in atherosclerosis, bacterial resistance, cancer, hearing restoration, brain injury, bone growth/bone loss and more

School of Pharmacy and Health Professions (https://spahp.creighton.edu)

Established in 1905 as the Creighton College of Pharmacy, the School of Pharmacy and Health Professions (SPAHP) expanded over the years to include other health professions. The school is an academic pioneer, offering the first entry-level occupational therapy (OTD) and physical therapy (DPT) doctorates in the nation; the first accredited online pharmacy program in the nation; the first post-baccalaureate Doctor of Occupational Therapy program in the country; and more than 40 years of emergency medical services (EMS) education. SPAHP also has innovative partnerships with the University of Alaska Anchorage (OTD and PharmD) and Regis University in Denver (OTD).

SPAHP faculty are renowned: the school has one of the largest OT faculties in the nation, with more than 20 faculty members holding terminal degrees. For more than 25 years, faculty members in the Center for Drug Information and Evidence-Based Practice have provided evidence-based, timely and unbiased information to health care professionals (fewer than 15 percent of pharmacy schools in the U.S. offer as much drug information expertise to the professional community), and the Center for Health Services Research and Patient Safety is recognized nationally for its work in patient safety, research and education.

First-time national licensure pass rates in pharmacy, OT and PT have been nearly 100 percent the past several years, and more than 80 percent of the school's students receive one to three job offers before they graduate. They have access to an expanse of clinical training sites in every health care discipline, including pediatrics, geriatrics, mental health, acute and long-term care and more. Service to others is a hallmark of the school, with students giving more than 8,500 hours of community service last year.

Mission, Learning Outcomes, and Goals and Objectives

Mission Statement

Creighton is a Catholic and Jesuit comprehensive university committed to excellence in its selected undergraduate, graduate and professional programs.

As **Catholic**, Creighton is dedicated to the pursuit of truth in all its forms and is guided by the living tradition of the Catholic Church.

As **Jesuit**, Creighton participates in the tradition of the Society of Jesus, which provides an integrating vision of the world that arises out of a knowledge and love of Jesus Christ.

As **comprehensive**, Creighton's education embraces several colleges and professional schools and is directed to the intellectual, social, spiritual, physical and recreational aspects of students' lives and to the promotion of justice.

Creighton exists for students and learning. Members of the Creighton community are challenged to reflect on transcendent values, including their relationship with God, in an atmosphere of freedom of inquiry, belief and religious worship. Service to others, the importance of family life, the inalienable worth of each individual, and appreciation of ethnic and cultural diversity are core values of Creighton.

Creighton faculty members conduct research to enhance teaching, to contribute to the betterment of society, and to discover new knowledge. Faculty and staff stimulate critical and creative thinking and provide ethical perspectives for dealing with an increasingly complex world.

University Assessment of Learning Outcomes

The University Assessment Committee has articulated six university-level outcomes that are common to all undergraduate, graduate, and professional student experience.

All Creighton graduates will demonstrate:

- 1. disciplinary competence and/or professional proficiency,
- 2. critical thinking skills,
- Ignatian values, to include but not limited to a commitment to an exploration of faith and the promotion of justice,
- 4. the ability to communicate clearly and effectively,
- 5. deliberative reflection for personal and professional formation,
- the ability to work effectively across race, ethnicity, culture, gender, religion and sexual orientation.

Each program defines its learning goals/graduate outcomes, and these outcomes should be in alignment with each College/School's goals as well as the broader university-wide goals. A variety of outcome measures are used within each of the programs to provide evidence of student learning, and to assess how well the learning goals/graduate outcomes are being met.

Goals and Objectives

Creighton University exists to educate her students with a view to their intellectual expansion, social adequacy, physical development, aesthetic appreciation, and spiritual enrichment. Creighton serves her publics primarily through teaching and research. Employing the techniques of teaching and research offers numerous opportunities to provide community service and leadership.

Creighton has behind it a pattern of more than four centuries of Jesuit teaching. The Order's focus has always been on the total person, an approach that includes development of each student's talents to assure that he or she can meet both material and spiritual needs.

Members of every denomination are enrolled in and welcome to all courses in the University. While Creighton fosters learning in a Christian-oriented setting and challenges students to reflect on transcendental

truths, students are not required to participate in religious services or activities.

All educational programs of Creighton University are open to both men and women.

The University Assessment Plan has been established to help measure the success of Creighton's academic programs. Each college and school has in place its own appropriate plan to determine student achievement in its programs and to implement changes for continuous improvement in Creighton's assessment plans, and students participate with faculty and administration in striving for improvements in the teaching-learning process. In addition, the University Plan embraces Student Life, and the special areas of cultural diversity and service to others, values which are emphasized in Creighton's Mission Statement.

Accreditations and Approvals

Creighton University is fully accredited by The Higher Learning Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools, the accrediting agency for the region in which the University is situated.

Higher Learning Commission 230 South LaSalle Street, Suite 7-500, Chicago, Illinois 60604-1411 Phone: 800.621.7440 / 312.263.0456 | Fax: 312.263.7462 | info@hlcommission.org

The Heider College of Business is an accredited member of the Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business-AACSB (https://www.aacsb.edu/accreditation) International (graduate and undergraduate programs). The accounting program has been accredited (Type A - baccalaureate) by the Accounting Accreditation Committee of the Association.

The Creighton University EMS Education Program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP (https://www.caahep.org)) upon the recommendation of the Committee on Accreditation of Education Programs for the Emergency Medical Services Professions. The program also is approved by the State of Nebraska.

The Baccalaureate degree in Nursing, Master's degree in Nursing, Doctor of Nursing Practice, and post-graduate APRN certificate at Creighton University is accredited by the Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (www.aacnnursing.org (https://www.aacnnursing.org)).

The Department of Social Work is an accredited Council on Social Work Education (CSWE (https://www.cswe.org/Accreditation.aspx)) program preparing professional undergraduate social workers.

The teacher education programs of Creighton University are fully accredited by the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education (NCATE (http://www.ncate.org/accreditation/about-accreditation/what-is-accreditation)) for the preparation of elementary, secondary, and special education teachers at the undergraduate level, and for the graduate-level preparation of teachers, school principals and school counselors.

The program in predoctoral dental education is accredited by the Commission on Dental Accreditation. The Commission is a specialized accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education. The Commission on Dental Accreditation can be contacted at (312) 440-4653 or at 211 East Chicago Avenue, Chicago, IL 60611-2678.

The Commission's web address is: ada.org/en/coda (https://www.ada.org/en/coda).

The Creighton University School of Law is fully accredited by the American Bar Association Section (ABA (https://www.americanbar.org/groups/legal_education)) of Legal Education and Admissions to the Bar. The School of Law is also a member of the Association of American Law Schools (https://www.aals.org).

The School of Medicine is fully accredited by the Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME (http://lcme.org)), representing the Association of American Medical Colleges and the Council on Medical Education of the American Medical Association. The Department of Education recognizes the LCME for the accreditation of programs of medical education leading to the M.D. degree in institutions that are themselves accredited by regional accrediting associations. Institutional accreditation assures that medical education takes place in a sufficiently rich environment to foster broad academic purposes. The School of Medicine is also an institutional member of the Association of American Medical Colleges.

The School of Medicine is also accredited by The Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME (https://www.acgme.org)) for the training of medical residents.

The School of Pharmacy and Health Professions programs are accredited as follows:

The Pharmacy program, accredited by the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE (https://www.acpe-accredit.org)), is a member of the American Association of Colleges of Pharmacy.

The program in Occupational Therapy is accredited by the Accreditation Council for Occupational Therapy Education (ACOTE (https://www.aota.org/education-careers/accreditation.aspx)) of the American Occupational Therapy Association Inc.

The program in Physical Therapy is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation in Physical Therapy Education (CAPTE (http://www.capteonline.org/home.aspx)).

The University is also approved by and/or a member of the following: American Council on Education, Association of American Colleges and Universities, Association of Catholic Colleges and Universities, Association of Independent Colleges and Universities of Nebraska, Association of Jesuit Colleges and Universities, Council for the Advancement and Support of Education, Council for Higher Education Accreditation, National Association of Independent Colleges and Universities, Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs, Council for Opportunity in Education, American Association of Colleges for Teacher Education, American Association of University Professors, American Association of University Women, Association of Schools of Journalism and Mass Communication, Association of Independent Liberal Arts Colleges for Teacher Education, Council of Graduate Schools in the United States, Council on Social Work Education, International Association of Catholic Universities, Midwest Association of Graduate Schools, National Association of Educational Broadcasters, National Association for Foreign Student Affairs, National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education, Nebraska Council on Teacher Education, and Nebraska State Board of Educational Examiners.

Creighton University is authorized to provide online education (https://online.creighton.edu). See creighton.edu/state_authorization for current listing.

University Libraries

Library

The Creighton University Libraries, (Health Sciences, Law, and Reinert-Alumni) share a commitment to providing outstanding resources, expertise, and facilities to all our undergraduate, graduate and professional programs whether online or on campus. All three libraries have developed unique collections, services, and resources that are designed to maximize students' personal and educational experiences while at Creighton and beyond. Each library has an array of expert information professionals who provide research, database, and library related technology support to students, including distance learners. Learning spaces in the University Libraries offer a variety of furnishings and technology for individual and collaborative study. Go to www.creighton.edu/libraries to explore any of the Creighton University Libraries.

Campus Facilities

Creighton's 120-acre urban campus encompasses more than 50 buildings, providing excellent facilities for the University's academic, residential, spiritual, athletic and recreational activities. The beautifully landscaped, pedestrian-friendly campus has been recognized by the Arbor Lodge Foundation as a Tree Campus USA University for 11 straight years and has been named a "green college" by *Princeton Review* for a strong commitment to the environment and sustainability. In 2019, *USA Today* named St. John's Church one of "51 amazing university and college buildings" in the U.S.

Recent facility projects include a new pharmacy skills lab, the relocation and renovation of the Clinical Assessment and Simulation Center, upgrades to several undergraduate science labs, an expanded dining facility, and renovated occupational therapy and physical therapy labs. A new 200,000-square-foot School of Dentistry building opened in 2018, featuring the latest in classroom, laboratory and clinical technology and accommodating larger class sizes and expanded community dental health outreach.

Recognition of Scholarship and Leadership

Creighton University applauds the scholastic effort and achievement of its students. In addition to the numerous scholarships, awards, and honor societies from each School and College that recognize student accomplishments, Creighton is proud to honor students with the following:

Alpha Sigma Nu is a national Jesuit honor society for men and women, awarded on the basis of scholarship, loyalty and service.

Phi Beta Kappa, Beta of Nebraska (Creighton Chapter). Founded in 1776, Phi Beta Kappa is the nation's oldest honor society. It celebrates and advocates excellence in the liberal arts and sciences, and only 10 percent of American colleges and universities have earned the privilege of hosting a chapter. Once a year, the chapter invites select juniors and seniors with an outstanding academic record in the liberal arts and sciences to become members.

The **Spirit of Creighton Award** is a citation conferred on a male and a female student by the President of the University annually at Commencement for demonstrating remarkable initiative and able enterprise, wisdom in action, modesty in achievement, and great personal sacrifice for the good of others.

The Alumni Association

Creighton University seeks to maintain lifelong relationships with former students of the University. The Creighton University Alumni Association, formed in 1892, assists the University in keeping alumni engaged with the institution. Its mission is to "advance the interests of the Creighton family through a commitment to academic excellence, Judeo/Christian ethics and a lifelong relationship between Creighton alumni and their University that enriches both."

The Alumni Association is governed by the National Alumni Board. This board represents the alumni community in matters affecting the University; supports and assists the University in fulfilling its strategic goals; and provides services, programs and support consistent with the Alumni Association's mission.

Alumni programs vary widely and include all-University events, Reunion weekend, class reunion activities, community service projects, college/school specific activities, recent alumni activities, regional events, career networking and social networking. Information on the Alumni Association can be found on the web at alumni.creighton.edu.

Non-discrimination Statement

Creighton University is committed to providing a safe and nondiscriminatory educational and employment environment. The University admits qualified students, hires qualified employees and accepts patients for treatment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, marital status, national origin, age, disability, citizenship, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, veteran status, or other status protected by law. Its education and employment policies, scholarship and loan programs, and other programs and activities, are administered without unlawful discrimination.

Sexual harassment, including sexual violence, is a form of sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. The University does not discriminate on the basis of sex in its educational, extracurricular, athletic, or other programs or in the context of employment.

It is the policy of the University to make all programs and services available to individuals with disabilities. Inquiries concerning rights and responsibilities under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 should be directed to the Executive Director for the Office of Equity and Inclusion (see below). To obtain information on accessibility of buildings and programs or to report problems of accessibility, please contact Human Resources (for employees), Cardiac Center or by telephone 402.280.2709, or Office of Disability Accommodations (for students), Old Gym 437 or by telephone 402.280.2166.

The following person has been designated to monitor compliance and to answer any questions regarding the University's non-discrimination policies:

Ms. Allison Taylor Executive Director Title IX Coordinator/Section 504 Coordinator Creighton University Office of Equity and Inclusion Creighton Hall Suite 340 Omaha, NE 68178 Phone: 402.280.3189

Email: allisontaylor@creighton.edu Web: www.creighton.edu/oei

The United States Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) enforces Title IX. Information regarding OCR may be found at www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr (https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr).

Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Creighton University, inspired out of a Catholic and Jesuit tradition, treasures the innate dignity of each member of our community and upholds the sanctity of each human being as a profound gift of God. Finding the resplendence of the divine reflected in the uniqueness of every person, we seek, acknowledge and celebrate diversity at Creighton because our Catholic and Ignatian heritage inspires and impels us to do so.

Diversity in principle is the "service of faith in the promotion of justice." Diversity enhances our social selves and intellectual lives by exposing all of us to methods, styles and frames of reference that challenge our unexamined assumptions helping us unmask personal, cultural, institutionalized, and organizational discrimination and stigmatization, recognizing that ignorance and stereotypes create and sustain privileges and preference for some, while creating and sustaining marginalization and oppression for others.

In a truly Catholic context, diversity at Creighton commends inclusion as a prudential, virtuous, and practical principle. Celebrating diversity at Creighton is an invitation to incarnate our mission to educate lifelong learners who will be agents for change in our local communities and in the world. Diversity at Creighton animates our varied intellectual pursuits and enriches our mission to "seek Truth in all its forms."

To this end, Creighton faculty, staff, students and administrators seek to foster an environment of awareness, inclusion, and compassion for everyone in our community and our guests, regardless of age, culture, faith, ethnicity, immigrant status, race, gender, sexual orientation, language, physical appearance, physical ability, or social class. Our caring, hospitable community, our attention to those who are underserved, our academic and co-curricular offerings, and our admissions, hiring, and promotion policies all give testimony to our desire to make Creighton a welcoming, inclusive community. We do this by constant vigilance and reassessment of our campus climate, reaching out to those who are marginalized and whose voices are muted by the mainstream.

Services for Students with Disabilities

Services for students with disabilities are provided to qualified students to ensure equal access to educational opportunities, programs, and activities in the most integrated setting possible. Students must make timely and appropriate disclosures and requests at least five weeks in advance of a course, workshop, program, or activity for which accommodation is requested or such other reasonable time as the

particular circumstance of a request for accommodation warrants. Students are encouraged to make requests for appropriate academic adjustments as soon as possible after acceptance. Each student may be required to submit medical or other diagnostic documentation of disability and functional limitations. Students may be required to complete additional evaluation of limitations by Creighton University's Center for Health or Counseling or other appropriate agencies prior to receiving requested accommodations. The University reserves the right to provide services only to students who complete and provide written results of evaluations and recommendations for accommodations to appropriate University personnel. For more information, contact the director of the Office of Disability Accommodations (http://www.creighton.edu/disabilitysupportservices) at 402.280.2166 or email leclair@creighton.edu.

Email as Official Means of Communication

The Creighton University assigned e-mail account shall be the official means of communication with all students, faculty and staff. All community members are responsible for all information sent to them via their University assigned e-mail account. Members who choose to manually forward mail from their University e-mail accounts are responsible for ensuring that all information, including attachments, is transmitted in its entirety to the preferred account.

All faculty, staff and students are required to maintain an @creighton.edu computer account. This account provides both an online identification key and a University Official E-mail address. The University sends much of its correspondence solely through e-mail. This includes, but is not limited to, policy announcements, emergency notices, meeting and event notifications, course syllabi and requirements, and correspondence between faculty, staff and students. Such correspondence is mailed only to the University Official E-mail address.

Faculty, staff and students are expected to check their e-mail on a frequent and consistent basis in order to stay current with University-related communications. Faculty, staff and students have the responsibility to recognize that certain communications may be time-critical.

Graduation Rates

Creighton University is pleased to provide information regarding our institution's graduation/completion rates, in compliance with the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended. To request graduation rate information, please contact the University Registrar at 402.280.2702 or registrar@creighton.edu.

Degree Policies

Undergraduate Degrees

Creighton University does not award dual (two) or multiple undergraduate degrees, whether concurrently or consecutively. Undergraduate students may complete more than one major, but may not earn more than one degree. The student will choose which major will be primary, which is what will determine the type of degree (B.A., B.S., B.S.Chm., B.S.B.A., B.F.A., or B.S.Evs.

Joint and Dual Degree Definitions

Dual Degree

A dual degree program is an integrated program of study designed to result in students earning two distinct University degrees in parallel by completing the requirements of two full degree programs, typically over a period of time shorter than would otherwise be required to complete both programs sequentially. It requires the completion of all requirements for each degree, but allows students to count designated credits to fulfill the requirements for both degrees. Students must be accepted and meet the requirements for each degree and follow the rules for the transfer or use of credit from one program to the other. Dual degree programs are primarily designed for the degrees to be earned concurrently, however may be earned consecutively. When one of the degrees is a bachelor's degree, the degrees will normally be earned consecutively. Undergraduate degrees describe a full program of study, which includes the core, major requirements, and credit hour requirements. Dual degrees can be any combination of Undergraduate degree and Graduate degree or two Graduate degrees, however, a student may not earn two Undergraduate degrees, whether concurrently or consecutively.

Joint Degree

A joint degree is a single academic degree jointly conferred by two or more accredited institutions, or two or more schools/colleges, within a single, accredited institution. Both institutions, or schools/colleges, would participate in the joint degree program.

The Jesuit Order

The Society of Jesus is a Roman Catholic religious order of men known as the Jesuits. It was founded in Paris by St. Ignatius of Loyola over 460 years ago. In addition to their work in parishes, primary and secondary education, the Jesuits sponsor twenty-eight colleges and universities in the United States.

The Jesuits are the founding order of Creighton University and turned the governance of Creighton over to the Board of Trustees in 1968. While the main focus of the Jesuits in the United States is on education, the order is primarily a missionary order which is also involved in spiritual direction, retreat centers and social justice work. There are presently 40 Jesuits at Creighton, including faculty, staff, administrators, chaplains and students.

The Jesuit tradition strives to form women and men to be of service for and with others. The hallmarks of a Jesuit education are excellence, service, leadership and faith. St Ignatius of Loyola saw the world as manifesting God's goodness, and graduates of Jesuit universities and colleges are called upon to "set the world on fire" by studying it, engaging with it, and changing it so that all people recognize their true identity as beloved sons and daughters of God.

American Jesuit Colleges and Universities

Alabama	Spring Hill College, Mobile
California	Loyola Marymount University, Los Angeles
	University of San Francisco, San Francisco
	Santa Clara University, Santa Clara
Colorado	Regis University, Denver

Connecticut	Fairfield University, Fairfield
District of Columbia	Georgetown University, Washington
Illinois	Loyola University Chicago
Louisiana	Loyola University New Orleans
Maryland	Loyola University Maryland, Baltimore
Massachusetts	Boston College, Chestnut Hill
	College of the Holy Cross, Worcester
Michigan	University of Detroit Mercy, Detroit
Missouri	Rockhurst University, Kansas City
	Saint Louis University, St. Louis
Nebraska	Creighton University, Omaha
New Jersey	Saint Peter's University, Jersey City
New York	Canisius College, Buffalo
	Fordham University, Bronx & Manhattan
	Le Moyne College, Syracuse
Ohio	John Carroll University, Cleveland
	Xavier University, Cincinnati
Pennsylvania	Saint Joseph's University, Philadelphia
	University of Scranton, Scranton
Washington	Gonzaga University, Spokane
	Seattle University, Seattle
Wisconsin	Marquette University, Milwaukee

(Seminaries and high schools are not included in this list.)

ASSOCIATION OF JESUIT COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES One Dupont Circle, Suite 405

Washington, D.C. 20036

phone: 202.862.9893 fax: 202.862.8523 www.ajcunet.edu (http://www.ajcunet.edu)

UNIVERSITY ADMINISTRATION

University Board of Trustees

as of July 1, 2019

, , , ,	
Mr. Michael R. McCarthy	Chairman, Creighton University Board of Trustees; Chairman, McCarthy Group, Inc.
Mr. W. Gary Gates	Vice Chair, Creighton Board of Trustees; President, Kathy and Gary Gates Foundation
Mr. Thomas D. Barry	Senior Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer, Sirius XM Holdings, Inc.
Rev. Casey C. Beaumier, S.J., Ph.D.	Vice President, University Secretary, and Director, Institute for Advanced Jesuit Studies, Boston College
Mr. James T. Blackledge	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mutual of Omaha
Mr. Jerry K. Crouse	Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Tenaska Energy, Inc.
Rev. Joseph P. Daoust, S.J., J.D.	Superior of the Jesuit Community, Pine Ridge Indian Reservation
Ms. Diane K. Duren	Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer, and Corporate Secretary (Retired), Union Pacific Railroad
Christopher J. Elias, M.D.	President, Global Development, Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
Mr. Nizar N. Ghoussaini	Senior Operational Partner, Triton
Mr. Robert J. Greenwood	Owner, Greenwood Pharmacies
Ms. Susan M. Haddix	Retired
Ms. Sharon Harper	President, CEO, and Chairman, Plaza Companies
Mr. Frank L. Hayes	Majority Owner and President, Hayes and Associates, LLC
Mr. Scott C. Heider	Managing Principal, Chartwell Capital, LLC
Rev. Daniel S. Hendrickson, S.J., Ph.D.	President, Creighton University
Mr. Mark W. Henkels	Director and Founding Partner, Moelis & Company
Mr. Mark Denniston Huber, J.D.	Retired
Eric T. Immel, S.J. (Associate Trustee)	Jesuit Scholastic & Associate Dean for Student Success, Loyola University Chicago, Arrupe College
Mr. Richard T. Kizer, J.D.	Chairman, Central States Health and Life Company of Omaha
Ms. Wende L. Kotouc	Executive Co-Chairman, American National Bank
Rev. G. Thomas Krettek, S.J., Ph.D.	Academic Director, First Studies Program, Loyola University Chicago
Mr. Bruce R. Lauritzen	Chairman, First National of Nebraska & Lauritzen Corporation

Rev. William P. Leahy, S.J., Ph.D.	President, Boston College
Darrell Lee, M.D.	President, Hawaii Gastroenterology Specialists
Mr. Chris J. Murphy	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Ameriwest Corporation
Ms. Sheila M. Nix, J.D.	President, Tusk Montgomery Philanthropies
Janis M. Orlowski, M.D.	Chief Health Care Officer, Association of American Medical Colleges
Trevor J. Rainwater, S.J. (Associate Trustee)	Scholastic, Society of Jesus
Mr. Mark H. Rauenhorst	President, Marren Properties
Mr. Robert A. Reed, Jr.	President and CEO, Physicians Mutual Insurance Company
Mr. William J. Roe	Retired
Rev. Nicholas Santos, S.J., Ph.D.	Rector, Jesuit Community, Creighton University
Mr. Tobin A. Schropp, J.D.	Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Kiewit Corporation
Ms. Ann Schumacher	President, CHI Health Immanuel & CHI Health Mercy Council Bluffs
Jeffrey D. Sullivan, S.J. (Associate Trustee)	Scholastic, Society of Jesus
Nick W. Turkal, M.D.	President and Chief Executive Officer, Advocate Aurora Health
Mr. Mark R. Walter, J.D.	Chief Executive Officer, Guggenheim Partners
Ms. Gail Werner-Robertson, J.D.	Founder and Chief Executive Officer, GWR Wealth Management, LLC
Mr. Gary K. Witt	Consulting Director, Lutz and Company
Mr. Ryan M. Zabrowski	Principal, Investors Realty, Inc.
Mr. Patrick J. Zenner	Retired
	_

Officers of Administration

as of July 1, 2019

Daniel S. Hendrickson, S.J., Ph.D. **President's Office** John W. Darwin, M.B.A. Special Assistant to the President & **Board Liaison** Bruce D. Rasmussen, B.S.B.A. Director, Intercollegiate Athletics **General Counsel** James S. Jansen, J.D. General Counsel and Corporate Secretary University Privacy Officer and Andrea M. Jahn, J.D. Associate General Counsel to **Health Sciences** Stuart Martens, J.D. Director, Intellectual Resource Management Allison Taylor, M.S.Ed. Executive Director, Equity and Inclusion Meredith Lierk, M.Div. Associate Director, Violence Intervention & Prevention

University Relations	Visa Dussidant for University	Kelsey Kelly, B.S.	Senior Director, Strategic Academic Marketing
Matthew Gerard, M.Ed.	Vice President for University Relations	Paula S. Kohles, B.S.B.A.	Director, Financial Aid
Cortney Bauer, M.S.	Assistant Vice President of Development	Sarah Richardson, M.S.	Assistant Vice Provost, Enrollment & Director of Admissions &
Adrian Dowell, M.B.A., M.A.	Assistant Vice President, Athletics Development	Global Engagement	Scholarships
Michael T. Findley, J.D.	Assistant Vice President, Principal	René Padilla, Ph.D.	Vice Provost for Global Engagement
•	Gifts	Margarita Dubocq, M.S.	Director, ILAC Operations
Meghan Frost, M.A.	Assistant Vice President, Development for Creighton	,	Dominican Republic and Encuentro Dominicano Academic Director
Amy McElhaney, M.S.	University Arizona Health Sciences Interim Assistant Vice President,	Jill Fox, Ph.D.	Director, Intensive English Language Program
	Advancement Operations and	Maorong Jiang, Ph.D.	Director, Asian World Center
Pay Tom Markel S. I	Strategic Initiatives Assistant Vice President, University	Thomas Kelly, Ph.D.	Director, Academic Service Learning
Rev. Tom Merkel, S.J. Diane Glow Stormberg, B.S.N.	Relations Assistant Vice President, Alumni	Jill Muegge, M.A.	Director, ILAC Operations Omaha and Encuentro Dominicano Campus Coordinator
	Relations and Donor Engagement; Director, Parent and Family Program	Keli Mu, Ph.D.	Director, International Relations Health Sciences
Steven A. Scholer, J.D.	Senior Philanthropic Advisor	Tami Renner, M.A.	Director, International Student &
Amy S. Turbes, B.A.	Senior Director, Strategy, Research, and Development		Scholar Services
Thomas F. Murray, Ph.D.	Provost	Information Technology and Library	,
Office of the Provost	Provost	Services	Vice Develop for Information
	Associate Vice Provost	Tim Brooks, M.B.A., M.I.M.	Vice Provost for Information Technology and Library Services
oude Nosoko Eddaki, M.D., M.O.T.T.	Sade Kosoko-Lasaki, M.D., M.S.P.H. Associate Vice Provost, Multicultural and Community Affairs		Assistant Vice Provost, Digital Experience
Academic Administration &		Bryan S. McLaughlin, B.S.	Information Security Officer
Partnerships		Mark J. Mongar, B.S.	Senior Director, Service Operations
Tricia A. Brundo Sharrar, J.D.	Vice Provost for Academic Administration and Partnerships	David Ramcharan, Ph.D.	Assistant Vice Provost, Digital Transformation
Charles Austerberry, Ph.D.	Director, Pre-Health Advising	Institutional Diversity & Inclusion	
Colin Dworak, B.S.B.A.	Director, Continuing Education	Christopher Whitt, Ph.D.	Vice Provost for Institutional
Joseph D. Ecklund, Ph.D.	Director of Academic Success and Educational Opportunity Programs, Creighton EDGE		Diversity & Inclusion
		Learning and Assessment	
Jeremy Fisher, M.B.A.	Director, Fahey Career Center	Gail M. Jensen, Ph.D.	Vice Provost for Learning and
Denise Y. LeClair, M.S.	Director, Office of Disability Accommodations		Assessment and Dean of the Graduate School/College of Professional Studies
Jennifer Metzler	Director, Business Development	Debra J. Ford, Ph.D.	Associate Vice Provost, Teaching
Melinda J. Stoner, B.S.	University Registrar		and Learning Center
TBD	Director, Military and Veterans Affairs; Business Office	Mission and Ministry	
Enrollment Management		Eileen Burke-Sullivan, S.T.D.	Vice Provost for Mission and
Mary E. Chase, Ed.D.	Vice Provost, Enrollment	Rev. Andrew F. Alexander, S.J.	Ministry Associate Director, Office for
	Management and University Planning	nev. Andrew 1. Alexander, 3.3.	Faculty and Staff Mission Formation and Ministry
Melissa Bertelsen, B.A.	Associate Vice Provost, Analytics and Data Governance	Rev. Lawrence D. Gillick, S.J.	Associate Director, Office for Faculty and Staff Mission
Audra Callanan, B.S.	Director, Enrollment Operations		Formation and Ministry
Mary Ann Tietjen	Interim Director, Retention	Amy Hoover, M.A.	Director, Creighton University
Duey Heffelfinger, B.S.	Director, Data Architecture	Idda Liada M Dir	Retreat Center
Lindsay Johnson, M.S.H.E.	Senior Director, Graduate and Adult Recruitment	Kyle Lierk, M.Div.	Director, Campus Ministry

TBD	Associate Director, Graduate Programs for Ministry Formation
Susan Naatz, M.A.	Senior Director, Faculty & Staff Mission Formation and Ministry
Kenneth Reed-Bouley, M.S., M.Div., M.B.A.	Director, Schlegel Center for Service and Justice
Research and Scholarship	
Beth Herr, M.P.A., C.R.A.	Director, Sponsored Programs Administration
Joseph Knezetic, Ph.D.	Director, Research and Compliance
Juliane K. Strauss-Soukup, Ph.D.	Director, CURAS
Student Life	
Tanya Winegard, Ph.D.	Vice Provost for Student Life
Michele K. Bogard, Ph.D.	Associate Vice Provost, Student Engagement
W. Wayne Young, Jr., Ph.D.	Associate Vice Provost, Student Development
Lucas Novotny, M.Ed.	Senior Director, Housing & Auxiliary Services
Desiree Nownes, M.S.	Senior Director, Office of Community Standards and Wellbeing
Nathan Haecker, M.D.	Director and Medical Director, Student Health Services
Katie Kelsey, M.Ed.	Director, Student Leadership & Involvement Center
Michael Lorenz, M.A.	Director, Residential Life
Becky Nickerson, M.S.	Director, Creighton Intercultural Center
Jennifer Peter, Psy.D.	Director, Student Counseling Services
Steve Woita, M.S.Ed.	Director, Recreation and Wellness
Jan Madsen, B.S.B.A., C.P.A.	Executive Vice President
Administration	
Brenda L. Hovden, M.B.A.	Director, Card and Mail Center
Michael D. Reiner, M.S., M.A.	Director, Public Safety
Derek M. Scott, B.S., M.B.A., M.A., M.S.	Associate Vice President, Facilities Management
Mark E. Simanek	Director, Shuttle/Transportation Services
Finance	
TBD	Vice President, Finance
Samantha Harter, M.B.A.	Manager Finance, School of Dentistry
Eric J. Gilmore, B.A.	Senior Director, Strategic Sourcing
John J. Jesse III, M.B.A.	Associate Vice President, Finance
Jeff Klein, M.B.A.	Director, Business Service Center
Dave K. Madsen, B.S.	Senior Director Finance, School of Law
Tara S. McGuire, B.S.B.A.	Associate Vice President, Finance
Tracy L. Monahan, M.B.A.	Senior Director Finance, School of Pharmacy and Health Professions, Interprofessional Programs and Graduate and Professional Studies

Katie A. Rinkol, M.B.A.	Senior Director Finance, College of Arts and Sciences, Heider College of Business, and College of Nursing
Raymond L. Stoupa, B.S.B.A.	Senior Director Finance, School of Medicine and Research
Human Resources	
Janel Allen, M.A.	Associate Vice President, Human Resources
Internal Audit	
T. Paul. Tomoser, B.S.	Director, Internal Audit
University Communications and Marketing	
Pam Mortenson, B.S.B.A.	Interim Chief Communications and Marketing Officer

Creighton College and School Officers of Administration

as of July 1, 2019

College of Arts and Sciences

Bridget M. Keegan, Ph.D., Dean

HollyAnn Harris, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Natural Sciences

Rebecca Murray, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Social and Applied Sciences Amy Wendling, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Humanities and Fine and Performing Arts

Lisa Brockhoff, M.S., Assistant Dean for Advising Gerald Kuhlman, M.A., Assistant Dean for Advising

Molly Loesche, M.A., Assistant Dean for Student and College Programs Wilfred Solomon, M.A., Assistant Dean for Administration and Operations

Heider College of Business

Anthony R. Hendrickson, Ph.D., Dean

Deborah L. Wells, Ph.D., Senior Associate Dean

Chris Karasek. Assistant Dean for Graduate Business Programs

Todd C. Darnold, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Graduate Business Programs Matthew T. Seevers, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Undergraduate Business Programs

Chris Karasek, Assistant Dean for Graduate Business Programs Charisse Williams, Assistant Dean for Undergraduate Business Programs

College of Nursing

Catherine M. Todero, Ph.D., Dean

Mary Kunes-Connell, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Academics, Assessment, and Accreditation

Joan Lappe, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Research and Scholarship Linda Shanta, Ph.D., R.N., A.N.E.F., Associate Dean, Phoenix Campus Jeffrey M. Zelda, M.B.A., J.D., Associate Dean for Operations Cynthia Adams, B.S.B.A., Assistant Dean for Administration and Finance Julie Manz, Ph.D., Assistant Dean and Program Chair for Undergraduate Program

Anne Schoening, Ph.D., Assistant Dean for Faculty Development

College of Professional Studies

Gail M. Jensen, Ph.D., Dean

Cindy L. Costanzo, Ph.D., Senior Associate Dean; Chair of the Department of Interdisciplinary Studies

The Graduate School

Gail M. Jensen, Ph.D., Dean

Cindy L. Costanzo, Ph.D., Senior Associate Dean; Chair of the Department of Interdisciplinary Studies

LuAnn M. Schwery, M.S., Assistant Dean

School of Dentistry

Mark A. Latta, D.M.D., M.S., Dean

Timothy M. Durham, D.D.S., M.P.A., Senior Associate Dean/Vice Dean William P. Kelsey III, D.D.S., Senior Associate Dean for Academic Affairs and Administration

Neil S. Norton, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Admissions

Sonia M. Rocha-Sanchez, M.S., Ph.D., M.B.A., Associate Dean for Research Joseph V. Franco, Jr., D.D.S., Assistant Dean for Clinics/Chief Dental Officer Colette O'Meara-McKinney, M.Ed., Assistant Dean for Student Affairs Samantha Harter, M.B.A., Finance Manager

School of Law

Joshua P. Fershee, J.D., Dean and Professor of Law

Rachel J. Goedken, J.D., Associate Dean for Academic Affairs and Professor of Law

Richard McFayden, J.D., Associate Dean for Student Affairs & Administration

BarbaraKaye Miller, J.D., Assistant Dean for Admissions

Mandy Whiddon, J.D., Assistant Dean for Career Development

Patrick Borchers, J.D., Director of Planning, Budget & Assessment and Professor of Law

Kelly Dineen, RN, J.D., Ph.D., Director of Health Law Programs

Troy Johnson, J.D., Interim Director of the Law Library

Catherine Mahern, J.D., Director of Legal Clinics & Externships

Larry L. Teply, J.D., Director of Faculty Research & Graduate Programs,

Interim Director of the Werner Institute, and Professor of Law

School of Medicine

Robert W. Dunlay, M.D., Dean

Randy Richardson, Phoenix Regional Campus Dean

Randall Pritza, M.D., Associate Dean, Clinical Affairs (Omaha)

TBD, Associate Dean, Clinical Affairs (Phoenix)

Jason C. Bartz, Ph.D., Associate Dean, Academic & Faculty Affairs (Omaha)

David Wisinger, M.D., Assistant Dean, Academic and Faculty Affairs (Phoenix)

Fr. James Clifton, S.J., Associate Dean, Mission and Identity (Omaha)

Michael Del Core, M.D., Associate Dean, Medical Education (Omaha)

Sandra Howell, M.D., Assistant Dean, Medical Education (Omaha)

Nicole Piemonte, Ph.D., Assistant Dean, Medical Education (Phoenix)

Ronn Johnson, Ph.D., Associate Dean, Diversity and Inclusion (Omaha)

Michael G. Kavan, Ph.D., Associate Dean, Student Affairs (Omaha)

Robert Garcia, Ph.D., Assistant Dean, Student Affairs (Phoenix)

Kevin J. Nokels, FACHE, Associate Dean, Hospital Affairs (Omaha)

Joann L. Porter, M.D., Associate Dean, Graduate Medical Education (Omaha)

Liz Ferguson, M.D., Assistant Dean, Graduate Medical Education (Phoenix)

James Rodenbiker, M.B.A., Associate Dean, Administrative Planning and Business Affairs (Omaha)

Thomas Svolos, M.D., Associate Dean, Strategy & Accreditation (Omaha) Renuga Vivekanandan, M.D., Assistant Dean, Accreditation (Omaha)

TBD, Assistant Dean, Accreditation (Phoenix)

Stephen Cavalieri, Ph.D., Assistant Dean, Medical School Admissions (Omaha)

TBD, Assistant Dean, Medical School Admissions (Phoenix)

Ray L. Stoupa, Financial Officer

School of Pharmacy and Health Professions

Evan T. Robinson, R. Ph., Ph.D., Dean

Paul L. Price, Pharm, D., Senior Associate Dean

Amy F. Wilson, Pharm.D., Assistant Dean for Academic Affairs

Victoria F. Roche, Ph.D., Special Assistant to the Dean

Samuel C. Augustine, Pharm.D., Special Assistant to the Dean

Brenda M. Coppard, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Assessment

Alekha K. Dash, Ph.D., Associate Dean for Research

Keli Mu, Ph.D., Associate Dean for International Relations

Shawn Cook, MPA, Assistant Dean for Student Affairs

MEDICINE

2019-2020 Issue

This publication contains the most current information available on the subjects covered as of the date of publication. Any updates between the dates of publication of this Catalog and its successor Catalog will be posted on the University's website and are considered a part of this Catalog for all purposes. This publication is not an offer to enter into a contract. Final selection of applicants to be admitted shall be made by the University, which reserves the right to deny admission to any applicant for any lawful reason. The University also reserves the right to modify or eliminate University rules and policies, including without limitation: admission requirements and criteria; course offerings, or location or frequency thereof; course content; grading requirements and procedures; degree requirements; tuition, fee, and board and room rates; financial assistance programs; substantive or procedural student disciplinary rules; and support services, and to apply any such modifications to any student without regard to date of admission, application or enrollment.

School of Medicine Mission Statement

In the Jesuit, Catholic tradition of Creighton University, the mission of the School of Medicine is to improve the human condition with a diverse body of students, faculty, and staff who provide excellence in educating students, physicians and the public, advancing knowledge, and providing comprehensive patient care.

Vision Statement

United by our Jesuit, Catholic identity, we transform learners into exceptional physicians who are leaders in advancing medicine, health and well-being.

Curriculum Goals and Objectives Goals

The goal of the curriculum is to develop competent, caring physicians during graduate training and practice. Our students will acquire a strong foundation in the basic and clinical sciences. In addition, they will acquire a strong foundation in the humanities, social, and behavioral sciences that are relevant to the well-being of both the physician and the patient.

Objectives

The faculty of the Creighton University School of Medicine prepare students to possess the knowledge, skills, attitudes and behaviors appropriate and necessary to be successful and empathic physicians. The faculty members have characterized the core competencies of the graduates in domains corresponding to competency domains described by the Accreditation Council on Graduate Medical Education and identified other objectives particularly relevant for Creighton University School of Medicine graduates. To attain the Doctor of Medicine degree, the Creighton student must achieve the following competencies and program objectives of the medical education curriculum:

Patient Care

PC1: Obtain, record, and present pertinent data from a medical history and physical examination.

PC2: Demonstrate effective clinical reasoning and judgment to determine an appropriate differential diagnosis and treatment plan.

Medical Knowledge

MK1: Recognize normal variations in structure and function of the human body at the whole body, organ, cellular, and molecular levels. MK2: Assess the pathophysiology, signs, symptoms, risk factors, and diagnostic tests of common illnesses.

MK3: Describe and apply the current evidence-based clinical practice guidelines in solving problems of health and disease.

Practice-Based Learning and Improvement

PBL1: Demonstrate the ability to critically assess the medical literature and the research methods used in clinical studies to determine whether information should influence diagnosis and treatment.

PBL2: Demonstrate the ability to improve skills based on feedback, self-reflection, and life-long learning.

Interpersonal and Communication Skills

ICS1: Demonstrate the ability to communicate with patients, families, and members of the healthcare team in a concise and collaborative manner.

Professionalism

PROF1: Demonstrate an ethical and compassionate approach to all professional activities including in interactions with patients, families, and members of the healthcare team.

PROF2: Demonstrate the ability to collaborate on healthcare teams that include health professionals from other disciplines in providing coordinated services to patients.

System-Based Knowledge

SBK1: Describe concepts and tools to enhance patient safety and improve patient care.

SBK2: Demonstrate awareness of the influence of national, regional, and organizational health policy and finance on the practice of healthcare among individuals, within healthcare institutions, within communities, and for public health.

SBK3: Apply an understanding of diverse patient populations and the medical consequences of common societal problems to healthcare prevention and treatment plans.

Personal & Professional Identity Development

PPID1: Develop a habit of cognitive and affective reflection that enhances one's self-awareness, resiliency, and wellness, as well as one's understanding of the profession of medicine and the societal context of medical practice.

PPID2: Identify strategies to serve and care for others as a whole person, particularly those most in need, through the practice of medicine.

Admission

It is the admission policy of Creighton University to admit qualified students within the limits of its resources and facilities. See also the University's Non-discrimination Statement (p. 7).

Students accepted by the Committee on Admissions enter the School of Medicine only at the beginning of the school year for which they are accepted and registration is closed one week after instruction has started for the first semester.

Application Process

Application is made through the American Medical College Application Service (AMCAS). Applicants are required to file electronically on the AAMC website (https://www.aamc.org). Applications must be filed between June 1 and November 1 of the year preceding the year in which the applicant desires to enter. Early filing is advisable.

All of the AMCAS requirements for credentials and letters of support must be met and materials submitted to the Washington, D.C. office. The application will then be forwarded to the Creighton University School of Medicine. A supplemental application and fee is required upon request by the School of Medicine for filing and processing the application. This fee is not refundable.

All supplementary information requested to complete the AMCAS application must be received at the Creighton University School of Medicine Office of Medical Admissions by January 15.

Requirements for Admission Educational Requirements

The minimum educational requirements for admission to the School of Medicine is the completion of a bachelor's degree and all course requirements. Please note that all course requirements need to be completed by June 1 of the matriculating year. In addition, all course requirements must be completed at an accredited college or university located within the United States or Canada.

College studies prior to admission to the School of Medicine should include subjects appropriate to a liberal arts education. The following courses are required for admission and are considered essential for the successful pursuit of the medical curriculum at Creighton University.

Required Courses

- Biochemistry
- Human/Animal Physiology at the advanced level¹
- Statistics
- · English: two courses that emphasize writing
- Creighton considers physiology courses that have a general biology and/or general chemistry prerequisite to be advanced level courses.

Preference for Admission

Preference for Admission will be given to applicants who complete at least one advanced science course, in addition to the required coursework, that builds a foundation within human or molecular-cellular biology.

Extracurricular Requirements

The Committee on Admissions will select those applicants whom they judge to be the best qualified for the study and practice of medicine. In evaluating the applicants, consideration will be given to all of the qualities considered to be necessary in a physician: intellectual curiosity, emotional maturity, honesty, proper motivation, and proven scholastic ability.

In addition, the Committee on Admissions **requires** applicants to have a foundation in the following activities:

Commitment to "service of others" through non-medical volunteer activities

- · Physician shadowing experiences
- Patient contact through clinical and/or medical experiences

Scientific research, though not required for admission, is also highly valued by the Committee on Admissions.

US Residency Requirements

Creighton University School of Medicine requires applicants to be either United States citizens or United States permanent residents in order to qualify for admission.

MCAT

Applicants are encouraged to take the Medical College Admission Test (MCAT) in the spring or summer of the year preceding their application to medical school. MCAT scores received from examinations taken more than three years before matriculation will not be considered.

In addition to Creighton's course prerequisites, applicants are encouraged to complete courses that will assist them in achieving competitive scores on the MCAT. Applicants should review the MCAT website for a listing of courses that will provide the academic foundational concepts needed to be prepared to sit for the test.

Application Process

Applications should be submitted through AMCAS (American Medical College Application Service) as early as possible. Applicants are also required to complete the Creighton secondary application. All applicants who submit a verified AMCAS to Creighton are invited to submit the Creighton secondary application.

You may use your discretion when selecting letter-writers. A committee letter is preferred (if available), but not required. We prefer letters from individuals who can honestly and accurately attest to your performance, character, personal qualities, and aptitudes from direct knowledge, interactions, and observations. We suggest you provide us with two science faculty letters and one non-science faculty letter, but leave it up to you to determine who are the ideal persons to help us assess your candidacy for medical school.

Applicants should submit at least 3 letters, but not more than 6.

Recommendations must be submitted to the Office of Medical Admissions through the AMCAS Letter Service by January 15.

The school requires a formal interview of every applicant selected before it finalizes the acceptance. The interview will be held on the university campus.

Applicants must be able to perform the physical, intellectual, and communicational functions necessary for the study and practice of medicine. Please consult the School of Medicine's Student Handbook for details on Technical Standards. Before matriculation, accepted applicants are required to submit to the Student Health Service a Confidential Health Report and must have all required immunizations. Accepted applicants will also be subject to a criminal background check, and be tested for illicit drug use.

Fulfillment of the specific requirements does not insure admission to the School of Medicine. The Committee on Admissions will select those applicants whom they judge to be the best qualified for the study and practice of medicine. In evaluating the applicants, consideration will be given to all of the qualities considered to be necessary in a physician:

Intellectual curiosity, emotional maturity, honesty, proper motivation, and proven scholastic ability. The Committee on Admissions also highly values evidence of humanitarian actions, volunteerism in the service of others, and leadership skills. Extracurricular shadowing of physicians and/or work or volunteer experience related to the delivery of health care, as well as scientific research are also highly valued by the Committee on Medical Admissions.

August

Acceptance Procedures—Reservation and Deposit

Each applicant will be informed in writing by the Assistant Dean for Admissions of the School of Medicine of the outcome of his or her application.

Within 14 days following the date of an acceptance into the M1 class, the applicant must submit a written reply to the Assistant Dean for Admissions.

This written reply may be either a:

- Formal reservation of the place offered by paying the \$100 enrollment reservation deposit. (Such deposit will be refunded upon request made prior to April 30.)
- 2. Refusal of the place offered and withdrawal of application.

Enrollment deposits are refundable up to April 30 of the matriculation year. Enrollment deposits will be credited to the student's first semester's tuition

An applicant who provides written notice of cancellation within three days (excluding Saturday, Sunday, and federal and state holidays) of signing the Formal Reservation is entitled to a refund of all monies paid. The school shall provide the 100% refund no later than 30 days of receiving the notice of cancellation.

Academic Calendar-School of Medicine

Academic Year 2019-2020 2019

June		
17	М	M4 Year begins-Class of 2020
26-28	W-F	Mandatory M3 orientation - Class of 2021 (Wednesday, Thursday, Friday)
July		
1	М	M3 year begins - Class of 2021
4	Th	Independence Day - University Holiday - Clinical duties as assigned M3/M4 students
July/August		
31-2	W-F	Mandatory M1 orientation - Class of 2023

August		
5	М	M1/M2 Year begins - Classes of 2023/2022
September		
2	М	Labor Day-University Holiday- Clinical Duties as assigned M3/M4 students
11	W	Mass of the Holy Spirit - 10:30 am - 12:30 pm
October		
21	M	Fall break - M2 students
22	Т	Classes resume at 8:00am for M2 students
21-27	M-Su	Fall Break - M1 students
28	M	Classes resume at 8:00 am for M1 students
November		
27	W	Thanksgiving recess begins at 8:00 am for M1 and M2 students
27	W	Thanksgiving recess begins at 5:00 pm for M3 and M4 students
December		
2	М	Classes resume at 8:00 am for M1 and M2 students
2	М	Duties resume as defined by clinical department for M3 and M4 students
14	Sa	First Semester ends for all medical students at 8:00 am
14	Sa	December graduation (no ceremony)
2020		
January		
6	M	Second semester begins for all medical students
March		
2-8	M-Su	Spring recess begins for M1 students at 8:00 am
9	М	Classes resume for M1 students
9-15	M-Su	Spring recess begins for M2 students at 8:00 am
16	М	Classes resume for M2 students
20	F	Match Day

27	F	Project Homeless Connect
April	All month	M4 Capstone
10	F	Good Friday - no classes or clinical duties for all medical students
13	М	Duties resume as defined by clinical department for M3/M4 students
13	М	Classes resume at 1:00 pm for M2 students
14	Т	Classes resume at 8:00 am for M1 students
May		
10	S	End of M4 academic year
15	F	Hooding Ceremony
16	Sa	University Commencement
16	Sa	Second Semester ends for M1 and M2 students at 8:00 am
25	М	Memorial Day - University Holiday - Clinical duties as defined by clinical department for M3/M4 students
June		
20	Sa	Second Semester ends for M3 students at 8:00 am

M.D. Curriculum

School of Medicine Medical Educational Program

The Creighton University School of Medicine medical educational program is made up of four components. Each component corresponds to the year that the student is matriculated.

Curriculum Revision

Curriculum revision is an ongoing process in the medical education program. Case-based learning and team-based learning sessions have been implemented in the Component I and Component II curriculum. These activities will be continued in Component II and enhanced further in Component I. Learning sessions in Component I and Component II include large-group active-learning sessions, lecture, small-group case-based learning, clinical experiences and reflection. The clinical experiences will include simulation, ambulatory and hospital experience, and interaction with community groups and clinics. Experiential learning opportunities are designed to enhance the development of critical thinking and clinical reasoning skills. The revised curriculum includes learning opportunities in the medical humanities, patient safety, ethics, health systems science, and others, as well as offering students

selectives that include student interest seminars, research selectives, career exploration selectives and mission outreach selectives.

Academic Year 2019-2020

The Component I student cohort will be on the New ERA Curriculum in Academic Year 2019-2020. The Component II student cohort will be on the modified legacy curriculum schedule, which will include the integration of case-based learning and team-based learning that was incorporated into the legacy curriculum in the prior year. Components I and II will be on the revised Clinical Skills Training curriculum which includes Early Hospital Experience, Ambulatory Clinic Experience and Interprofessional Education.

Graduation Requirements include successful completion of each of the four curricular Components, completion of three GOLD Selective courses and completion of the required Interprofessional Education activities. All elements must be successfully completed to be awarded the Doctor of Medicine degree.

Component I - First Year

Component I: New ERA Curriculum

Component I includes eight required Clinically Integrated Blocks (CIB). The year begins with a one-week Social Determinants of Health and Evidence-based Medicine Block followed by a five-week Foundational Science Block and then sequential blocks organized by organ system. The New ERA Curriculum is designed to be horizontally and vertically integrated.

Horizontal Integration

The Horizontal Integrated Disciplines (HID) extend across the curriculum. HID learning objectives are integrated into the Clinically Integrated Blocks. Students do not receive credit for the Horizontal Integrated Disciplines, however, student performance in each discipline will be tracked and reported to the student at the end of each semester to allow identification of areas of weakness and guide further study. There is a minimum performance requirement for the horizontal disciplines that is internal to the school of medicine. Horizontal Discipline performance will not be reported to the registrar.

Vertical Integration

The preclerkship curriculum is organized by topics/organ system blocks. Each block is designed to vertically integrate related topics in the GOLD, BLUE and GREEN Horizontal Integrated Disciplines around a topic or organ system-based area of study.

Interprofessional Education (IPE) is integrated into the medical school curriculum. Students are required to complete an online course, IPE 500 Introduction to Collaborative Care, on interprofessional education and will complete three interprofessional education activities embedded within the curriculum. Additional opportunities to interact and learn with other health professionals are interspersed throughout the medical education program.

IPE 500 Introduction to Collaborative Care This course is an introduction to the concepts of interprofessional collaborative practice preparing students across the health sciences to engage in interprofessional education and practice activities during their tenure at Creighton and beyond. In this course health sciences will gain knowledge in the Core Competencies for Interprofessional Collaborative Practice, versed in the

basics of team work in the context of health care and begin to develop skills in team-based clinical reasoning.

Code	Title	Credits
CIB 101	Social Determinants of Health and Evidence-bas Medicine	ed 1
CIB 103	Foundational Science	5
CIB 105	Immunology, Blood and Lymphoreticular System	n 5
CIB 107	Integumentary System, Musculoskeletal System Head and Neck	n, 7
CIB 109	Neuroscience	8
CIB 111	Brain and Behavior	2
CIB 113	Cardiovascular System	5
CIB 115	Pulmonary System	3
IPE 500	Introduction to Collaborative Care	0

GOLD SELECTIVES

GOLD Selectives are available to Component I medical students in four categories: (1) Student Interest Selectives (SIS) in the Humanities and Special Topics, (2) Guided Research Selectives (GRS), (3) Career Exploration Selectives (CES), and (4) Mission Outreach Selectives (MOS). Each GOLD Selective ranges from 0.5 to 1.0 credit hour. Component I students must complete three GOLD Selectives in their first two years. Each student must complete a minimum of one Selective in the SIS Group, and may take up to three SIS Selectives. Students may take up to two Selectives in one of the other Selective Groups, labeled, respectively, as Selective I and Selective II. Two Guided Research Selectives cannot be taken concurrently, or in the same semester. Two Career Exploration Selectives or two Mission Outreach Selectives may be taken in the same academic semester with approval of the Instructor. Students will receive more information on the availability of Selectives that are offered in each semester of the pre-clerkship years during Orientation.

Component II - Second Year

Component II: Modified Legacy Curriculum

Component II includes case-based and team-based learning sessions. The revised Clinical Skills Training Curriculum is being implemented across Component I and II with expanded clinical exposure in the Early Hospital Experience, Ambulatory Clinic Experience, and Interprofessional Education activities.

Code	Title	Credits
IDC 222	Physician Lifestyle Management	1
IDC 299	Clinical Skills Training and Experience	4
IDC 299A	Clinical Skills Training and Experience	0
IDC 233	Infectious Diseases	4
IDC 207	Hematology-Oncology	3
IDC 201	Cardiovascular System	5
IDC 243	Behavioral Medicine II	3
IDC 203	Respiratory System	3
IDC 205	Renal-Urinary System	3
IDC 216	Endocrine-Reproductive System	4
IDC 211	Musculoskeletal-Integument System	2
IDC 209	Gastrointestinal System	3

IDC 244 Multi-System Disease/Social Determinants of Health

Component III - Third Year

Component III is organized into seven clerkships and three selectives within six 8-week rotation periods. Additionally, it includes the longitudinal course, Physician Lifestyles Management. The first rotation begins early in July and is preceded by four days of mandatory activities that include a combination of Orientation and Clinical Skills Training. The last rotation ends in mid-June.

Component III students are required to complete all of their clerkship rotations at Creighton University School of Medicine-affiliated hospitals. Clerkship sites include: Common Spirit Hospitals: CUMC CHI Bergan Mercy Hospital - Omaha and St. Joseph's Dignity Hospital-Phoenix; the Omaha VA Medical Center; Phoenix VA Health Care System; Children's Hospital and Medical Center-Omaha; Phoenix Children's; Valleywise Health-Phoenix (formerly Maricopa Integrated Health System) and other affiliated clinical partners.

The third year comprises the core clinical clerkships (48 credit hours).

Code	Title	Credits
FAP 301	Family Medicine Clerkship	4
MED 301	Internal Medicine Clerkship	4,8
OBG 301	Obstetrics and Gynecology Clerkship	6
NEU 301	Neurology Clerkship	4
PBS 301	Psychiatry Clerkship	3-6
PDT 301	Pediatrics Clerkship	3,6
SUR 301	Surgery Clerkship	8
IDC 342	Physician Lifestyle Management	1
Selective Courses	3	6
ANE 333	Anesthesiology	2
ANE 334	Anesthesiology	2
ANE 335	Anesthesiology	2
DER 333	Dermatology	2
DER 334	Dermatology	2
EME 333	Emergency Medicine	2
EME 334	Emergency Medicine	2
MED 333	Outpatient Internal Medicine	2
MED 334	Outpatient Internal Medicine	2
OBG 333	Obstetrics & Gynecology	2
OBG 334	Obstetrics & Gynecology	2
PBS 333	Child & Adolescent Psychiatry	2
PBS 335	Geriatric Psychiatry	2
PBS 336	Adult Inpatient Psychiatry	2
PBS 334	Psychiatry	2
PDT 333	Inpatient Pediatrics	2
PDT 334	Pediatrics	2
PDT 335	Pediatric Opthamology	2
PTG 334	Pathology	2
PMR 333	Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation	2
PMR 334	Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation	2
RAD 333	Diagnostic Radiology	2
RAD 334	Diagnostic Radiology	2

RON 333	Radiation Oncology M3 Elective	2
RON 334	Radiation Oncology	2

Component III Students must also satisfy the following requirements:

- · Attend all M3 orientation sessions
- · Be certified in Advanced Cardiac Life Support
- Satisfactorily complete the M3 Clinical Skills Exam prior to taking
 the USMLE Step 2 CS. A student who does not satisfactorily
 complete the M3 CSE must follow a plan of remediation designed by
 the Component Director, Course Director, and Medical Director of the
 Clinical Education & Simulation Center in order to be eligible to take
 the USMLE Step 2 CS.

Component IV - Fourth Year

The fourth year prepares students for residency and provides a chance to explore their own interests in specialized areas of medical practice. In the fourth year, each student selects at least 36 weeks of courses which must include;

· 1 critical care selective (4 weeks)

Codo

- 1 sub-internship selective or 2nd critical care selective (4 weeks)
- · 1 capstone selective (4 weeks) in April

Title

 An additional 24 weeks of clinical electives including sub-internships with no more than 8 weeks of non-clinical electives.

Selectives are chosen from a specific group of specialty electives. Sub-Internships (Sub-I) provide the student with experience and preparation for residency. When students are performing their sub-internship, regardless of department, they should act in all capacities as an intern, albeit with a smaller number of patients and greater supervision. Sub-internships may include overnight and/or weekend call. Critical care selectives provide the student with experience in caring for inpatients or emergency room patients with life-threatening illnesses. Critical care selectives typically require overnight and weekend call.

During the fourth year a student must take and post a score for Step 2CK and Step 2CS of the USMLE prior to graduation.

A complete listing of available Component IV Elective/Selective Courses offered is provided to M4 students during the Spring semester prior to Component IV. Elective/Selective courses are offered in the following subject areas:

Cradita

Code	ritie	Credits	
Interdepartmental Courses (IDC)			
Elective Courses			
IDC 410	Simulation Elective	4	
IDC 412	Clinical Moral Perception, Art, and Medicine	4	
IDC 413	Anatomy	4	
IDC 419	Medicine as Ministry: Death and Dying	2	
IDC 420	Is Healthcare a Human Right?	4	
IDC 462	Medical Informatics	4	
IDC 482	Minority Health Disparities-Issues & Strategies	2	
IDC 485	LGBTQIA Health Disparities: Issues and Strategi	ies 2	
IDC 497	Directed Independent Research	4	
IDC 498	Directed Independent Study	4	

Code	Title	Credits
Anesthesiology (A	ANE)	
Elective Courses	-	
ANE 470	Anesthesiology Pain Medicine	4
ANE 498	Anesthesiology Extramural	1-8
Selective Courses		10
ANE 450	Neuroanesthesia	4
ANE 451	Introduction to Anesthesiology	4
ANE 451		4
7 12	Introduction to Anesthesiology	
ANE 465	Anesthesiology Capstone	4
ANE 473	Anesthesiology Capstone	4
Code	Title	Credits
Biomedical Scien	ces (BMS)	
Elective Courses		
BMS 461	Gross Anatomy	4
BMS 462	Teaching Practicum in Medical Anatomy	4
	•	
Code	Title	Credits
Family Medicine ((FAP)	
Elective Courses		
FAP 425	St. Vincent De Paul Medical & Dental Clinic	1-5
FAP 435	Urgent Care	4
FAP 438	Respite Care for the Homeless	4
FAP 442	Palliative Care	4
FAP 442A	Palliative Care	4
FAP 444	Rural Health Care	2-4
FAP 446	Family Medicine-Solaid/Cambodia	4
FAP 460	Hospice Care Of The Terminally III	4
FAP 460A	Hospice for Terminal Illness	4
FAP 464	Private Family Medicine	4
FAP 481	Longitudinal COPC Public Health Endowed	4
	Research	
FAP 498	Family Practice Extramural	1-8
Selective Courses	-	
FAP 440	Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-Internship	4
FAP 461	Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-internship	4
FAP 461A	Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-Internship	2
FAP 462	Rural Family Medicine Sub-internship	4
FAP 469	Family Medicine Capstone	4
FAP 476	Family Medicine Capstone (PRC)	4
		o !:.
Code	Title	Credits
	logy and Immunology (MIC)	
Elective Courses		_
MIC 463	Topics in Immunology/Application to Clinical Medicine	4
Code	Title	Credits
Medicine (MED)		
Elective Courses		
MED 416	Clinical Allergy/Immunology	4
MED 417	Endocrinology, Diabetes, and Metabolism	4

MED 427	Genitourinary Oncology	1-5	OBG 467	General Obstetrics - Foreign Service (Dominican	4
MED 428	Geriatrics	4	ODC 470	Republic)	4
MED 431	Dermatology	4	OBG 470	Gynecologic Surgery	4
MED 433	Dermatology	4	OBG 472	Inpatient Gynecology	4
MED 435	Medical Hematology/Oncology/Palliative Care		OBG 474	Applied Outpatient and Inpatient Gynecology	4
MED 435A	Medical Hematology/Oncology/Palliative Care		OBG 479	Clinical Research in Advanced Gynecology	4
MED 436	Research in Med Hem/Onc/Palliative Care and	4	OBG 481	Maternal Fetal Medicine Research	4
MED 400	Primer in Bio-Stats	4	OBG 498	Obstetrics and Gynecology Extramural	4
MED 439	Emergency Medicine	4	Selective Courses		
MED 442	Inpatient Cardiology	4	OBG 461	Detection and Mgmt of High-Risk Pregnancy Sub- Internship	- 4
MED 448	Inpatient Cardiology	4	OBG 468	General Obstetrics and Gynecology	4
MED 449	Renal Medicine-Critical Care	4	OBG 477	·	4
MED 452	Emergency Medicine - Dominican Republic	4		Gynecologic Oncology Sub-Internship	
MED 453	Introduction to Global Health	2-4	OBG 483	Detection and Management of High Risk Pregnancy Sub-Internship	4
MED 456	Gastrointestinal Medicine	4	OBG 489	Obstetrics & Gynecology Capstone	4
MED 458	Pulmonary/Lung Transplant	4	OBG 490	Obstetrics and Gynecology Capstone	4
MED 465	Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism	4	ODG 490	obstetrics and dynecology capstone	4
MED 468	Infectious Disease	4	Code	Title C	redits
MED 469	Rheumatology	4	Pathology (PTG)		
MED 470	ILAC Outpatient Medicine-Foreign Service	4	Elective Courses		
	(Dominican Republic)		PTG 402	Molecular Genetics in Oncology	4
MED 486	Medical Education Elective	4	PTG 461	Introduction to Pathology Practice	4
MED 498	Medicine Extramural	4	PTG 467	Survey of Pathology Practice	2
MED 795	Evidence Based Medicine - Independent Study	4	PTG 468	Microbial Laboratory Diagnosis	4
Selective Courses			PTG 498	Pathology Extramural	4
MED 401	General Medicine Sub-Internship	4		. a.i.o.og,i.i.a.i.a.	•
MED 410	Pulmonary/Critical care	4	Code	Title C	redits
MED 412	Pulmonary Diseases	4	Pediatrics (PDT)		
MED 422	Critical Care - Renal Medicine	4	Elective Courses		
MED 471	Emergency Medicine	4	PDT 420	Pediatric Endocrinology	4
MED 472	Critical Care	4	PDT 421	Pediatric Hematology-Oncology	4
MED 481	Pulmonary/Intensive Care Unit	4	PDT 422	Pediatric Rheumatology	4
MED 482	Emergency Medicine Sub-Internship	4	PDT 423	Pediatric Gastroenterology and Nutrition	4
MED 484	Intensive Care Unit	4	PDT 424	Medical Care for Homeless and At-Risk Kids and	4
MED 487	Internal Med Sub-internship	4		Teens	
MED 490	Critical Care Medicine	2-4	PDT 425	Pediatric Cardiology	4
MED 491	Internal Medicine Capstone	4	PDT 426	Pediatric Urology	4
MED 492	Internal Medicine Capstone	4	PDT 427	Pediatric Dermatology (PRC)	4
			PDT 428	Pediatric Rheumatology	4
Code	Title	Credits	PDT 430	Pediatric Sports Medicine	4
Neurology (NEU)			PDT 431	Introduction to Inpatient Rehabilitation	1-5
Elective Courses			PDT 440	Breastfeeding Medicine	4
NEU 401	General Neurology	4	PDT 442	General Pediatrics Outpatient/Nursery	4
NEU 462	General Neurology	2	PDT 444	Anatomic and Clinical Pathology	4
NEU 498	Neurology Extramural	4	PDT 446	Pediatric Emergency Medicine	4
Code	Title	Credits	PDT 450	Pediatric Orthopedics	4
Obstetrics and Gy		Greuits	PDT 459	Pediatric Genetics and Metabolic Disease	4
Elective Courses	necology (ODO)		PDT 463	Pediatrics Infectious Disease	4
	Drivata Carviago in Cumanalas	4	PDT 466	Pediatric Cardiology	4
OBG 462	Private Services in Gynecology	4	PDT 467	Pediatric Neurology	4
OBG 464	Prenatal Diagnosis	4	PDT 468	Pediatric Gastroenterology	4
OBG 466	Gynecology Oncology	4	PDT 469	Pediatric Endocrinology Services	4
			PDT 470	Pediatric Hematology/Oncology Service	4
			. 5. 7.0	. Salatio Hematology, olloology oct vice	-

PDT 471	Pediatric Respiratory and Critical Care Medicine	4	PBS 474A	Mood Disorders & Treatment	2
PDT 472	General Pediatrics	4	PBS 475	Consultation/Liaison Psychiatry	4
PDT 477	Clinical Genetics/Dysmorphology	4	PBS 476	Special Topics in Psychiatry	4
PDT 478	Pediatric Nephrology	4	PBS 479	Addictions	4
PDT 480	Assessment of Child Abuse and Neglect	4	PBS 479A	Addictions	2
PDT 483	Pediatric Neurology	4	PBS 482	Trans-Cultural and Community Psychiatry	4
PDT 487	Family-Centered Patient Care	4	PBS 482A	Trans-Cultural/Comm Psychiatry	2
PDT 488	Pediatric Allergy and Immunology	4	PBS 483	Domestic Violence Practicum	4
PDT 494	Pediatric Urgent Care	4	PBS 486	Narratives in Illness	4
PDT 498	Pediatrics Extramural	4	PBS 498	Psychiatry Extramural	4
Selective Courses	3				
PDT 451	Pediatrics Capstone	4	Code	Title	Credits
PDT 460	Pediatric Inpatient Sub-Internship	4	Radiation Oncolo	gy (RON)	
PDT 461	Pediatric Critical Care	1-8	Elective Courses		
PDT 464	Neonatal Intensive Care Services	2-4	RON 410	Radiation Medicine PRC	4
PDT 473	Advanced Pediatrics	4	RON 498	Radiation Oncology Externship	4
PDT 474	Pediatric Emergency Medicine	4	Code	Title	Credits
PDT 475	Pediatric Pulmonology	4	Radiology (RAD)	Title	Oreans
PDT 484	Pediatric Critical Care	4	Elective Courses		
PDT 485	Neonatology Critical Care	4	RAD 450	Interventional Radiology	4
PDT 486	Inpatient Pediatrics	4	RAD 455	- -	2-5
PDT 490	Pediatrics: Cardiac Critical Care	4	RAD 460	Musculoskeletal Radiology Elective	4
				Diagnostic Radiology	
Code	Title	Credits	RAD 463	Diagnostic Radiology	4
Physical Medicine	e and Rehabilitation (PMR)		RAD 464	Radiology Oncology	4
Elective Courses			RAD 465	Angio/Interventional	4
PMR 401	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation	1-8	RAD 498	Radiology Extramural	4
PMR 401 PMR 421	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation	1-8 4	Code	Title	Credits
	-		Code		
PMR 421	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation	4			
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural	4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR)		
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title	4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401	Title	Credits
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural	4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma	Credits
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH)	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red	Credits 4 2
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery	Credits 4 2 4 2
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH)	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery	4 2 4 2
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic)	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405 SUR 411 SUR 411	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep	4 2 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic)	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger	4 2 4 2 4 4 y 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic)	4 4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology	4 2 4 2 4 4 y 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS)	4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416	Title Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research	4 2 4 4 4 y 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry	4 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA)	2 4 2 4 4 y 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC)	4 4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surgery Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery	2 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry	4 4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery	2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective	4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery	2 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology	4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology	2 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry	4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery	2 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463A	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Child & Adolescent Psychiatry	4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 2	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 421 SUR 431 SUR 432	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery	Credits 4 2 4 2 4 4 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 2-4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463A PBS 464	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Psychiatry Research	4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431 SUR 432 SUR 432A	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery Selective in Oncology/Surgery	Credits 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 2-4 2
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463 PBS 464 PBS 464 PBS 467	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Psychiatry Research Geriatric Psychiatry	4 4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431 SUR 432 SUR 433	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery Selective in Oncology/Surgery Selective in Urology	Credits 4 2 4 2 4 4 7 4 4 4 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463 PBS 464 PBS 467 PBS 467	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Psychiatry Research Geriatric Psychiatry Geriatric Psychiatry	4 4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431 SUR 432 SUR 433 SUR 433 SUR 436	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery Selective in Oncology/Surgery Selective in Urology Urology/Gynecology	Credits 4 2 4 4 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463A PBS 464 PBS 467 PBS 467 PBS 472	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Psychiatry Research Geriatric Psychiatry Geriatric Psychiatry Adult Inpatient Psychiatry	4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431 SUR 432 SUR 432 SUR 433 SUR 436 SUR 450	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery Selective in Oncology/Surgery Selective in Urology Urology/Gynecology Otolaryngology	Credits 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
PMR 421 PMR 425 PMR 498 Code Preventive Medic Elective Courses PMH 462 PMH 470 Code Psychiatry and Be Elective Courses PBS 410 PBS 414 PBS 420 PBS 446 PBS 462 PBS 463 PBS 463 PBS 464 PBS 467 PBS 467	Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation Pain Management (PRC) Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural Title ine and Public Health (PMH) Clinical Genetics Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic) Title ehavioral Sciences (PBS) General Hospital Psychiatry Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC) Special Topics in Psychiatry Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective Clinical Psychopharmacology Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Psychiatry Research Geriatric Psychiatry Geriatric Psychiatry	4 4 4 Credits 1-8) 4 Credits 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4	Code Surgery (SUR) Elective Courses SUR 401 SUR 401A SUR 405 SUR 405A SUR 411 SUR 412 SUR 414 SUR 415 SUR 416 SUR 419 SUR 420 SUR 422 SUR 424 SUR 425 SUR 431 SUR 432 SUR 433 SUR 433 SUR 436	Selective in Trauma Selective in Trauma General Surgery - Red Selective in General Surgery Orthopedic Surgery Advanced Surgical Prep Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surger Urology Surgery Research Head and Neck Surgery (OMA) Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery General Surgery Selective in General Thoracic Surgery Selective in Otolaryngology Selective in Pediatric Surgery Selective in General & Oncology Surgery Selective in Oncology/Surgery Selective in Urology Urology/Gynecology	Credits 4 2 4 4 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

SUR 472A	Selective Neurological Surgery	2		
SUR 474	Selective in Ophthalmology	4		
SUR 475	Orthopedic Surgery	4		
SUR 475A	Selective in Orthopedic Surgery	2		
SUR 476	Selective in Otolaryngology	4		
SUR 479	Selective in Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery	4		
SUR 486	Burns	4		
SUR 489	Selective in Pediatric Ophthalmology	4		
SUR 498	Surgery Extramural	4		
Selective Courses				
SUR 485	Surgical Intensive Care Unit	1-4		
SUR 491	Selective in Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery	4		
SUR 494	Selective in Neurological Surgery Sub-Internship	4		
SUR 495	Surgery Capstone	4		
SUR 496	Surgery Capstone (PRC)	4		

Clinical Education & Simulation Center

The mission of the Simulation Education Center shall be to assist health sciences faculty in the development, implementation, and evaluation of educational sessions for Creighton University health sciences learners at various levels of training. We exist to enhance the learning process and increase learner satisfaction with their educational experiences. We promote faculty development and are committed to the advancement of excellence in education at Creighton University so that graduates are able to provide comprehensive and safe patient care. The goals and objective for all of our activities are designed to provide learners with opportunities to demonstrate clinical competence in a safe and constructive environment. Learners are given opportunities to demonstrate proficiency in a variety of skills, while showing compassion and sensitivity to patient needs and concerns. Learners are taught to work as a team and are encouraged to reflect upon their experiences.

Educational sessions are designed to promote an awareness of, and responsiveness to, the larger context and system of health care and the ability to call upon system resources to provide quality patient care. It is our goal to foster professional behavior that acknowledges the mission and vision of Creighton University.

Courses

ANE 333. Anesthesiology. 2 credits.

Students will become familiar with the specialty of anesthesiology through daily, hands-on preoperative, intraoperative, and postoperative anesthetic management of patients of all ages.

ANE 334. Anesthesiology. 2 credits.

Working closely with staff anesthesiologists in a variety of settings, students will become familiar with the specialty of anesthesiology through daily, hands-on preoperative, intraoperative, and postoperative anesthetic management of patients of all ages. Student will learn how to successfully manage an airway.

ANE 335. Anesthesiology. 2 credits.

Working closely with staff anesthesiologists in a variety of settings, students will become familiar with the specialty of anesthesiology through daily, hands-on preoperative, intraoperative, and postoperative anesthetic management of patients of all ages. Students will learn how to successfully manage an airway.

ANE 450. Neuroanesthesia. 1-4 credits.

Student will develop the knowledge and skills to effectively deliver anesthesia to neurosurgical patients undergoing a wide variety of procedures including aneurysm clipping, complex spine surgery, brain tumor resection, and pediatric neurosurgery. Also, the student will have the opportunity to perform and assist in the placement of central venous catheters, arterial lines, intubations, and fiber optic bronchoscopy. Finally, the student will develop a basic working knowledge of pharmacology, physiology, and the pathophysiology of neurologic disorders.

ANE 451. Introduction to Anesthesiology. 4 credits.

Working closely with staff anesthesiologists in a variety of settings, students will become familiar with the specialty of anesthesiology through daily, hands-on preoperative, intraoperative and postoperative anesthetic management of patients of all ages. Students will learn how to successfully manage an airway.

ANE 461. Introduction to Anesthesiology. 4 credits.

Working closely with staff anesthesiologists in a variety of settings, students will become familiar with the specialty of anesthesiology through daily, hands-on preoperative, intraoperative and postoperative anesthetic management of patients of all ages. Students will learn how to successfully manage an airway.

ANE 465. Anesthesiology Capstone. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the anesthesiology capstone curriculum in the final block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will include a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, procedure development, as well as hands-on patient care sessions.

ANE 468. Anesthesia and Interventional Pain Management. 4 credits.

Senior Elective will include an intense hands-on anesthesia training experience for the motivated senior medical student. Training will occur in all fields of anesthesiology, but emphasize the basics. Subspecialty areas covered include ICU management for specific anesthesia patients - with emphasis on basics of mechanical ventilation and weaning post operatively - specifically working with respiratory therapists and intensivists as needed.

ANE 470. Anesthesiology Pain Medicine. 4 credits.

The student will participate as a sub-intern in the care of acute and chronic pain patients in the hospital and clinic under the supervision of the medical staff at CHI Creighton Medical Center and Midwest Pain Clinics. Students will develop a basic working knowledge of pharmacology, physiology, pathophysiology of pain. Also, students will have the opportunity to assist with interventional pain procedures such as injections and nerve blocks.

ANE 472. Anesthesiology ILAC Service in the Dominican Republic. 2 credits.

The course provides the opportunity for students to use their anesthesiology skills in a primitive setting and allow students opportunities to provide health care to a needy population and interact with another culture. It is expected that the students will understand more deeply the advantages of the health care system we are privileged with, but to also come to understand and know the blessings of the simplicity and gratitude lived by those in the culture they will be immersed in.

ANE 473. Anesthesiology Capstone. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the anesthesiology capstone curriculum in the final block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will includes a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, procedure development, as well as hands-on patient care sessions.

ANE 475. Special Topics Anesthesiology. 1-8 credits.

Special Topics in Anesthesiology.

ANE 497. Directed Independent Research. 2,4 credits.

ANE 498. Anesthesiology Extramural. 1-8 credits.

BMS 111. Basic Human Anatomy. 4 credits. FA

Designed to provide nursing students with a basic knowledge of human anatomy. Lecture topics range from anatomical terminology to comprehensive overviews of the individual organ systems, including aspects of gross anatomy, histology, and neuroanatomy. 4R. P. Registration in Nursing Program.

BMS 301. Biochemistry. 3 credits. FA

An introductory course designed for undergraduate students preparing for health sciences professional schools, e.g., medical or dental school. Students in undergraduate majors from all disciplines are also welcome. Topics will cover structure, function, and metabolism of important biomolecules, including amino acids, proteins, enzymes, carbohydrates, lipid and nucleic acids. Special topics surveyed also will include cellular processing of biomolecules, signal transduction pathways, and the molecular biology of gene expression in health and disease. Prerequisites: CHM 323 and 324 or equiv. with grades of "C" or better.

BMS 303. Physiology. 4 credits. SP

Provides Nursing and other Health Profession students with a basic knowledge of human physiology. Presents an overview of the function of the major organ systems using lectures and demonstrations. 4R. P. NUR major or IC.

BMS 311. Basic Human Anatomy. 4 credits. FA

Course designed to provide pre-professional students with an introduction to human gross anatomy, histology, and neuroanatomy. A systemic approach is used. Dissected cadaver specimens and anatomical models are available as learning aids. P.IC.

BMS 461. Gross Anatomy. 2-4 credits.

The two-week elective is for students interested in improving their general knowledge of an anatomical region, while the four-week elective is for students wanting to undertake a more detailed examination and study. The latter option is especially designed for students interested in specific aspects of surgical anatomy.

BMS 462. Teaching Practicum in Medical Anatomy. 2-6 credits.

The students in this course will participate as teaching assistants in Medical Gross Anatomy Laboratory. Each student will assist with tutorials, test preparation and grading. Students will be required to prepare for each laboratory session and to actively assist students in the laboratory. Students will be evaluated by their colleagues as well as by course faculty.

BMS 604. Fundamentals Of Cell And Molecular Biology. 3 credits. FA

This course consists of lectures on the functional aspects of cell and molecular biology with an emphasis on eukaryotic cells. P. IC.

BMS 622. Principles of Biochemistry. 3 credits.

This course examines the fundamental principles of structural biochemistry, enzymology, metabolism and molecular biology. P. Graduate standing with Instructor Consent.

BMS 624. Human Neuroanatomy. 4 credits. SP

This course covers fundamental concepts in neuroscience, including functional neuroanatomy, neurophysiology, and neuroembryology.

BMS 630. Fundamentals of Hearing. 3 credits. FA, SP, SU

This is an advanced graduate level course focusing on the anatomy and physiology of the auditory system. The course will introduce students to the basics of normal human hearing with a focus on the peripheral auditory system, neural coding of sound, and the perception of simple sounds. P. Gr. Stdg. or IC.

BMS 706. Advanced Cell and Molecular Biology. 3 credits.

Detailed consideration of the functional aspects of cell and molecular biology with emphasis on eukaryotic cells. Topics include structure, and synthesis of DNA and RNA, gene expression regulation, signal transduction, transport and processing of secretory proteins, and relevance of these topics in eukaryotic differentiation and pathologies such as cancer.

BMS 730. Advanced Topics in Cell and Molecular Biology. 3 credits. FA, SP, SU

This course covers functional aspects of eukaryotic cells including gene regulation/expression, signal transduction, and cell-cell and cell-substrate interactions. Topics vary will change with each iteration of the course permitting students to repeatedly enroll in the course but with each covering a different topic. Nine credit hours are the maximal applicable toward the degree. P. IC.

BMS 791. Seminar. 1 credit. FA, SP

This course consists of formal oral presentations and critical discussions of assigned subjects to familiarize students with the nature and extent of research literature, the analysis of research papers, and the collation and presentation of scientific information. This course is repeatable. P.IC.

BMS 792. Journal Club. 1 credit. FA, SP, SU

This course consists of detailed examination of the physiology, cell biology, and molecular biology of the nervous system, with emphasis on mammalian systems. The course will include membrane physiology, ion channels, synaptic physiology, neurotransmitters and receptors, sensory receptors, neural circuits, and advanced techniques. P. IC.

BMS 795. Directed Independent Study. 2 credits. FA, SP, SU

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students. The purpose is to provide an environment whereby the student is introduced to scientific research methods and can improve critical thinking and reading skills as well as exchanging scientific information. P. IC.

BMS 797. Directed Independent Research. 1-9 credits. FA, SP, SU This course consists of original investigation under supervision and

quidance of individual staff members. P. IC.

BMS 799. Master's Thesis. 1-3 credits. FA, SP, SU

This course consists of review of the literature and research data; writing of the thesis. Students must register for this course in any term when engaged in formal preparation of the Master's thesis; however, six credit hours are the maximum applicable toward the degree. P. IC.

BMS 899. Doctoral Dissertation. 3-6 credits. FA, SP, SU

This course consists of review of the literature and research data and the writing of the dissertation. Students must register for this course in any term when engaged in formal preparation of the doctoral dissertation; however, twenty credit hours are the maximum applicable toward the degree. P. IC.

CIB 101. Social Determinants of Health and Evidence-based Medicine. 1 credit.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on the topics of Social Determinants of Health and Evidence-based Medicine. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 103. Foundational Science. 5 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on Foundational Science topics. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 105. Immunology, Blood and Lymphoreticular System. 5 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on the topics related to Immunology, and the Blood and Lymphoreticular System. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 107. Integumentary System, Musculoskeletal System, Head and Neck. 7 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on topics related to the Integumentary System, the Musculoskeletal System and Head and Neck. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 109. Neuroscience. 8 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on topics related to Neuroscience. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 111. Brain and Behavior. 2 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on topics related to Neuropsychiatry. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 113. Cardiovascular System. 5 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on topics related to the Cardiovascular System. P. Admission to Medical School.

CIB 115. Pulmonary System. 3 credits.

Each Clinically Integrated Block will be topic-centered with vertical integration across all disciplines, inclusive of Medical Science Disciplines, Personal and Professional Development Disciplines and Clinical Skills Training Disciplines. This Clinically Integrated Block is centered on topics related to the Pulmonary System. P. Admission to Medical School.

DCM 301. Dimensions of Clinical Medicine. 2 credits.

This course is designed as an experience to provide a forum to cover topics critical to the clinical practice of the art of medicine. Presentations and lectures will focus on medical concerns related to current issues such as evidence-based medicine, integrative medicine, patient safety, legal topics, and other relevant topics.

DCM 301A. Dimensions of Clinical Medicine. 0 credits.

This course is designed as an experience to provide a forum to cover topics critical to the clinical practice of the art of Medicine. Presentations and lectures will focus on medical concerns related to current issues such as evidence-based medicine, patient safety, legal topics, and other relevant topics.

DER 333. Dermatology. 2 credits.

This elective will introduce third year students to the field of Dermatology. The student should come to understand what dermatologists do and where they fit in the field of medicine. The student will recognize how the fields of internal medicine, surgery and pathology are all integral parts of dermatology and what the limits of dermatologists are in each area. He/she will also recognize that the diagnosis of certain skin disorders may point to other underlying medical conditions that dictate the need for further evaluation and possible consultation. There should be a clear understanding of ways to distinguish between benign and malignant skin growths. Also, the small number of life threatening dermatoses should be known.

DER 334. Dermatology. 2 credits.

This elective will expose the student to the full range of dermatologic services including General Medical Dermatology, Dermatologic Surgery, Cosmetic Dermatology, and Dermatology. The student will spend time during the elective with Dermatologists who specialize in each of the areas listed above. The student will be required to read each day/evening on a variety of dermatologic topics. Opportunities for special study and clinical research (i.e. case reports) will be available.

EME 333. Emergency Medicine. 2 credits.

This elective will give students exposure to the facets of the subspecialties that are combined in the acute care management and critical care of the emergency patient.

EME 334. Emergency Medicine. 2 credits.

In this rotation, the students will participate as a member of a team in the care of patients presenting to the Emergency Department. Students are assigned patients, and follow and manage the patients during their Emergency Department visit under the direct supervision of the attending physician. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in care of traumatic injuries, multiple medical illnesses, care of the patient with obstetric and gynecologic complaints, and management of the pediatric patient. Patients seen in the Emergency Department are of all ages. This is a very busy service, managing patients with a wide range of diagnoses. Students are assigned specific work schedules that involve both day and night exposure. There is no on call time during this rotation.

FAP 301. Family Medicine Clerkship. 4-8 credits.

The Department of Family Medicine administers a four-week required Family Medicine clerkship in the third year. Students work with supervising physicians who see patients in primary care clinics for general checkups, acute complaints, and chronic medical problems. Students will independently interview, examine, and assess patients prior to seeing the patients with the physician in the ambulatory setting.

FAP 425. St. Vincent De Paul Medical & Dental Clinic. 1-5 credits.

This course is a two to four week elective in public health and community medicine for fourth year medical students with an interest in primary care medicine and the underserved. In clinic the students will have their own panel of patients while being supervised by family physicians, mostly the director, to gain experience treating the underserved with current evidence based guidelines. They will also participate in other public health related activities occurring in the clinic that can be used to aid in the healthcare delivered by the clinic or the safety net system as a whole.

FAP 435. Urgent Care. 4 credits.

The student will participate and learn about Urgent Care, which primarily involves diagnosis and treatment of acute, outpatient care to male and female patients of all ages and includes illnesses varying from common, minor ailments to stabilizing life threatening conditions until the patient is transferred to a higher level of care. Knowledge and appropriate treatment within the framework of local clinical resources are vital. Urgent Care treatment typically includes, but is not limited to patients presenting with: acute infections; acute and subacute pain; injuries/fractures; laceration repair; appropriate removal of foreign bodies; chest pain; asthma; wounds/burns; eye injuries — under the supervision of attending medical staff.

FAP 436. Rural Family Medicine Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

This is an elective which gives the student opportunities in rural family medicine. Students will work with a family physician in their clinics. The student will gain skills in diagnosis, treatment, outpatient management, and family/longitudinal care within a rural, small town context.

FAP 438. Respite Care for the Homeless. 4 credits.

The student will work directly with the Circle the City staff physician at the Circle the City Medical Respite Center. Daily activities include pre-admission evaluation of potential patients at referring hospitals, admission work-ups, and daily medical care of the patients. Students will have the opportunity for learning opportunities with members of the interdisciplinary team, including nursing, physical therapists, case managers and the staff psychiatrist.

FAP 440. Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

Inpatient Family Medicine is an elective in which the student participates as a sub-intern in the care of hospitalized Family Medicine patients. Students are assigned patients on a rotational basis and will follow their patients throughout their hospital stay, managing their care with duties and responsibilities similar to those of an intern. Patients are from the practices of family physicians on the staff, or are patients admitted from the community Family Medicine outpatient offices. The patient population provides a wide range of experience including Surgery, Pediatrics, OB-Gyn, and Geriatrics. The number of patients admitted to the service varies from 20-30 per week, with an age range from birth to 99 years. This is a busy service with a wide variety of diagnoses. There are daily teaching rounds taught by Family Medicine faculty. The student will manage the assigned hospitalized patient under the supervision of the supervising resident and the attending physician, and complete the required paperwork. Students will also attend the weekly Core Content Lecture series. The successful completion of this elective fulfills the primary care sub-internship requirement.

FAP 442. Palliative Care. 2-4 credits.

The student will learn about the basic principles of palliative and supportive care in patients with serious or life limiting illness. They will be taught how to have a holistic approach using both pharmacologic and non pharmacologic modalities when providing palliative care to patients, with emphasis not only on managing the physical components, but also emotional, spiritual and psychosocial components. The student will also learn about end of life care and effective communication with patients and their caregivers particularly surrounding delivering bad news.

FAP 442A. Palliative Care. 4 credits.

This 8-week, part-time course is intended as the clinical complement to HPE 414 over the same time period. The students will learn about the basic principles of palliative and supportive care in patients with life threatening illness. They will be taught how to have a holistic approach using both pharmacologic and non pharmacologic modalities when providing palliative care to patients, with emphasis not only on managing the physical components, but also emotional, spiritual and psychosocial components. The student will also learn about end of life care and effective communication with patients and their caregivers particularly surrounding delivering bad news.

FAP 443. Rural Family Medicine. 4 credits.

The Rural Medicine elective is a 4 week course that provides a comprehensive learning experience in a rural setting and allows students to work with rural populations. Student experiences include providing patient care in an outpatient clinic setting. The student will gain knowledge and competence in rural Family Medicine through a comprehensive approach to the medical, psychosocial and economic factors affecting rural populations. P. Successful completion of third year of medical school.

FAP 444. Rural Health Care. 2-4 credits.

A clinical opportunity to learn health care in a Native American Indian Health Service Clinic.

FAP 446. Family Medicine-Solaid/Cambodia. 4 credits.

This rotation will give the student first-hand experience with issues concerning international health and development as well as patient care in a rural setting. Students will have the opportunity to work closely with the director and staff of Solaid International, a non-profit organization working in a rural area of Kampot Province, Cambodia. This will include performing health assessments and directing patients to appropriate follow-up care, if needed. Some supervised clinical work will also be done which will be in the field, though a varying amount of office clinical experience may also be part of the rotation. Students will have the opportunity to observe and directly impact the lives of many rural Cambodians, as well as learn about the multiple non-medical issues that impact health in the developing world.

FAP 460. Hospice Care Of The Terminally III. 2-4 credits.

This course is an elective which familiarizes students with hospice care. This will be accomplished by students evaluating patients for control of symptoms such as pain, nausea, vomiting, dehydration, skin care, dyspnea, constipation, cough and other physical problems associated with the terminally ill. In addition, assessment for the emotional and spiritual well-being of the patient and care-giver will be taught. The student will be involved with the patient through home visits, participating in multi-disciplinary meetings held at the hospice office, course readings and individual teaching sessions with the Course Director.

FAP 460A. Hospice for Terminal Illness. 4 credits.

This 8-week, part-time course is intended as the clinical complement to HPE 414 over the same time period. This course is an elective which familiarizes students with hospice care. This will be accomplished by students evaluating patients for control of symptoms such as pain, nausea, vomiting, dehydration, skin care, dyspnea, constipation, cough and other physical problems associated with the terminally ill. In addition, assessment for the emotional and spiritual well-being of the patient and care-giver will be taught. The student will be involved with the patient through home visits, participating in multi-disciplinary meetings held at the hospice office, course readings and individual teaching sessions with the Course Director.

FAP 461. Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-internship. 2-4 credits.

The student will manage assigned hospitalized patients with supervision during this selective and will master the skills needed to assess, diagnose, and manage common inpatient illnesses. Educational goals of this course are to assist the student to integrate the clinical data gained from each inpatient into a diagnosis and comprehensive treatment plan that also exhibits the students knowledge and skills to provide continuity of care, clinical reasoning skills, health promotion through patient education, and the provision of humanistic and ethical care in a family medicine hospital setting.

FAP 461A. Inpatient Family Medicine Sub-Internship. 2 credits.

The student will manage assigned hospitalized patients with supervision during this selective and will master the skills needed to assess, diagnose, and manage common inpatient illnesses. Educational goals of this course are to assist the student to integrate the clinical data gained from each inpatient into a diagnosis and comprehensive treatment plan that also exhibits the students knowledge and skills to provide continuity of care, clinical reasoning skills, health promotion through patient education, and the provision of humanistic and ethical care in a family medicine hospital setting.

FAP 462. Rural Family Medicine Sub-internship. 4 credits.

This selective gives the student opportunities in rural family medicine. The department of family medicine has a number of practitioners in western lowa, western and central Nebraska, and eastern Wyoming who serve as preceptors. Students will work with a family physician on primarily an outpatient basis in their clinics. There will be inpatient and on-call experiences as well. The student will gain skills in diagnosis, treatment, outpatient management, and family/longitudinal care within a rural, small town context. The student will be assigned selected outpatients and inpatients to medically evaluate under the supervision of the assigned rural physician; complete required paperwork, and participate in other patient reviews as indicated by the rural preceptor.

FAP 464. Private Family Medicine. 2-4 credits.

In this elective, students are assigned to a specific family practitioner who has been approved by the Department for senior electives. The student follows all hospital patients of the individual physician and spends clinical time in the practitioner's office. The student will be assigned selected outpatients and inpatients to medically evaluate under the supervision of the assigned physician; complete required paperwork, and participate in other patient reviews as indicated by the preceptor. The goal of this course is to assist the student to integrate the informational data gained from all types of patients into a diagnosis and comprehensive treatment plan that also exhibits the student's knowledge and skills to provide continuity of care, promote health through patient education, and provide humanistic and ethical care in a private family medicine physician office setting.

FAP 469. Family Medicine Capstone. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the capstone family medicine curriculum in the final block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will include a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, procedure development, as well as hands-on patient care sessions.

FAP 476. Family Medicine Capstone (PRC). 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the capstone family medicine curriculum in the final block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will include a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, procedure development, as well as hands-on patient care sessions.

FAP 480. Longitudinal COPC Public Health Endowed Research Summer Assistantship. 1-8 credits.

This eight week summer assistantship will expose the student to the COPC process and improve their knowledge about health disparity issues. After the selection process, the student will be asked to either identify a research question that they have developed that fits the COPC model and seeks to research a health disparity issue in an underserved population. Instead, if the student chooses they can choose from a list of ongoing faculty COPC research projects. The student then will submit the research proposal, in conjunction with the grant faculty to the IRB for their approval. The student will participate, as part of the assistantship, in a orientation program in May at the end of their M1 year that will introduce them to the COPC research model and be given an overview of the faculty's expectations for this project Once the research question is selected and approved by the IRB, the student will begin to enroll subjects into the research program. It is the expectation of this project that the student will continue to work on the research question and enrolling evaluable subjects past the 8 week assistantship on a longitudinal basis. It is also an expectation that the student will culminate their research activity by taking FAP481 in their M4 year in order to finish analyzing and writing their manuscript.

FAP 481. Longitudinal COPC Public Health Endowed Research. 4 credits.

This is an elective that will complete the Longitudinal COPC Public Health Research Assistantship (FAP 480) that the student began during the summer between their M1 and M2 years. The student will be able to finalize their data analysis and manuscript/abstract/poster presentation during this month. The student will work closely with their research faculty mentor in order to complete their research findings and have their work ready for a regional or national presentation. It is expected that the student will present their work to a Specialty Society National Conference, the Midwest Research Forum, the COPC Common Ground meeting, etc.

FAP 498. Family Practice Extramural. 1-8 credits.

FAP 795. Independent Study in Family Medicine. 2-4 credits.

FAP 798. Directed Independent Study FAP. 1-4 credits.

GRS 591. Guided Research Selective I. 0.5 credits.

This course includes a general introduction to research and offers students an opportunity to explore their individual interests. Students will be guided to discover research opportunities, write a grant proposal, obtain IRB approval, and begin to build a research portfolio. Bench, clinical, translational, and public health research opportunities will be available. P. Admission to Medical School.

GRS 592. Guided Research Selective II. 0.5 credits.

This course will allow students to continue the work that they started in GRS 591. At the completion of GRS 592, students will be expected to have a poster, presentation, or to have submitted their work for publication. P. GRS 591.

HPE 403. Justice in Research Ethics. 4 credits.

HPE 405. Special Topics in Health Care Ethics and Health Policy. 1-8 credits.

Students interested in this elective should have a particular topic in healthcare ethics or health policy they would like to pursue in an in-depth study not available in everyday undergraduate medical preparation.

HPE 406. Justice in Health Care. 1-8 credits.

This elective picks up on two recent trends. First, Catholic hospitals and other health care facilities experience an increasing pressure on their identity as a result of market forces. What does it mean nowadays to be a Catholic health care facility? Particularly, what does it mean positively, for example, in terms of justice? Second, the Jesuit colleges and universities that educate the next generations of health care providers face a similar challenge: Is the education these students receive different from the education students elsewhere receive and, if so, how does this difference relate to the identity of the Jesuit university.

HPE 407. Evaluating Patients Best Interests. 1-8 credits.

This elective will offer students an opportunity to examine this most fundamental aspect of the physician-patient relationship. We will focus on the notion of 'empathy' in medicine, and borrow from both philosophy and psychology to reach a better understanding of this communicative process.

HPE 409. Special Topics in Healthcare Ethics and Health Policy. 1-8 credits.

Students who enroll in this elective will explore their interests in interdisciplinary healthcare ethics and humanities topics that are typically unavailable in medical education curricula. With guidance from the course director, students will develop an article of professional publication quality.

HPE 410. Special Topics in Mental Health Policy and Ethics. 1-8 credits. Students who enroll in this elective will explore their interests in mental health policy and ethics topics that are typically unavailable in medical education curricula. With guidance from the course director, students will develop an article of professional publication quality.

HPE 412. Clinical Moral Perception, Art, and Medicine. 4 credits.

Students who enroll in this elective will cultivate these skills by exploring art, narrative, and related interdisciplinary healthcare ethics and humanities topics. With guidance from the course director and Joslyn Museum staff, students will compile a journal. With guidance from the course director, students will also write an article. Required materials are a notebook (paper or electronic) to bring to the museum. A purpose of this course is to offer students opportunities to experience art, reflect on their futures as physicians, resonate with the humanities and visual art in this phase of their professional development, internalize the humanistic impulses of artists whose work is represented in the Joslyn, critically appraise their own patterns of perception, and relate their own sensitivities to their relationships with patients, patients' loved ones, and colleagues.

HPE 414. Ethical Aspects of End-of-Life Care. 4 credits.

This course has been designed to be taken together with either FAP 442A - Palliative Care (PRC) or FAP 460A - Hospice Care of the Terminally III (OMA) to achieve a full-time enrollment. January/February only. The possibilities of modern medicine to extend people's lives are considerable and are generally much appreciated. But these advances have also evoked ever more ethical quandaries. Patients have begun to decline the available life-extending interventions or even request euthanasia. Medicine, health care, and society more in general, appear unable to balance quantity of life gained with quality of life considerations. On top of that, the expenses of end-of-life care are very high and continue to rise. This course provides students with an opportunity to examine a variety of end-of-life care practices from an ethical perspective, including forgoing life-sustaining interventions, PAS and euthanasia, palliative care and terminal sedation as well as decision making for incompetent patients at the end of life. Students will be challenged to reflect on and examine their own views on disabilities, aging and dying; examine the merits of legislation and policy development in the area of end of life health care; and consider ways in which society at large can come to truly appreciate those who are dying in our midst.

HPE 416. Special Topics in Health Ecology and the Roles of Physicians. 1-5 credits.

This Special Topics Course is designed to help interested students explore questions such as but not necessarily limited to these: What are possible roles of physicians and other healthcare professionals in motivating ecological understandings of human health and flourishing? How ought we go about the project of transforming public debates to generate innovation in our ethical approaches to health stewardship and ecological stewardship? Which features of ethical deliberation about healthcare and the environment are most in need of transformation and why? Which ethical values are most critical for thinking powerfully about our obligations as individuals and as collectives to motivate conditions that support health?

IDC 000. Study Abroad. 0-12 credits.

IDC 101. Molecular and Cell Biology. 9 credits.

The overall goal of this course is to provide the student with a comprehensive understanding of the fundamentals of molecular and cellular biology that serve as the foundation of modern medicine. This course is one of the fundamental building blocks of the medical school curriculum. The curriculum is based in large part on the organ systems approach which will begin in the second half of the spring semester and continue through the second year. This will lead to clinical experiences in your third and fourth years for which you will need a solid foundation in the biomedical sciences. Knowledge of basic molecular and cell biology as it relates to cell, tissue and organ structure and function is a prerequisite for both the other basic science courses, and the more clinical subjects that comprise our medical curriculum. The course faculty come from different disciplines and were brought together to present a coherent introduction to the cellular processes at the foundation of medicine. We want the course to provide the information necessary for a clear understanding of the following general subject areas: Cell and tissue structure, Cell function, Genetic information flow, Protein structure and function, Fuel metabolism, Metabolic building blocks, Cellular mechanisms in response to cell death and disease, Inflammation and cellular repair, Human genetics and developmental biology, Neoplasia, Hemodynamic derangements and shock. Historically, these were very different subject areas; but they now have so much in common that it is desirable and logical to present them in a single course. For administrative purposes, the course has been divided into four sections: Unit I-Histology and Proteins/Enzymes, Unit II-Molecular and Cell Biology, Unit III-Metabolism, Unit IV-Molecular and Cellular Pathology.

IDC 103. Anatomy. 6 credits.

Successful completion of the Medical Gross Anatomy course results in a firm knowledge of human anatomy that is based on correlation with current medical practice (medical knowledge). The process of gaining the didactic information and integrating it with eventual patient care is accomplished largely in the laboratory. Students who have worked in small groups with their "first patient" will have honed aspects of professionalism, interpersonal, written and verbal communication skills as well as the manual and perceptual skills necessary for many medical examination and procedural skills. Ethical and sensitive treatment of the bodies, the information gleaned from them, and the families of the donors will further incorporate the Ignatian values that are summarized in the phrase "men and women for and with others". This course focuses on the structure of the human body and anatomic principles which provide the basis for physical examination and much of the diagnosis and therapy used in clinical practice. Nearly one third of the allotted course time is spent in lectures which have a strong audiovisual component. The balance of the time is shared between cadaver dissection and clinical correlations. The course incorporates basic organogenesis (development of organs) exclusive of the central nervous system. Radiological components stress three-dimensional aspects of clinical anatomy. At the end of the dissection experience students are responsible for a report summarizing general pathological findings.

IDC 105. Principles of Pharmacology. 1 credit.

The goal of Principles of Pharmacology is to facilitate student learning of principles that are fundamental to understanding drug action and the development of new drug therapy. The overall goal of Principles of Pharmacology is to introduce the students to the principles of pharmacokenetics, pharmacodynamics, drug metabolism, and factors that influence drug response, and principles in the development/ evaluation/control of various therapeutic agents. This course will provide the foundations for a more detailed discussion of individual drugs in drug classes during the individual systems courses. The course will be presented using didactic lectures and small group discussion sessions.

IDC 107. Principles of Microbiology. 1 credit.

At the end of this course the student will have been provided with the information to have a clear understanding of the following general areas: microbial cell structure and function including bacteria, fungi, and protozoa of clinical importance; bacterial genetics and regulation; viral structure, multiplication and genetics; and basic concepts in pathogenesis. This is an introductory course for first year medical students to learn the principles of microbiology. The course will introduce students to the fascinating world of micro-organisms and to prepare them for a lifetime of learning microbiology in relation to medicine and infectious diseases. In the recent past major advances have been made in understanding the structure, physiology, and genetics of microbes. It is this understanding that has allowed us insight into the processes whereby microbial pathogens cause disease in humans.

IDC 109. Host Defense. 3 credits.

The goal of the course is to develop an understanding of antigen recognition, development of B and T cells, constitutive host defenses, immunopathology, inflammation, transplantation, allergy, and tumor immunology. This will be accomplished using a mixture of lecture presentations, various interactive learning strategies including computeraided-instruction and case-based discussions. This is an introductory course for first year medical students to learn the principles of medical microbiology and immunology. This course will emphasize the relationship of immunology and human disease as well as the biological mechanisms utilized by the immune system. The course is composed of lectures, tutorials, computer-based cases, multidisciplinary quizzes and a final exam.

IDC 111. Neuroscience. 7 credits.

The goal of Neuroscience is to understand normal neurological function (using neuroanatomy, neurophysiology, neuropharmacology, neuropathology, and clinical neurology) and then to be able to use a patient's symptoms to locate the source of the problem within the nervous system. Perhaps the most complex and intimidating area of medicine is that of the human brain and nervous system. Neuroanatomy has been traditionally a course with an incredible amount of memorization which is easily forgotten as time passes. The key to retention is understanding the relevance of what you have learned and using that information as a physician uses that information. The heart of this course in Neuroscience is to structure the learning of the material around the neurological clinical method of regional anatomical diagnosis. Not only will you learn the factual material, but you will use it as you learn how to think as a neurologist in approaching clinical problems. The course will integrate basic science and clinical science. Your mentors will be clinical and basic scientists who will teach in both realms. Neuroanatomy, neurophysiology, neuropathology, neuropharmacology, and neurology have been integrated as much as possible and will be interwoven with each other throughout the course.

IDC 135. Ethical and Legal Topics in Clinical Medicine. 3 credits.

The ultimate motivation for all physicians must be the welfare of each patient. Jesuit teaching holds that clinical decision making must not be based upon medical factors alone, but on ethical standards as well. Each physician must develop well-grounded, practical ethical standards to guide their decision making. This course recognizes that each student brings values and beliefs from his/her family upbringing, religion, culture, education, and personal experience. During the semester, students will evaluate and augment these beliefs. The Course will provide a background of basic ethical and legal principles within a framework of clinical problems which commonly confront practitioners on a day to day basis. Students will gain knowledge and skills in the evaluation of ethical issues consistent with prudent ethical and legal guidelines. Students will accomplish these goals through didactic lectures, small group discussions, independent study (readings), and scholarly writing. This course introduces students to the basic constraints and methods of ethical analysis and moral reasoning, with emphasis on their application to key ethical issues in health care practice and policy. Special attention is given to the role of the physician and the opportunities and challenges to the ethical practice of medicine in today's society.

IDC 136. Introduction to Clinical Skills. 4 credits.

The Introduction to Clinical Skills course is a two-semester offering which introduces the first-year medical student to the medical interview and the physical examination of patients. Students will gain competency in these fundamental clinical skills through a variety of educational media—readings, lectures, demonstrations, films, and practice in both interviewing and physical exam skills. Practice sessions will enable students to learn and improve their skills with fellow students, with patient simulator models, and with Standardized Patients (SPs), that is, persons who are trained to play the role of patients with physical and psychiatric illnesses and medical histories.

IDC 136A. Introduction to Clinical Skills A. 0 credits.

The Introduction to Clinical Skills course is a two-semester offering which introduces the first-year medical student to them edical interview and the physical examination of patients. Students will gain competency in these fundamental clinical skills through a variety of educational media—readings, lectures, demonstrations, films, and practice in both interviewing and physical exam skills.

IDC 138. Evidence Based Medicine. 1 credit.

The goal of the course is to start the student on the process of incorporating Evidence Based Medicine into their clinical decision making and in preparation for USMLE Step. This is an introductory course for first year medical students to develop an understanding of and skills in the use of Evidence Based Medicine. It is composed of lectures, a computer lab, small group sessions, guizzes and a final exam.

IDC 140. Behavioral Medicine I. 3 credits.

The Behavioral Medicine I course presents an introduction to a variety of concept areas in the behavioral sciences and behavioral medicine. The course's purpose is to provide students with an understanding of: The course of human development, including the stages of growth and change in many domains of human functioning; Normal human behavior in health, in illness, and in situations of challenges and difficulty; The challenges and pressures of work as a medical student and physician, and recommendations for methods of coping, succeeding, and flourishing in one's training and one's career as a physician. These understandings will serve as a foundation of knowledge for the students as they move from education and training in medicine to: Interacting with patients in the doctor-patient relationship; Diagnosing and treating diverse individuals with sensitivity and concern in a variety of serious contacts with persons seeking medical and psychiatric help for themselves and their family members; Recognizing the difficult challenges that patients face, which can enable them to work with patients in partnership, helping them to cope with and adapt to the vicissitudes of medical treatment and recovery. Four major themes in the Behavioral Medicine I course will provide students with a perspective that will enable them to accomplish the course purposes and integrate them into their own perspectives: Theories of development, including the bio psychosocial dynamic Stages and domains of normal growth and development. The individual's psychological, emotional, and behavioral reactions to challenges and problems that occur during the life cycle. The threat of violence and abuse in the lives of individuals and families.

IDC 141. Creighton Medical Humanities. 1 credit.

In the first year the focus will be on the Mission of the Jesuits and the Sisters of Mercy as it applies to Creighton University, School of Medicine, and our two affiliate hospitals. The second year of the course will focus on "Cura Personalis," or the care of the whole person as it applies to the patients they begin to see in the clinic. The third year will focus on "Magis," or "Greater" as students reflect on how to provide the best service possible to our patient population. The fourth year will focus on "Men and Women for Others," or seeing medical education as a tool to be used in service of others.

IDC 142. Physician Lifestyle Management. 1 credit.

By participating in classes and activities, students will have the opportunity to learn about and develop in various areas of lifestyle management that contribute to becoming a successful physician, including; self-knowledge, study skills, career development, financial management, professionalism and leadership. M1s will participate in the following: Myers-Briggs Administration and Interpretation, Productivity and Environmental Survey Preferences Administration and Interpretation, Vital Signs Mentoring Program Kick-off, Vital Signs Group Meeting, Vital Signs 1:1 Meeting (2X), Careers in Medicine Introduction, Wellness Lecture, Financial Advising, Professionalism Lecture. The Physician Lifestyle Management is a year-long course combines a number of mandatory events, lectures and experiences into a course that is focused on the professional development of medical students. Four specific areas of development will be explored within the course content; 1) Professionalism, 2) Career Development, 3) Personal Growth and 4) Leadership Development. Students will participate in educational experiences in each of these four areas.

IDC 142A. Physicians Lifestyle Management A. 0 credits.

IDC 183. The Healer's Art. 1 credit.

The Healer's Art Course is a medical school curriculum designed by Rachel Remen, M.D. The course's innovative educational strategy is based on a discovery model. The Healer's Art Course addresses one of the hidden crises in medicine: the growing loss of meaning and commitment experienced by physicians nationwide under the stress of today's healthcare system. The course consists of five three hour evening sessions spaced two weeks apart, each divided into large-group and small group experiences.

IDC 201. Cardiovascular System. 5 credits.

The course teaches the normal histology, embryology and physiology of the cardio-vascular system, integrated with a consideration of cardiovascular abnormalities and appropriate therapy for these conditions. The 4 semester hour interdisciplinary course surveys normal and abnormal function of the cardiovascular system. In conjunction with a discussion of the normal structure and function of the cardiovascular system, students learn the pathophysiology and pathology of the common disorders of the heart and vascular structures. Students also study the pharmacology and therapeutic principles of the common agents used in cardiovascular medicine. Clinical skill instruction includes interpretation of electrocardiograms, echocardiograms, and auscultation of the heart. Students also work through a series of clinical cases gaining experience in developing a differential diagnosis and management plan.

IDC 203. Respiratory System. 3 credits.

The course will teach you the anatomy and physiology of the lungs and airways as well as the diagnosis and treatment of medical problems of the respiratory system including asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, neoplasm, thrombosis, and neonatal respiratory problems. This three credit interdisciplinary course surveys normal and abnormal function of the respiratory system. After a discussion of the embryology and the normal structure and function of the upper and lower respiratory system, you will study the pathology and pathophysiology and the common disorders of the respiratory system and the pharmacology and therapeutic principles of the common agents used in respiratory medicine. The course includes an introduction to environmental respiratory diseases. Clinical skill instruction includes pulmonary function measurement. Through study of clinical cases, you'll gain experience in developing a differential diagnosis and management plan.

IDC 205. Renal-Urinary System. 3 credits.

The course teaches the anatomy and physiology of the kidney and urinary systems and the physiology of body fluid and electrolyte homeostasis. Additionally, it introduces the diagnosis and treatment of medical problems of the renal and urinary system including fluid and electrolyte disorders, glomerular and non-glomerular kidney disorders, acid-base disorders, chronic renal failure, renal and urinary tract neoplasm, voiding disorders, and renal stone disease. This three credit interdisciplinary course surveys the normal functions and diseases of the kidney and urinary bladder. Phase 1 focuses on core concepts related to body fluids and normal human renal anatomy, histology, embryology and physiology. Phase 2 then builds upon this core knowledge by discussing renal pathophysiology, the tools utilized for clinical diagnosis of renal disease, the structural and functional manifestation of prevalent causes of renal disease, and the therapeutic strategies and pharmaceutical agents used by clinical nephrologists to treat renal diseases. Phase 3 switches the focus to the anatomy, structure, function, pathologies, and dysfunction of the urinary tract, and the therapeutic strategies and pharmaceutical agents used by clinical urologists to treat these diseases.

IDC 207. Hematology-Oncology. 3 credits.

The course goal is to develop a basic understanding of the normal structure and function of the components of the hematopoietic system including red blood cells, white blood cells and platelets. This course surveys the neoplastic and non-neoplastic disorders of the red blood cells, white blood cells and platelets and the basic principles of common laboratory techniques used in diagnosing hematopoietic disorders. Additionally this course discusses the molecular basis of neoplasia, indications and toxicity of chemotherapeutic agents used in oncology. This 3-semester hour course covers the normal and abnormal aspects of the hematopoietic system including anatomy, physiology, pathology, and clinical disorders of blood cells, bone marrow, lymph nodes, spleen and other lymphoid tissues. Other topics covered include hemostasis, thrombosis, cancer chemotherapy and transfusion medicine and an introduction to the discipline of oncology. This course is divided into 4 blocks as follows:Block 1: RBC & Anemia: This block includes a phlebotomy lab and a histology lab. Block 2: Platelets & Coagulation: This block includes a microscope session and review of peripheral blood smear.Block 3: WBC/Leukemia/Lymphoma & Oncology: This block includes a histology lab. Block 4: Cancer Chemotherapy & Transfusion Medicine: This block includes a Histopathology lab.

IDC 209. Gastrointestinal System. 3 credits.

The course teaches the normal histology, embryology and physiology of the gastrointestinal system, integrated with a consideration of gastrointestinal system abnormalities and appropriate therapy for these conditions. This three week interdisciplinary course consists of lectures, laboratories, small group discussions and a multi-disciplinary conference that provide learning experiences on the anatomy, histology, physiology, pathology and basic clinical medicine of the gastrointestinal system. It begins with embryology of the gastrointestinal system and progresses from the oral cavity distally through the gastrointestinal tract, combining basic sciences with relevant clinical material.

IDC 211. Musculoskeletal-Integument System. 2 credits.

The course teaches the normal histology, embryology and physiology of the musculo-skeletal-integument systems, integrated with a consideration of musculo-skeletal-integument abnormalities and appropriate therapy for these conditions. This is a two semester hour course in the second year of the medical curriculum containing instruction in the normal functions and diseases of the musculoskeletal and integumentary systems. The course will cover the normal histology, embryology and function of the two systems integrated with a consideration of musculoskeletal/integumentary abnormalities and appropriate therapy for these conditions. The course will consist of didactic instruction, clinical discussion, small group discussions, and a multidisciplinary conference. Reading assignments are meant as preparation for lectures and should be completed before class. Additional reading may be assigned at the beginning of each lecture.

IDC 216. Endocrine-Reproductive System. 4 credits.

The course teaches the normal histology, embryology and physiology of the endocrine and reproductive systems, integrated with a consideration of endocrine/reproductive abnormalities and appropriate therapy for these conditions. This four week interdisciplinary course consists of lectures, laboratories, small group discussions and multi-disciplinary conferences that provide learning experiences on the anatomy, histology, physiology, pathology, and basic clinical medicine of the endocrine and reproductive systems. The first seven days focus on endocrine systems, beginning with the hypothalamic/pituitary axis, and continuing with the adrenal gland, calcium homeostasis, thyroid gland, the endocrine pancreas and homeostatic control of metabolism. Then, the focus shifts to male and female reproductive systems, including normal pregnancy and delivery and diseases of reproductive organs.

IDC 222. Physician Lifestyle Management. 1 credit.

By participating in classes and activities, students will have the opportunity to learn about and develop in various areas of lifestyle management that contribute to becoming a successful physician, including; self-knowledge, study skills, career development, financial management, professionalism and leadership. The Physician Lifestyle Management is a year-long course combines a number of mandatory events, lectures and experiences into a course that is focused on the professional development of medical students. Four specific areas of development will be explored within the course content: Professionalism, Career Development, Personal Growth and Leadership Development. Students will participate in educational experiences in each of these four areas.

IDC 222A. Physicians Lifestyle Mgmt A. 0 credits.

The Physician Lifestyle Management courses are two semester-long courses, that comprise a number of mandatory events, lectures and experiences focused on the professional development of medical students. Four specific areas of development are explored: 1) Professionalism, 2) Career Development, 3) Personal Growth and 4) Leadership Development. By participating in classes and activities, students have the opportunity to learn about and develop lifestyle management competencies that contribute to becoming a successful physician, including: self-knowledge, study skills, career development, financial management, professionalism and leadership.

IDC 233. Infectious Diseases. 4 credits.

Worldwide, infections cause more morbidity and mortality than any other disease, and increases in world travel now result in the transport of patients with exotic infections to our clinic doorstep. This course will help students understand the structures of individual organisms, their pathogenic potential, and diagnosis and treatment of the diseases they cause. It is also meant to set the stage and serve as a basis for understanding the infections taught in subsequent M2 system courses and encountered during clinical rotations. This unit on Infectious Diseases is one of the first courses for second year medical students. The course uses lectures, laboratory exercises, and small group cases to help the students become familiar with the pathogenesis, epidemiology, diagnosis, treatment, and prevention of important bacterial, viral, fungal, and parasitic infectious diseases.

IDC 243. Behavioral Medicine II. 3 credits.

The course goal is to enable students to gain a foundation of knowledge of DSM-5 psychiatric disorders for interacting with, assessing, diagnosing, and treating patients with psychiatric illnesses; to increase student understanding of, and ability to manage, the emotional, behavioral, psychiatric, and communications aspects of the clinical encounter with patients, and thereby prepare students for their clinical clerkships. The course Behavioral Medicine II presents a series of lectures, with Problem-Based Learning cases, and required reading. The central purpose of the course is to enable students to understand the biological and psychosocial origins of psychiatric syndromes, their definitions and symptom features, and diagnostic criteria, as delineated in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders- 5th edition (DSM-5). Students will be gain an understanding of the role of genetics, growth and development, environmental and psychosocial risk factors, and personality as parts of the complex process that eventuates in psychiatric disorder in some individuals. Students will gain a foundation of knowledge for assessing patients for psychiatric illness, interacting with them comfortably, diagnosing psychiatric illness, and making recommendations for pharmacological treatment and psychological therapies. In addition to lectures, Behavioral Medicine II will focus on two Problem-Based Learning cases to present a virtual patient for assessment, diagnosis, and treatment, with each case meeting for two sessions. In addition, there will be a small group discussion of a notable short memoir of psychiatric illness, Darkness Visible, written by the late novelist, William Styron. The Behavioral Medicine II course allows students to apply knowledge gained in the first year in the Behavioral Medicine I course - the biopsychosocial systems perspective, human development, cognitive and emotional functioning, and normal human behavior. The readings and Problem-Based-Learning (PBL) cases assume knowledge in those areas, increase the ability to integrate knowledge of normal human development with psychopathology and psychiatric syndromes.

IDC 244. Multi-System Disease/Social Determinants of Health. 3 credits.

The focus of the first part of the course is about sleep and circadian rhythms, exercise, and environmental toxins, including alcohol. The next unit focuses on the medical implications of social marginalization. You will visit agencies that provide services to socially marginalized members of our community. In preparation for the site visits, you will research the populations served by the agencies. The third focus is application of behavioral and physical medicine to a variety of medical challenges, including chronic illness, chronic stress, brain injury, pain, and aging. The course ends with a special focus on Aging, organized by Dr. Viseslav Drinčić from the Department of Medicine. The Behavioral Medicine III course focuses on important and timely topics of medical concern: 1. multisystem health challenges whose effects can be ameliorated by behavioral change, including sleep disorders, sedentary lifestyle, and exposure to toxins, including alcohol. 2. the diverse social factors that impact the provision of health care, including cultural diversity, socioeconomic status (SES), poverty, and stigmatizing conditions that marginalize members of our society and predispose them to special challenges in maintaining health and receiving care. 3. coping with stress and chronic illness. 4. an introduction to care of the aging.

IDC 279. Case Studies in Medicine. 2 credits.

The course helps the student develop the analytical skills to assess patients' conditions and use clinical laboratory data to develop a differential diagnosis and treatment plan. Working as a group, students learn to work through a case from diagnosis to therapy to expected outcomes. Case Studies in Medicine is a longitudinal course (meaning that it runs concurrently with the system courses) during the second year curriculum. It consists of a series of small group case exercises and multidisciplinary conferences. The content will follow the systems courses and in that sense this course is also vertical. The students are continually assessed throughout the year.

IDC 279A. Case Studies in Medicine A. 0 credits.

The two Case Studies in Medicine courses are semester-long courses that help the student develop the analytical skills to assess pateints' conditions and to use clinical laboratory data to develop a differential diagnosis and treatment plan. Working as a team, students learn to work through a case from diagnosis to therapy to expected outcomes.

IDC 290. Applied Clinical Skills. 3 credits.

This course is designed to prepare the M2 student for the 3rd year of medical school, by developing his or her history taking, interviewing, physical exam and clinical reasoning skills. At the conclusion of this course, the student is expected to be proficient in the basic components of clinical reasoning and decision making, which include: Gathering clinical data, including conducting a patient interview, Organizing clinical data, Interpreting basic clinical data, Hypothesis generation and testing, Critical evaluation of alternative diagnostic and treatment strategies, Engaging a patient in a therapeutic alliance, Oral and written case presentations, which are important expressions of clinical reasoning skills. A clinical skill is a discrete and observable act of medical care. Clinical reasoning, as a clinical skill, is the process of making sense of a clinical encounter. Compare it to the job of a detective. When investigating a crime, the detective must pick up on clues and determine which ones are important (and which ones are not). The ability to discriminate between the two can be difficult. The best way to make this choice is through a combination of subject knowledge and experience. The mastery of good communication techniques is essential. This course is designed to introduce and reinforce the knowledge base needed to make clinical decisions and provide an opportunity to use clinical skills through interaction with experienced clinicians.

IDC 290A. Applied Clinical Skills A. 0 credits.

The two Applied Clinical Skills courses are semester-long courses, that prepare the M2 student for the 3rd year of medical school and beyond by developing his or her history taking, interviewing, physical exam and clinical reasoning skills.

IDC 299. Clinical Skills Training and Experience. 4 credits.

This course will provide learning opportunities in (1) Clinical Skills Training; (2) Ambulatory Clinical Experience; (3) Early Hospital Experience; (4) Interprofessional Education; and (5) Laboratory Experience. P. Admission to Medical School.

IDC 299A. Clinical Skills Training and Experience. 0 credits.

This course will provide learning opportunities in (1) Clinical Skills Training; (2) Ambulatory Clinical Experience; (3) Early Hospital Experience; (4) Interprofessional Education; and (5) Laboratory Experience. P. Admission to Medical School.

IDC 301. Ambulatory Primary Care Clerkship. 4-8 credits.

This eight-week clerkship is divided into two four-week components: Ambulatory Family Medicine Component and Ambulatory Internal Medicine Component. Students are divided into groups for each four-week component. Students have the option to work with a Family Medicine preceptor during your Ambulatory Internal Medicine Component. This option is only for those students who want the opportunity to work at both an urban and a rural family medicine clinic site. The student works with a rural Family Medicine preceptor during the Ambulatory Family Medicine Component and with an urban Family Medicine preceptor during the Ambulatory Internal Medicine Component.

IDC 342. Physician Lifestyle Management. 1 credit.

This course focuses on the professional development of medical students in four specific areas: 1) Professionalism, 2) Career Development, 3) Personal Growth, and 4) Leadership Development. Students participate in educational experiences in each of these four areas.

IDC 342A. Physician Lifestyle Mgmt A. 0 credits.

The Physician Lifestyle Management is a year-long course which combines a number of mandatory events, lectures and experiences focused on the professional development of medical students. Four specific areas of development will be explored with the course content: 1) Professionalism, 2) Career Development, 3) Personal Growth and 4) Leadership Development. Students will participate in educational experiences in each of these four areas.

IDC 398. USMLE Enrichment Course. 1 credit.

Medical students will be enrolled in this course after the Associate Dean for Student Affairs approves a formal program of study for USMLE Step 1 examination. This course is reserved for those students who have been unsuccessful in passing the USMLE Step 1 examination. The student will be reassigned from clinical clerkships to this independent study course. The purpose is to guide and direct the student in preparation for retaking the USMLE Step 1 toward the goal of successfully passing the exam. Satisfactory/Unsatisfactory only.

IDC 399. USMLE Enrichment. 6 credits.

IDC 405. Healthcare and Spirituality. 1-4 credits.

Spirituality has been defined as relating to, or consisting of the spirit. There is a growing appreciation that well-being is not merely the state of illness or health but rather the experience of "being well". Spirituality, while possibly a component of a person's religion, is key in the understanding of what a person's "life" means to them. This course will discuss the definition of spirituality in everyday life, in illness and in healing. This course will also address how the spirituality of the practitioner can affect the healing relationship.

IDC 410. Simulation Elective. 2-4 credits.

The student will select 10 task trainer and or simulation scenarios for the 2 week course or 20 task trainer and or simulation scenarios for the 4 week course. For each simulation event chosen the student will learn the risks and benefits of the procedure, indications and contra-indications, steps to follow to safely perform the procedure and understand the role as a physician during the procedure or scenario. Once the student has mastered the procedure he/she will record the event which will be viewed and evaluated by the course director.

IDC 412. Clinical Moral Perception, Art, and Medicine. 4 credits.

Students who enroll in this elective will cultivate these skills by exploring art, narrative, and related interdisciplinary healthcare ethics and humanities topics. With guidance from the course director and Joslyn Museum staff, students will compile a journal. With guidance from the course director, students will also write an article. Required materials are a notebook (paper or electronic) to bring to the museum. A purpose of this course is to offer students opportunities to experience art, reflect on their futures as physicians, resonate with the humanities and visual art in this phase of their professional development, internalize the humanistic impulses of artists whose work is represented in the Joslyn, critically appraise their own patterns of perception, and relate their own sensitivities to their relationships with patients, patients' loved ones, and colleagues.

IDC 413. Anatomy. 1-5 credits.

The Anatomy elective is an elective designed to allow students the opportunity to review and expand their knowledge of human gross and imaging anatomy by working on a synthetic cadaver, reviewing normal plain film, CT, ultrasound and MRI anatomy and by doing ultrasound on a partner to identify normal anatomic structures.

IDC 419. Medicine as Ministry: Death and Dying. 2 credits.

Identify how a hospital setting can better care for the whole person: body, mind and spirit. How does the approach of the physician create a more caring experience? Experience pastoral care for patients and families by shadowing hospital chaplains. Care for dying patients and families through Hospice care. Recognize the power of death to clarify values. Experience how physicians can care for themselves while caring for others.

IDC 420. Is Healthcare a Human Right?. 4 credits.

Through exposure to relevant literature and film, and through reflective writing and discussion, students will explore the effects of health policy on the patients they care for, and determine for themselves whether access to healthcare is a basic human right.

IDC 462. Medical Informatics. 4 credits.

This course will focus on how medical informatics impacts two major roles played by physicians: the role of life-long learning and the role of communicator/educator. Students will learn how to more efficiently access, use, and manage information using computer based technologies, various types of resources, and information sources.

IDC 482. Minority Health Disparities-Issues & Strategies. 2 credits.

This course explores cultural diversity and health disparities globally and locally. Through a cultural self-assessment, students explore how their own culture influences their worldview. Selected components of complex cultural environments that relate to health disparities will be analyzed. Students examine existing health disparities, systems and potential solutions. This course recognizes cultural competency as a basic requirement of any health care system and its constituents. Students will determine the importance of responding respectfully to and preserving the dignity of people of all cultures both within and outside of health and social systems.

IDC 485. LGBTQIA Health Disparities: Issues and Strategies. 2 credits.

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Transsexual, Queer, Questioning, Intersex, Intergender, Asexual/Aromantic (LGBTQIA) individuals face well-documented disparities when interacting with the health care system including: poorer access to needed care, bias and discrimination, a lack of provider knowledge and/or comfort in providing care, absent or suboptimal risk factor assessment, and medical management of diseases that is not grounded in the current evidence-based practices. These disparities can lead to unnecessary and preventable negative health outcomes. Students will examine LGBTQIA health disparities, policies, systems, and recommend possible solutions. This course recognizes the right of the LGBTQIA individuals to receive primary and comprehensive health care. Students will determine the importance of responding respectfully to and preserving the dignity of LGBTQIA community both within and outside of health and social systems.

IDC 497. Directed Independent Research. 1-8 credits.

Fourth-year medical students have the opportunity to participate in directed independent research for elective credit. The purpose of directed independent research is to explore an area of interest within and related to medicine under the supervision of a faculty member.

IDC 498. Directed Independent Study. 1-4 credits.

Fourth-year medical students have the opportunity to participate in directed independent study for elective credit. The purpose of directed independent study is to explore an area of interest within or related to medicine under the supervision of a faculty member.

IDC 601. Responsible Conduct of Research. 1 credit.

This required course for students in the graduate programs at Creighton University School of Medicine is designed to introduce fundamental concepts, principles and guidelines regarding scientific integrity in biomedical research. Through readings, lectures, and case discussion students are given an opportunity to reflect on ways in which they can help foster and maintain responsible conduct in research. They also become acquainted with existing regulations, guidelines, ethical themes and on-line resources regarding the ethics of their profession.

IDC 662. Introduction to Neurobiology. 3 credits.

This course covers anatomical, physiological, cellular, molecular, biochemical, developmental, and comparative aspects of neurobiology. Invertebrate and vertebrate model systems are presented to illustrate how the nervous system controls behavior. The communication of prevailing theories, concepts, ideas, and experimentation in verbal and written form is also an integral component of this course.

IDC 797. Summer Research Project. 1 credit.

Students work with a faculty research mentor during the spring semester to develop a research proposal that is typically carried out during the summer before Component II.

IDC 895. Dir Ind Research MD/PhD studen. 1-6 credits.

This course is designed to provide the necessary training and experience to conduct independent research toward the successful completion of a dissertation as part of the MD/PhD degree. This will be achieved through a framework independent study, readings from the literature, training in necessary laboratory techniques and proper experimental design, and performance of independent research. P. Enrollment in MD/PhD program.

MED 301. Internal Medicine Clerkship. 4,8 credits.

The Internal Medicine Clerkship is a required eight-week clinical rotation in the third year of medical school. It is composed of two four-week sessions. You will care for some very complex patients with multiple chronic and acute medical problems. You will also have the opportunity to see some esoteric and complicated tertiary care patients. The Department of Medicine views this Clerkship as integral to your development as a physician. We believe that what you will learn over the next eight weeks will be of use to you no matter what field of Medicine you ultimately choose. The scope of Internal Medicine can be daunting. We have designed the Clerkship to promote self-directed, reflective learning habits that should serve you well throughout your career. You are expected to take the initiative in all aspects of your learning. This includes actively seeking feedback, participating in discussions, sharing your knowledge with others, and of course, spending time with your patients.

MED 333. Outpatient Internal Medicine. 2 credits.

This elective will provide students with a broad experience of internal medicine in the ambulatory setting. Internists see a wide variety of patients and this elective will allow students to appreciate the importance and difficulty of caring for patients with many co-morbidities.

MED 334. Outpatient Internal Medicine. 2 credits.

This elective will provide students with a broad experience of internal medicine in the ambulatory setting. Internists see a wide variety of patients and this elective will allow students to appreciate the importance and difficulty of caring for patients with many co-morbidities.

MED 401. General Medicine Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate as a sub-intern in the care of hospitalized patients. Patients are assigned to the students on a rotational basis under the supervision of a supervisory resident and/or an attending physician. The patients are admitted from a variety of locations including community outpatient clinics, the Emergency Department, and transfers from outside hospital systems. The student will manage his or her patients throughout their hospital stay. The patient population provides a wide variety of disease processes related to internal medicine, primarily acute cardiac, pulmonary, gastrointestinal, neurological, and infectious diseases problems. The emphasis is on the initial evaluation and management of acute problems and on the appropriate use of consultative subspecialty services in definitive management. A small number of evening call assignments may be required.

MED 402. Adult Critical Care Medicine (St. Mary's Medical Center, San Francisco CA). 4 credits.

This course prepares the trainee to take on the role of the beginning intern in a critical care setting. The student will perform initial and daily patient evaluations, prepare patient care plans, document in an electronic medical record system, participate in emergent events such as Codes and Rapid-Response events, present on rounds, communicate with physicians, staff, and patients, and participate in didactic sessions.

MED 407. Internal Medicine Sub-Internship (St. Mary's Medical Center, San Francisco, CA). 4 credits.

This course prepares the trainee to fulfill the roles taken on by the beginning intern, which include performing initial and daily patient evaluations, preparing patient care plans, documenting in an electronic medical record system, presenting on rounds, communicating with physicians, staff, and patients, and participating in didactic sessions.

MED 409. General and Transplant Nephrology (PRC). 4 credits.

Students will see common renal disorders on the wards, in clinics, and in the ICUs, including acute and chronic renal failure and their associated problems, dialytic therapies, fluid and electrolyte disorders, acid-base disorders, difficult to control hypertension, as well as renal transplant management. Students will perform pertinent H&Ps and devise differential diagnoses and treatment plans.

MED 410. Pulmonary/Critical care. 4 credits.

This selective is designed to provide the student with a practical background in Pulmonary and Critical Care Medicine expanding on the knowledge gained as sophomore and junior students in the fundamentals of physical diagnosis, disease recognition, evaluation and management. Students are provided initial responsibility for evaluating primary care patients and patients seen in consultation with careful critique of their findings and close supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions.

MED 412. Pulmonary Diseases. 4 credits.

The pulmonary service is a consulting service that sees patients both in the inpatient wards and as outpatients. Students are provided initial responsibility for evaluating patients with careful critique of their findings and close supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions. Attending physicians spend approximately four hours each day with the medical students and are integrally involved in the educational process.

MED 416. Clinical Allergy/Immunology. 4 credits.

The Clinical Allergy and Immunology elective is primarily an outpatient clinic based rotation. Students will have the opportunity to participate in eight or more clinics per week at CUMC, the Veterans Administration Hospital and Ehrling Bergquist Hospital. Both pediatric and adult Allergy/Immunology is covered. It is anticipated that the student will master the basic science and clinical skills needed for the care of common allergic and immunologic diseases.

MED 417. Endocrinology, Diabetes, and Metabolism. 4 credits.

The overall goal of the course is for the student to gain proficiency in recognizing, evaluating and treating the wide variety of Endocrine, Diabetes and Bone disorders. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in diabetes, thyroid problems, hyperlipidemia, bone metabolism, osteoporosis and general endocrinology.

MED 420. Infectious Diseases. 4 credits.

This elective provides the opportunity to learn the consultation process for diagnosis and treatment of infectious diseases and to build on the foundation laid by previous courses including Medical Microbiology, Physical Diagnosis, and the Internal Medicine clerkship. The students participating in this elective are provided responsibility for evaluating patients seen in clinic or consultation with critique of their findings and supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions, own review and presentation. Each student also has the opportunity to spend time in the Microbiology Laboratory to receive more in-depth exposure to common tests used in Infectious Diseases.

MED 422. Critical Care - Renal Medicine. 4 credits.

The purpose of this selective in renal medicine is to familiarize the students with common renal disorders seen in everyday clinical practice in the wards, clinics and in the ICUs. These include acute and chronic renal failure and their associated problems including dialytic therapies, fluid and electrolyte disorders, acid base disorders, difficult to control hypertension in different clinical settings as well as renal transplant management. The students are required to perform a pertinent history and physical exam as well as prepare differential diagnosis and treatment plans. At the end of course, students should feel comfortable with assessing and managing patients with common renal disorders.

MED 427. Genitourinary Oncology. 1-5 credits.

The student will be assigned to the outpatient Genitourinary Oncology clinic at UACC. Working alongside a full-time faculty member, and with nurse practitioners, rotating house staff, nurses, and other health care personnel of the inter-disciplinary team, the student will gain experience with the diagnosis and management of patients with GU malignancies.

MED 428. Geriatrics. 2,4 credits.

An intro to Geriatrics including office practice, nursing home work, and hospice.

MED 429. Ignatian Spirituality in Palliative Medicine. 2 credits.

This is a two-week elective in palliative medicine with an emphasis on reflective practice to meet holistic needs of patients with complex suffering. The course will use reflective writing exercises to explore spirituality and medicine. Students will participate in clinical practice that recognizes, listens to, and compassionately responds to spiritual and existential dimensions of suffering.

MED 430. Hospice and Palliative Care. 4 credits.

This elective will introduce the student to the field of hospice and palliative care. Based on the student's interest, emphasis can be provided in a community setting with hospice teams or in an acute care setting on the palliative inpatient consult service at Creighton University Medical Center Bergan Mercy. Students will explore these related fields using the National Coalition for Hospice and Palliative Care's guidelines which detail various "domains" of care.

MED 431. Dermatology. 4 credits.

In this elective, the student should come to understand what dermatologists do and where they fit in the field of medicine. The student will recognize how the fields of internal medicine, surgery and pathology are all integral parts of dermatology and what the limits of dermatologist are in each area. He/she will also recognize that the diagnosis of certain skin disorders may point to other underlying medical conditions that dictate the need for further evaluation and possible consultation. Students will develop a clear understanding of ways to distinguish between benign and malignant skin growths. Also, the small number of life threatening dermatoses should be known. Students learn technique in local anesthesia, cryotherapy and cutaneous surgeries including laser surgery. There are assigned and directed readings regarding interesting patients in this elective.

MED 433. Dermatology. 1-5 credits.

This month long elective will expose the student to the full range of dermatologic services including General Medical Dermatology, Dermatologic Surgery, Cosmetic Dermatology, and Dermatology. The student will spend time during the elective with Dermatologists who specialize in each of the areas listed above. The student will be required to read each day/evening on a variety of dermatologic topics. Opportunities for special study and clinical research (i.e. case reports) will be available.

MED 435. Medical Hematology/Oncology/Palliative Care. 2-4 credits.

Students taking this rotation will learn about palliative and supportive care for cancer patients, end of life care, and be given instruction in patient physician communication. With staff supervision, students may be able to do bone marrow aspiration, biopsy and daily didactic sessions with faculty covering a wide variety of hematological, oncological and supportive care topics. Patients with cancer, anemia, and bleeding disorders offer the student a unique opportunity to gain valuable experiences, not only in cancer management, but also in general medicine.

MED 435A. Medical Hematology/Oncology/Palliative Care. 2 credits.

Students taking this rotation will learn about palliative and supportive care for cancer patients, end of life care, and be given instruction in patient physician communication. With staff supervision, students may be able to do bone marrow aspiration, biospy and daily didactic sessions with faculty covering a wide variety of hematological, oncological and supportive care topics. Patients with cancer, anemia, and bleeding disorders offer the student a unique opportunity to gain valuable experiences, not only in cancer management, but also in general medicine.

MED 436. Research in Med Hem/Onc/Palliative Care and Primer in Bio-Stats. 4 credits.

The research component of student training are designed to establish competency in the design, conduct, interpretation and presentation of research by requiring the student to complete at least one major project and to participate in additional projects time permitting. Students learn clinical research methods which includes cancer outcomes and statistical analysis. Data interpretation along with presentation in various formats i.e., abstracts, posters and articles will be done.

MED 439. Emergency Medicine. 4 credits.

In this rotation, the students will participate as a member of a team in the care of patients presenting to the Emergency Department. Students are assigned patients, and follow and manage the patients during their Emergency Department visit under the direct supervision of the attending physician. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in care of traumatic injuries, multiple medical illnesses, care of the patient with obstetric and gynecologic complaints, and management of the pediatric patient. Patients seen in the Emergency Department are of all ages. This is a very busy service, managing patients with a wide range of diagnoses. Students are assigned specific work schedules that involve both day and night exposure. There is no on call time during this rotation.

MED 442. Inpatient Cardiology. 4 credits.

In this course, the student will come to appreciate the full breadth of cardiovascular diagnostic techniques and management of patients with cardiac disease. This elective is divided into four one-week blocks in which the student can choose electives. Each student who signs up for this course will be assigned two consecutive weeks on the inpatient service as a member of the team and will be responsible for the care of the patients admitted to the CCU and Cardiovascular services at Bergan and CUMC. The senior students will be assigned patients and will be responsible for the assessment and management of that patient during the patient's stay in the hospital. The student will be responsible for daily progress notes and orders on these patients. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in cardiovascular disease management. For the remaining two weeks of the course, the student can then choose from the following one week electives: A. Diagnostic Techniques; B. Outpatient Management; C. Independent Reading.

MED 448. Inpatient Cardiology. 4 credits.

In this course, the student will come to appreciate the full breadth of cardiovascular diagnostic techniques and management of patients with cardiac disease. This elective is divided into four one-week blocks in which the student can choose electives. Each student who signs up for this course will be assigned two consecutive weeks on the inpatient service as a member of the team and will be responsible for the care of the patients admitted to the CCU and Cardiovascular services. The senior students will be assigned patients and will be responsible for the assessment and management of that patient during the patient's stay in the hospital. The student will be responsible for daily progress notes and orders on these patients. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in cardiovascular disease management. For the remaining two weeks of the course, the students can then choose from the following one week electives: A. Diagnostic Techniques; B. Outpatient Management; C. Independent Reading.

MED 449. Renal Medicine-Critical Care. 1-4 credits.

This course is a selective in renal medicine. It familiarizes the students with the common renal disorders as seen in everyday clinical practice – on the wards, clinics and in the ICUs. These include acute and chronic renal failure and their associated problems including dialytic therapies, fluid and electrolyte disorders, acid-base disorders, difficult to control hypertension in different clinical settings as well as renal transplant management. The students are required to perform a pertinent history and physical exam as well as come up with a differential diagnosis and treatment plan. Didactic sessions are provided by the renal faculty. At the end of four weeks they should feel comfortable with assessing and managing patients with common renal disorders.

MED 450. Rheumatology, Phoenix Regional Campus. 1-4 credits.

The Rheumatology Service is concerned with the care of patient's both in the outpatient and inpatient setting. As a result, the student can become familiar with all types of musculoskeletal disorders. Because the nature of rheumatology is an outpatient predominant discipline, there is close and daily interaction between students, house officers and faculty. This interaction includes examination of history and physical taking techniques, understanding of the laboratory evaluations of patients with rheumatic diseases, interpretation of x-rays and formulations of therapeutic plans. In addition, the student is taught proper technique in aspiration and analysis of synovial fluid.

MED 452. Emergency Medicine - Dominican Republic. 4 credits.

Visiting students from Creighton will rotate at Union Medica, with the opportunity to see over 200 different emergencies each day. Students will function as the primary caregiver for their patients, working closely with supervising faculty to develop and implement management plans. There is ample opportunity for the performance of procedures. This course is offered in February only. Students will have the opportunity to experience the Dominican culture first-hand and provide medical care to an underserved population and gain an understanding of the differences in the delivery of health care in a developing country. It is important for the student to be aware that the Institute for Latin American Concerns (ILAC) is a unique, faith-based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. This rotation in another culture attempts to take advantage of the Jesuit tradition that inspires ILAC, through conscious awareness of culture differences, sensitivity to culture context in medical practice, and reflection on the experience in a way that helps us become beneficiaries who are grateful that we often receive more than we give. The student will be expected to follow all guidelines and rules, including conduct and behavior, pertinent to all participants in the Creighton University ILAC programs.

MED 453. Introduction to Global Health. 2-4 credits.

This course will provide an academic framework in Global Health for future practitioners with a focus on equity and engagement. The course will utilize the Millennial Development Goals as a framework for discussion of Global Health. In addition, students will be provided with tools for travel preparation and project assessment.

MED 455. Community-Based Gastroenterology. 2-4 credits.

Community-Based Gastroenterology Rotation is an elective for those wishing a more in depth study of gastroenterology. The student will be exposed to educational opportunities in a busy outpatient GI practice, which also includes video capsule endoscopy and Remicade infusion unit, and significant endoscopy exposure in an adjacent state-licensed, Medicare-certified, AAAHC-accredited ambulatory surgical center. In addition, there may be opportunities to see inpatients and advanced endoscopic procedures at nearby teaching hospitals with the attending, as desired/available.

MED 456. Gastrointestinal Medicine. 1-4 credits.

In this elective, the student would be exposed to educational opportunities on the in-patient GI service and will work closely with medicine house staff officers as well as attending physicians. By the end of the rotation the student will be able to diagnose and treat patients with gastrointestinal conditions commonly found in the inpatient Internal Medicine setting.

MED 458. Pulmonary/Lung Transplant. 4 credits.

The Lung Transplant Critical Care Selective for Senior Medical Students include the expansion of knowledge gained as sophomore and junior students in the fundamentals of physical diagnosis and disease recognition, evaluation and management. The advanced lung disease and lung transplant team is a consulting service that sees patients both in the inpatient wards and outpatients in the evaluation unit. The students are closely supervised in these activities by pulmonary critical care medicine fellows and attending physicians. The students are provided initial responsibility for evaluating primary patients and patients seen in consultation with careful critique of their findings and close supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions.

MED 465. Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism. 2-5 credits.

The overall goal of the course is for the student to gain proficiency in recognizing, evaluating, and treating the wide variety of Endocrine, Diabetes and Bone disorders. In this rotation the student will participate as a senior student in the care of hospitalized patients and clinic patients. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in diabetes, thyroid problems, Hyperlipidemias, bone metabolism, osteoporosis and general endocrinology. Patients are seen for a wide variety of diagnoses that include: Type 1 and Type 2 diabetes, Ketoacidosis, hyper- and hypothyroidism, osteoporosis, osteomalacia, Hypercalcemia, hyper-and hypoadrenalism, pituitary insufficiency, male and female Hypogonadism (partial list only).

MED 468. Infectious Disease. 2-4 credits.

The goal of this selective is to learn the consultation process for diagnosis and treatment of infectious diseases. This selective builds on the foundation laid by previous courses including Medical Microbiology, Physical Diagnosis, and the Internal Medicine clerkship. The students are provided responsibility for evaluating patients seen in clinic or consultation with critique of their findings and supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions, own review and presentation. Each student also has the opportunity to visit the HIV Clinic and also to spend one evening in the Travel Clinic where patients receive pre-travel counseling and immunizations.

MED 469. Rheumatology. 2-4 credits.

The Rheumatology Service is concerned with the care of patients both in the outpatient and inpatient setting. As a result, the student can become familiar with all types of musculoskeletal disorders. Because the nature of rheumatology is an outpatient predominant discipline, there is close and daily interaction between students, house officers and faculty. This interaction includes examination of history and physical taking techniques, understanding of the laboratory evaluations of patients with rheumatic diseases, interpretation of x-rays and formulations of therapeutic plans. In addition, the student is taught proper technique in aspiration and analysis of synovial fluid.

MED 470. ILAC Outpatient Medicine-Foreign Service (Dominican Republic). 1-6 credits.

This rotation provides the student an opportunity to improve their knowledge and ability regarding Global Health issues and patient care. Students will also have direct, 24 hours a day contact with rural Dominicans and will be able to improve their basic fund of knowledge regarding healthcare needs, nutrition, economic and social problems and to develop a greater understanding for interaction between medical, social and economic pressures. The student will participate as a member of the team in the care of people in rural Dominican Republic. The Institute for Latin American Concern is a unique, faith-based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. Our goals include providing an environment for spiritual enrichment in the form of on-site support for ministry, reflection, journaling, and worship. It is important for the student to be aware the Institute for Latin American Concern is a unique, faith-based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. A goal for this experience is to provide an environment for spiritual enrichment in the form of onsite support for ministry, reflection, journaling and worship. We ask students to share their faith story in this journey with each other and the Dominicans we serve.

MED 471. Emergency Medicine. 4 credits.

The Emergency Medicine rotation provides an experience for the 4th year student in which the facets of all subspecialties are combined in the acute care management and critical care of the emergency patient. The student will be given the opportunity to improve their differential diagnosis insight and skills and to work with inpatient and outpatient healthcare, involving primary care providers and other services. In this rotation, the student will participate as a member of a team in the care of patients presenting to the Emergency Department. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in care of traumatic injuries, multiple medical illnesses, care of the patient with obstetric and gynecologic complaints, and management of the pediatric patient.

MED 472. Critical Care. 4 credits.

In this course students will gain an understanding of the clinical presentation, differential diagnosis and the approach to management of common critical care illnesses. Students will also gain the ability to recognize and learn the importance of communication and team work for managing ICU patients. Students will participate as a member of the team in the care of patients admitted to the ICU, managing their care with duties and responsibilities under the direct supervision of a attending physician, supervisory resident and first year resident. The patient population provides a wide range of in depth experience in critical care management, including invasive procedures and assessment. A wide variety of critical care problems in an acute setting focusing on pulmonary and cardiac complications. Management consultations are provided for the surgical ICU, approximately 10-15 number patients are seen with an age range from 40-80.

MED 475. Introduction to Medical Practice. 1-8 credits.

The purpose of this course is to introduce fourth year medical students to the basic issues relevant to managing physician practice in the United States.

MED 481. Pulmonary/Intensive Care Unit. 4 credits.

The objective of this selective is to expose the student to the wide variety of critical care medicine and acute pulmonary disorders, as well as to teach the early recognition and management of organ dysfunction, and the most current pathophysiological explanations for shock, sepsis and respiratory failure. Also covered in this course will be current concepts of vasopressor and inotropic support therapy including mechanisms of drug action and examination of the interaction of lung diseases with other organ systems and with other medical illnesses. Students will acquire knowledge of airway management and ventilatory support. The students will spend 2 weeks on the Pulmonary Consultation Service and 2 weeks on the Intensive Care Unit Service.

MED 482. Emergency Medicine Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

Patients are assigned to students and residents on a rotational basis. Patients will be a mix of ambulatory patients, ambulance arrivals and clearance of both the acute psychiatric patient and patient wishing to undergo substance abuse treatment. There will be a wide variety of medical conditions seen including acute cardiac, pulmonary, gastrointestinal, neurological and infectious disease. There will also be potential for many procedures including ABG's, arthrocentesis, paracentesis, thoracentesis and central lines.

MED 484. Intensive Care Unit. 4 credits.

The Intensive Care Unit (ICU) elective rotation for senior medical students includes the expansion of knowledge gained as sophomore and junior students in the fundamentals of physical diagnosis and disease recognition, evaluation and management. The Intensive Care Unit team provides care to critically ill patients with a broad spectrum of medical and surgical diseases. The students are closely supervised by pulmonary and critical care fellows and attending physicians. The Critical Care Unit model involves a multidisciplinary team approach where the student will be an integral part of the team rounding with physicians, nurses, respiratory therapists, pharmacists, and others. Students are required to actively participate in daily rounds and attend didactic presentations.

MED 486. Medical Education Elective. 2-4 credits.

The Medical Education Elective is a two or four week non-clinical elective that will introduce fourth-year medical students to general topics in teaching, foster interest in medical education, and provide instruction to promote teaching skills particularly in small group and clinical settings. The four-week elective will introduce students to medical education scholarship, and provide support for the development of a scholarly project.

MED 487. Internal Med Sub-internship. 4 credits.

The senior student will have increased responsibility for patient management in preparation for internship. As acting intern, the student will evaluate new patients on each of the team's admitting days and follow those patients throughout their hospitalization. The senior resident and attending will assist in formulation of the plan for diagnosis and treatment. The student will make daily work rounds with the team and also attend all educational conferences.

MED 488. Internal Medicine Clinical Research. 4 credits.

This month long elective will expose the student to the full spectrum of clinical research including the fundamentals of clinical research and drug development with a special emphasis on learning the ethical principles and regulatory requirements for research involving human subjects. The student will spend time during the elective with clinical investigators who are involved in conducting various clinical trials. The student should plan to follow the instructor (or assigned research team member) each day during the rotation. The student will receive multiple lunch time lectures throughout the month. The student will be required to read a variety of publications. The opportunities for special study and clinical research (i.e. case reports) will be available.

MED 489. Patient Safety and Quality Improvement. 4 credits.

The patient safety and quality selective for senior medical students expands on the clinical knowledge gained as sophomore and junior students in the fundamentals of physical diagnosis, disease recognition, evaluation and patient management as the background for an educational experience centered around healthcare systems of care and practice-based learning and improvement.

MED 490. Critical Care Medicine. 2-4 credits.

The Pulmonary/Critical Care Medicine selective for senior medical students includes the expansion of knowledge gained as sophomore and junior students in the fundamentals of physical diagnosis and disease recognition, evaluation and management. Since the Pulmonary/Critical Service has both primary care patients and patients who are being evaluated in consultation, the student has the opportunity to evaluate and learn about both types of patients. The students are closely supervised in these activities by junior and senior medical residents, pulmonary fellows and pulmonary medicine attending physicians. The students are provided initial responsibility for evaluating primary care patients and patients seen in consultation with careful critique of their findings and close supervision of their day-to-day clinical decisions.

MED 491. Internal Medicine Capstone. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the capstone curriculum in the final rotation block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will include a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, as well as hands on practical educational sessions.

MED 492. Internal Medicine Capstone. 4 credits.

The senior student will participate in the capstone curriculum in the final rotation block of his/her fourth year of training. Scheduled learning activities will include a variety of lectures, small group discussions, patient simulation exercises, as well as hands on practical educational sessions.

MED 496. Directed Independent Study. 4 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students.

MED 498. Medicine Extramural. 1-8 credits.

MED 795. Evidence Based Medicine - Independent Study. 2-4 credits.

Evidence Based Medicine is important to the practice of medicine and this elective course will build upon the foundations learned at M1 and M3 students and assist students in transition to residency. The purpose of this elective is to enhance the student's ability to critically appraise the medical literature and implement evidence based medicine into clinical decision making.

MIC 463. Topics in Immunology/Application to Clinical Medicine. 4 credits.

Selected Topics in Immunology is an elective for those wishing to study in-depth a variety of selected topics in immunology. The elective will be available Second Semester continuously. This course will consist primarily of conferences, directed reading assignments in selected areas of immunology or immunochemistry. The interests and needs of the students will determine which topics they will be expected to study indepth and will be determined on an individual basis with each student prior to the first class meeting. Some examples of selected topics would be immunologic disorders in the newborn, autoimmune methods in clinical diagnosis, etc.

MIC 791. Department Seminar And Teaching. 1 credit.

The student is required to register each semester of his/her residence. The maximum credit applicable toward a degree is two for the M.S.; six for the Ph.D. This course is graded satisfactory/unsatisfactory.

MOS 581. Mission Outreach Selective I. 0.5 credits.

This course provides an immersive experience in a mission outreach activity. The student will work with a mission team and a preceptor at an approved mission site. Students will write a 7-10 page research paper on medical mission work, a reflection on their experience at the site, or a related scientific area of research. P. Admission to Medical School.

MOS 582. Mission Outreach Selective II. 0.5 credits.

This course provides an immersive experience in a mission outreach activity. The student will work with a mission team and a preceptor at an approved mission site. Students will write a 7-10 page research paper on medical mission work, a reflection on their experience at the site, or a related scientific area of research. P. MOS 581.

NEU 301. Neurology Clerkship. 4 credits.

This core clerkship is designed to give the student experience in evaluation of patients with neurologic disorders, to provide an opportunity to master the neurological exam and to enhance their knowledge of common neurological diseases. The format of the clerkship consists of four week rotations. Students doing their rotations in Omaha will have two weeks of outpatient experience and two weeks of inpatient service (which includes stroke and general neurology service). While on the inpatient services, the student will be required to perform a complete history and physical exam with emphasis on the neurologic findings, prepare written and verbal presentations, interpret laboratory data and begin to develop a differential diagnosis and management plan on all assigned patients. While on outpatient services, the student will participate in a variety of general neurology and specialty clinics in the Neurology department at Creighton University. Students will be required to perform appropriately focused history and physical exams and to participate in the management plan for the patient. Preparation through recommended reading materials will be required. Each clinic faculty will evaluate the student on their preparation and participation in that clinic. Didactic lectures will include a combination of live interactive lectures and some pre-recorded lectures. Some of the students will also take part in presenting case based discussion based on the patients seen during the clerkship.

NEU 401. General Neurology. 2-4 credits.

During this clerkship the students will be taught the elements of a good neurological history and physical examination. The students will learn to interpret findings and to develop a differential diagnosis based on those findings. The students will learn the appropriate use of diagnostic testing to verify or clarify a diagnosis and learn the basics of neurological treatments of common neurological disorders.

NEU 410. Neurology/Neuromuscular. 2 credits.

During this clerkship the students will be taught the elements of a good neurological history and physical examination. The students will learn to interpret findings and to develop a differential diagnosis based on those findings. The students will learn the appropriate use of diagnostic testing to verify or clarify a diagnosis and learn the basics of neurological treatments of common neurological disorders. This will be accomplished by direct patient contact in clinics and hospital services, by informal teaching rounds and formal teaching conferences like Grand Rounds and Epilepsy conferences.

NEU 462. General Neurology. 2-5 credits.

During this elective the student will be taught the elements of a good neurological history and physical examination. Students will also learn to interpret findings and to develop a differential diagnosis based on those findings. The students will learn the appropriate use of diagnostic testing to verify or clarify a diagnosis and learn the basics of neurological treatments of common neurological disorders. This will be accomplished by direct patient contact in clinics and hospital services, by informal teaching rounds and formal teaching conferences like Grand Rounds and Epilepsy conferences.

NEU 496. Directed Independent Study. 1-8 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students.

NEU 498. Neurology Extramural. 1-8 credits.

OBG 301. Obstetrics and Gynecology Clerkship. 6 credits.

During your six-week clerkship, you will be exposed to normal and highrisk obstetrics, as well as office and surgical gynecology. Conferences have been designed to build upon the core lectures you received during your second year. You will spend half of the six-week clerkship at Creighton University Medical Center and the other half at Bergan Mercy Medical Center if you are in Omaha. In Phoenix, your entire experience will be at St. Joseph's Hospital and Medical Center. The curriculum is designed to acquaint you with all aspects of Obstetrics and Gynecology in private and institutional medicine.

OBG 333. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2 credits.

The purpose of this elective is to prepare students who have chosen to pursue a deeper understanding of the field of OB/Gyn. The focus of this rotation will be on obstetrical issues, however there will be some work in gynecologic care.

OBG 334. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2 credits.

The Obstetrics and Gynecology two-week rotation is designed for students who desire additional exposure to the specialty in addition to their clerkship experience.

OBG 461. Detection and Mgmt of High-Risk Pregnancy Sub-Internship. 4 credits

The goal of this elective is develop the student's skills to identify and formulate management plans for the complicated pregnancy and follow their labor and delivery. In this course the students will develop techniques to identify the complications of pregnancy. Students have the opportunity to round with the physicians, participate in labor and delivery as well as clinical consults. In this course the student will work only with the patients with high risk pregnancies.

OBG 462. Private Services in Gynecology. 4 credits.

This course will provide gynecology knowledge and information necessary to diagnose and manage the most common gynecologic disorders that are likely to be encountered in the practice by the general obstetrician/gynecologist. This includes the use of appropriate diagnostic tests and procedures encountered in the primary gynecologic care in the ambulatory health care setting and performing inpatient surgeries from that practice. The student will experience and achieve an overview of the multileveled facts of a private office-based practice in gynecology by the end of the elective.

OBG 464. Prenatal Diagnosis. 4 credits.

The student will learn the systematic approach to the diagnosis of prenatal fetal anomalies and growth disturbances. Upon completion of this rotation, the student will be able to perform a fetal anatomic survey, as well as standard fetal ultrasound measurements to estimate gestational age and fetal weight. The student will be expected to accurately do an obstetric ultrasound, complete with measurements and assessment of anatomy, to successfully complete the rotation.

OBG 465. Ambulatory Gynecology. 1-8 credits.

The goal of this course is to provide an understanding of the ambulatory outpatient office-based practice that offers not only routine health maintenance screening, but also therapeutic procedures and follow-up, as well as evaluation of benign gynecologic disorders.

OBG 466. Gynecology Oncology. 4 credits.

The goals of the Gynecologic Oncology subspecialty experience for senior medical students are the expansion of knowledge and understanding of gynecologic oncology physical diagnosis, disease recognition and evaluation, and management of gynecologic oncology disorders.

OBG 467. General Obstetrics - Foreign Service (Dominican Republic). 4 credits.

The purpose of this elective is to expose the student to a different culture and appreciate the differences in the delivery of Women's Health within a third world country and compared to Omaha, NE. In addition, the student will gain extensive experience in outpatient gynecology and the performance of pelvic exams. The student will have the opportunity to experience the Dominican culture first-hand and provide medical care to an underserved population. The student will also gain experience in the private and rural clinic settings. The Institute for Latin American Concerns (ILAC) is a unique, faith-based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. This rotation in another culture attempts to take advantage of the Jesuit tradition that inspires ILAC, through conscious awareness of culture differences, sensitivity to culture context in medical practice, and reflection on the experience in a way that helps us become beneficiaries who are grateful that we often receive more than we give.

OBG 467A. Delivery of Women's Healthcare-Foreign Service (Dominican Republic) A. 2 credits.

In this elective the student will gain extensive experience in outpatient gynecology and the performance of pelvic exams while being exposed to a different culture and attaining an appreciation of the differences in the delivery of Women's Health wihin a third world country as compared to Omaha, NE. The student will have the opportunity to experience the Dominican culture first hand and provide medical care to an under-served population. The student will gain an understanding of the differences in which healthcare is delivered to women in a third world country. The student will also gain experience in the private and rural clinic settings. It is important for the student to be aware that the Institute for Latin American Concerns (ILAC) is a unique, faith based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. This rotation in another culture attempts to take advantage of the Jesuit tradition that inspires ILAC, through conscious awareness of culture differences, sensitivity to culture context in medical practice and reflection on the experience in a way that helps us become beneficiaries who are grateful that we often receive more than we give.

OBG 468. General Obstetrics and Gynecology. 4 credits.

The student will do two weeks of night float and will admit, manage, and deliver laboring obstetric patients at Saint Joseph's Hospital in Phoenix, Arizona. The student will also gain experience in gynecology and attend surgeries for the next two weeks. Free housing is available near Saint Joseph's Hospital.

OBG 470. Gynecologic Surgery. 4 credits.

The student will do four weeks working in the operating room and the clinic at St. Joseph's Hospital in Phoenix, Arizona. The student will serve as a first or second assistant on the gynecological surgical procedures and see surgical patients in the office. The purpose of this course is to broaden the student's clinical experience in gynecological surgery including exposure to treatments and surgical procedures.

OBG 472. Inpatient Gynecology. 2-4 credits.

The student will function as a sub-intern on the University Inpatient Gynecology Service. He/she will participate in morning rounds and surgery everyday with option to participate in resident or faculty outpatient gynecology clinics and gynecologic ultrasound clinics. The student will be expected to carry a patient load and present patients in rounds everyday to the attending faculty.

OBG 473. Delivery of Women Healthcare - Foreign Service (Dominican Republic). 2 credits.

In this elective the student will gain extensive experience in outpatient gynecology and the performance of pelvic exams while being exposed to a different culture and attaining an appreciation of the differences in the delivery of Women's Health wihin a third world country as compared to Omaha, NE. The student will have the opportunity to experience the Dominican culture first hand and provide medical care to an under-served population. The student will gain an understanding of the differences in which healthcare is delivered to women in a third world country. The student will also gain experience in the private and rural clinic settings. It is important for the student to be aware that the Institute for Latin American Concerns (ILAC) is a unique, faith based program affiliated with Creighton University in the Dominican Republic. This rotation in another culture attempts to take advantage of the Jesuit tradition that inspires ILAC, through conscious awareness of culture differences, sensitivity to culture context in medical practice and reflection on the experience in a way that helps us become beneficiaries who are grateful that we often receive more than we give.

OBG 474. Applied Outpatient and Inpatient Gynecology. 4 credits.

The student will function as a sub-intern working in the OR and the office with private patients. He/she will participate in morning rounds and surgery everyday with participation in resident or faculty outpatient gynecology clinics and gynecologic ultrasound clinics. The student will be expected to carry a patient load and present patients in rounds everyday.

OBG 477. Gynecologic Oncology Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

In this course, the students will be able to broaden their clinical experience in gynecologic oncology, including exposure to treatments and surgical procedures such as radical pelvic surgery, robotic hysterectomy, staging, chemotherapy, and radiation oncology. Students will function as first year residents during the rotation and will be expected to work with the in-patient teaching service(s) they elect under the supervision of a senior resident and attending physician. The student's goals and expectations will be discussed during an orientation interview the first Monday of the rotation and their schedule will be devised to best accommodate their learning objectives. If requested, a mentor will be assigned.

OBG 479. Clinical Research in Advanced Gynecology. 4 credits.

The student will serve as research assistant gathering and organizing information pertaining to a current project. The student will help finalize the research project. The student will be the first researcher with a goal to become published with the research. The purpose of this course is to broaden the student's clinical research experience in advanced gynecologic surgery and chronic pelvic pain.

OBG 480. Clinical Obstetrics and Gynecology Research. 4 credits.

Students will spend 4 weeks working on and collaborating with gynecologic oncology attendings on various clinical and laboratory projects. These projects have the potential to guarantee co-authorship on poster or oral abstract presentations and/or manuscripts depending on the student's dedication and persistence with the work. The student may choose to continue to work on a project after the rotation is complete. The student will not have clinical, hospital, or surgical responsibilities as this will be a purely research-focused rotation.

OBG 481. Maternal Fetal Medicine Research. 4 credits.

Students will spend 4 weeks working on and collaborating with maternal fetal medicine attendings on various clinical and laboratory projects. These projects have the potential to guarantee co-authorship on poster or oral abstract presentations and/or manuscripts depending on the student's dedication and persistence with the work. The student may choose to continue to work on a project after the rotation is complete. The student will not have clinical, hospital, or surgical responsibilities as this will be a purely research-focused rotation.

OBG 483. Detection and Management of High Risk Pregnancy Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

In this course the students will develop techniques to identify the complications of pregnancy. Students have the opportunity to round with the physicians, participate in labor and delivery as well as clinical consults. In this course the student will work only with the patients with high risk pregnancies.

OBG 489. Obstetrics & Gynecology Capstone. 4 credits.

The goal of this course is to prepare students to meet all ACGME OB/GYN milestones expected of an incoming PGY-1. The course with comprise of simulations, interaction with standardized patients, clinical experiences, and radiology.

OBG 490. Obstetrics and Gynecology Capstone. 4 credits.

The goal of this course is to allow students to experience what it will be like to be an OB/Gyn PGY-1 while still in medical school. Through first hand experience, students will better understand the responsibilities and expectations that will be placed upon them as a PGY-1. In effect, the student will act as the PGY-1 while on this rotation. The responsibilities of students on this rotation will include the primary evaluation of triage patients, management of intrapartum patients, and first-assisting during procedures. The course will be four weeks long, subdivided into weeklong "rotations", which will include Labor and Delivery days, Night Float, Ultrasound, and High-Risk Clinic. By the end of the course, students who have completed this "bootcamp" will start their PGY-1 year with competence and confidence.

OBG 495. Directed Independent Study. 2,4 credits.

OBG 496. Directed Independent Study. 1-8 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students.

OBG 498. Obstetrics and Gynecology Extramural. 1-8 credits.

PBS 301. Psychiatry Clerkship. 3-6 credits.

Psychiatry is an essential component of general medical practice in five primary ways:1) Common disorders: 40-50% of primary care patients have active psychiatric illness. 2) All physical illness has some overlay of psychological difficulty or change. 3) Physical illness often presents with behavioral & psychological symptoms. 4) Improving interview skills and sensitivity to psychiatric issues will help in every patient encounter. 5) Psychiatric illness increases risk or physical illness (e.g., depression and MIs). The Psychiatry Clerkship is a required six-week clinical rotation in the third year of medical school which focuses on the development of patient care, medical and psychiatric knowledge, practice-based learning and improvement, interpersonal and communication skills, and professionalism in the treatment of the psychiatric patient. Students are supervised by psychiatry faculty in a variety of care settings.

PBS 333. Child & Adolescent Psychiatry. 2 credits.

This elective is a clinical rotation for those interested in exploring indepth Child and Adolescent Psychiatry in an inpatient setting.

PBS 334. Psychiatry. 2 credits.

The rotation consists of two weeks of a psychiatric experience in an inpatient psychiatric setting providing exposure to various aspects of the management of patients.

PBS 335. Geriatric Psychiatry. 2 credits.

The Geriatric Psychiatry elective will provide students with experience in the evaluation and treatment of elderly patients with depression, anxiety, Alzheimer's disease and other causes of dementia.

PBS 336. Adult Inpatient Psychiatry. 2 credits.

This elective provides exposure to the practice of adult psychiatry in the inpatient setting.

PBS 410. General Hospital Psychiatry. 2-4 credits.

This elective provides exposure to the practice of psychiatry in the general hospital setting. The patient population can be broadly divided into two groups: patients with medical illnesses that present with psychiatric symptoms, and patients with chronic mental illness that now have medical illness requiring hospitalization. Special teaching on diagnosis issues (primarily, differentiating psychiatric illness from medical/neurological illness), developing acute treatment plans, and short term intervention techniques.

PBS 412. Outpatient Psychiatry. 4 credits.

The rotation consists of four weeks of psychiatric experience in an outpatient psychiatric practice providing exposure to various aspects of the management of patients in this setting. This experience will include clinical supervision and readings. Due to the location of this rotation, personal transportation will be required.

PBS 414. Pediatric Psychiatry (PRC). 2-4 credits.

The Pediatric Psychiatry Elective is a clinical rotation at Phoenix Children's Hospital in one or a combination of clinical settings including Inpatient Psychiatry and Consultation-Liaison Psychiatry services. The rotation aims to provide a foundation for and/or enhance medical student knowledge and understanding the unique aspects of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry evaluation, assessment and treatments. It also aims to provide an opportunity for the medical student to further appreciate the role of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry as a medical specialty and to promote a better recognition, early detection and prevention of child mental health problems.

PBS 420. Special Topics in Psychiatry. 4 credits.

The purpose of this course is to advance the learner's experience and interest in academic psychiatry. The course will specifically focus on the exploration of one particular area of interest that the learner has in the area of psychiatry with the ultimate goal of producing a piece of written work appropriate for journal publication or presentation as a poster at an academic meeting. Skills involved will include literature searching, manuscript format and preparation, editing, and poster formatting.

PBS 421. Psychiatric Intensive Care, Phoenix. 1-5 credits.

The rotation consists of four weeks of psychiatric inpatient intensive care. This experience in an inpatient psychiatric practice will provide exposure to various aspects of the management of patients in this setting. This experience will include clinical supervision and readings.

PBS 440. Basic Psychotherapeutic Interventions in Medicine and Mental Health. 4 credits.

The rotation consists of four weeks of psychiatric experience in an inpatient setting. The student will be actively involved in providing psychotherapeutic interventions under strict supervision and guidance from the attending psychiatrist with emphasis on the traditional medical teaching model of 'see one do one' . The student will be introduced to the cognitive behavioral therapy techniques, motivational interviewing, hypnosis, and relaxation therapies.

PBS 445. Outpatient Psychiatry. 2-4 credits.

The rotation consists of two or four weeks of psychiatric experience in an outpatient psychiatric practice providing exposure to various aspects of the management of patients in this setting. This experience will include clinical supervision and readings. Experience may be partially customized to student's area of interests in psychiatry, i.e., chronic mental illness, PTSD, substance abuse, and liaison between mental health and primary care.

PBS 446. Adult Outpatient Partial Program Elective. 2,4 credits.

This course is designed to provide the fourth-year medical student exposure to adult psychiatric patients currently enrolled in Immanuel Hospital's Outpatient Adult Psychiatric Partial Program.

PBS 462. Clinical Psychopharmacology. 4 credits.

This elective will provide contemporary information regarding the growing field of psychopharmacology. This will be achieved through guided independent learning (e.g., review of recent literature and assigned reading, small group discussion, participation in clinical teaching rounds, clinics, Grand Rounds, case discussions, and research activities).

PBS 463. Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. 4 credits.

This elective is a clinical rotation for those interested to explore in depth Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. The student will be exposed to residential level of inpatient care at Immanuel Residential Treatment Center and outpatient at the Creighton Psychiatry Outpatient Clinic and Family Services. The student will also gain knowledge about community based treatments. Students will have an opportunity to understand various systems that the Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist needs to deal with as they treat their patients; and receive exposure to various consultation sites in the community such as group homes; Behaven' Day Care; and Family Services. This elective will help the student develop an understanding of normal child and adolescent development along with its deviations and development of psychopathology. Student will be exposed to various systems a child and adolescent psychiatrist deals with; i.e.; schools, Juvenile Court, and social services. The student will be able to diagnose common child and adolescent problems with the use of DSM-5; will learn to formulate an appropriate treatment plan; learn to work with multi-disciplinary treatment team and understand the role and responsibility of each member of the team; develop basic skills in use of various psychopharmacological agents of common child and adolescent disorders; learn the role of Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist in consultation with schools, courts, and other community based systems of care for children and adolescents.

PBS 463A. Child & Adolescent Psychiatry. 2 credits.

This elective is a clinical rotation for those interested to explore in depth Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. The student will be exposed to residential level of inpatient care at Immanuel Residential Treatment Center. This elective will help the student develop an understanding of normal child and adolescent development along with its deviations and development of psychopathology. The student will be able to diagnose common child and adolescent problems with the use of the DSM-5; will learn to formulate an appropriate treatment plan; learn to work with multi-disciplinary treatment team and understand the role and responsibility of each member of the team; develop basic skills in use of various psychopharmacological agents of common child and adolescent disorders.

PBS 464. Psychiatry Research. 4 credits.

Students will spend this elective period involved in the Creighton Psychiatry Research Center, and/or its affiliated Research Clinics at the Omaha VA Medical Center on current active protocols or, by mutual agreement, special topics. Currently, these range from Clinical Trials of Psychopharmacological Medications (for Anxiety, Depression, Psychosis, etc.) to Laboratory Research in Behavioral Biology, as well as special topics in Psychiatry (Child, Adolescent, Geriatric, Forensics, etc.). Students taking this elective will acquire knowledge in ethical, regulatory and operational aspects of protocols. They will become familiar with scientific and methodological issues in research. Students will become adept at using structured interviews for DSM-V criteria and Clinical Symptom Rating Scales for specific syndromes and research protocols.

PBS 467. Geriatric Psychiatry. 2-4 credits.

The Geriatric Psychiatry elective will provide the students with experience in the evaluation and treatment of elderly patients with depression, anxiety, Alzheimer's disease, and other causes of dementia. The student will gain experience in the evaluation, diagnosis, and formation of treatment plans of geriatric patients in the psychiatric inpatient setting. The student will understand the evaluations process of older adults with cognitive deficits including mental status exam and laboratory and exray data; know the pharmacokinetic changes in aging and their specific impact on geriatric psychopharmacology; appreciate the psychosocial impact on aging on older adult patients; and develop skills in utilizing family supports in the care of the geriatric patient.

PBS 467A. Geriatric Psychiatry. 2 credits.

The Geriatric Psychiatry elective will provide the students with experience in the evaluation and treatment of elderly patients with depression, anxiety, Alzheimer's disease, and other causes of dementia. The student will gain experience in the evaluation, diagnosis, and formation of treatment plans of geriatric patients in the psychiatric inpatient setting. The student will understand the evaluations process of older adults with cognitive deficits including mental status exam and laboratory and exray data; know the pharmacokinetic changes in aging and their specific impact on geriatric psychopharmacology; appreciate the psychosocial impact on aging on older adult patients; and develop skills in utilizing family supports in the care of the geriatric patient.

PBS 472. Adult Inpatient Psychiatry. 2-4 credits.

This elective provides exposure to the practice of adult psychiatry in the inpatient setting. Students collaborate in treatment teams participating in rounds, case-conferences, Grand Rounds, and individual supervision with strong emphasis of differential diagnosis, planning and implementing a biopsychosocial treatment plan for psychiatric patients. Students will gain experience in the evaluation, diagnosis, and formation of treatment plans of acutely ill psychiatric patients in the inpatient setting.

PBS 472A. Adult Inpatient Psychiatry. 2 credits.

This elective provides exposure to the practice of adult psychiatry in the inpatient setting. Students collaborate in treatment teams participating in rounds, case-conferences, Grand Rounds, and individual supervision with strong emphasis of differential diagnosis, planning and implementing a biopsychosocial treatment plan for psychiatric patients. Students will gain experience in the evaluation, diagnosis, and formation of treatment plans of acutely ill psychiatric patients in the inpatient setting.

PBS 474. Mood Disorders and Their Treatment. 4 credits.

This course combines clinical service with depressed patients and discussion of books and articles discussing various aspects of the recognition, diagnosis, and treatment of depressive disorders. During this course the student will develop a solid fund of knowledge regarding Mood Disorders and their various etiologies and presentations; the ability to interview and diagnose patients with good ability to screen for dangerousness and self-harm and hospitalize if necessary. The student will also become familiar with medications commonly used in treatment of persons with Mood Disorders, and understand the goals and methods of cognitive-behavioral therapy and its brief treatment techniques.

PBS 474A. Mood Disorders & Treatment. 2 credits.

This course combines clinical service with depressed patients and discussion of books and articles discussing various aspects of the recognition, diagnosis, and treatment of depressive disorders. During this course the student will develop a solid fund of knowledge regarding Mood Disorders and their various etiologies and presentations; the ability to interview and diagnose patients with good ability to screen for dangerousness and self-harm and hospitalize if necessary. The student will also become familiar with medications commonly used in treatment of persons with Mood Disorders, and understand the goals and methods of cognitive-behavioral therapy and its brief treatment techniques.

PBS 475. Consultation/Liaison Psychiatry. 4 credits.

This elective provides exposure to medically ill patients with emotional/psychiatric problems along with special teaching on psychiatric diagnostic issues, acute treatment plans, short-term intervention techniques, and supportive therapies. This elective will provide the student with exposure to consultations to acute medical/surgical units allowing the student to develop skills in evaluating and treating medical, surgical, obstetrical, and chronically ill patients who develop psychiatric problems.

PBS 476. Special Topics in Psychiatry. 4 credits.

This rotation is individually designed by the student and the Director within a broad range of topics in areas of psychiatry and psychology. During this course the student will develop a topic of study, a plan for research including an intended bibliography of at least 12 items, and the research question(s) for which the student plans to seek knowledge. The student then will write a well-organized paper exploring the subject in detail which will provide a strong exploration of the research questions with well-supported discussion and conclusion.

PBS 479. Addictions. 2-4 credits.

The student will spend this elective period at the Substance Abuse Disorders Program (SUDP) at the VA Hospital participating in the evaluation, assessment, and treatment of chemically dependent patients. The student will become skilled in taking substance use histories; will be able to identify on physical exam the medical consequences of substance abuse; will become familiar with the classes of drugs of abuse and the consequences of their uses; will become conversant in DSM-5 criteria for diagnosis of substance abuse and dependence; and will become knowledgeable of detoxification methods used to treat physical withdrawal. Student will observe and participate in therapeutic interventions including group therapy, one-on-one counseling, 12-step groups (e.g. Alcoholics Anonymous) in inpatient and outpatient settings.

PBS 479A. Addictions. 2 credits.

The student will spend this elective period at the Substance Abuse Disorders Program (SUDP) at the VA Hospital participating in the evaluation, assessment, and treatment of chemically dependent patients. The student will become skilled in taking substance use histories; will be able to identify on physical exam the medical consequences of substance abuse; will become familiar with the classes of drugs of abuse and the consequences of their uses; will become conversant in DSM-5 criteria for diagnosis of substance abuse and dependence; and will become knowledgeable of detoxification methods used to treat physical withdrawal. Student will observe and participate in therapeutic interventions including group therapy, one-on-one counseling, 12-step groups (e.g. Alcoholics Anonymous) in inpatient and outpatient settings.

PBS 482. Trans-Cultural and Community Psychiatry. 2-4 credits.

This community-based experiential course provides students with practical knowledge and experience in a community health system dedicated to psychiatric care for a transcultural population in Hilo, Hawaii. Students will develop skills in assessment, interviewing, and treatment of a highly diverse and under-served population; they will also better appreciate the role of psychiatrists in this unique community. The course provides practical experience in both in-patient and ambulatory sites, instruction in the assessment of major psychiatric syndromes and broader social issues in community and transcultural care.

PBS 482A. Trans-Cultural/Comm Psychiatry. 2 credits.

This community-based experiential course provides students with practical knowledge and experience in a community health system dedicated to psychiatric care for a transcultural population in Hilo, Hawaii. Students will develop skills in assessment, interviewing, and treatment of a highly diverse and under-served population; they will also better appreciate the role of psychiatrists in this unique community. The course provides practical experience in both in-patient and ambulatory sites, instruction in the assessment of major psychiatric syndromes and broader social issues in community and transcultural care.

PBS 483. Domestic Violence Practicum. 4 credits.

This community-based experiential course provides students with practical knowledge and experience in community agencies and sites dedicated to reducing domestic violence and aiding its victims in Omaha. Students will develop skills in assessment, interviewing, and treatment of persons subject to domestic violence; they will also better appreciate the role of physicians in the community effort to reduce violence. The course provides practical experience at shelter sites, instruction in the assessment of domestic violence victims, and contact with courts, support groups, and community action organizations.

PBS 486. Narratives in Illness. 2-4 credits.

This two- week or four-week reading course involves the student in reading first-person narratives of psychiatric and medical illness, with one or two short pieces of fiction. Students will read a variety of such written works with the objective of understanding the interplay of biological, psychological, and social factors in the dynamics of the illnesses, and the importance of social context and the strength of personal coping and of social support as important elements in the person's recovery. The student will them prepare a written work with the guidance of the course director at the conclusion of their study.

PBS 496. Directed Independent Study. 4 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students.

PBS 498. Psychiatry Extramural. 1-8 credits.

PDT 120. Pediatric Summer Academy. 1 credit.

This elective is an opportunity for medical students, in good academic standing, to enhance their clinical skills between their first and second year. The course will occur between May and June. Students will be expected to complete at least 3 of the 7 weeks available. The course will include shadowing physicians, attending lectures, and learning on patient simulators. Upon satisfactory completion of the course, the student will receive one academic credit on their final transcript.

PDT 301. Pediatrics Clerkship. 3,6 credits.

PDT 301 is a 6-week Pediatric Clerkship. Three weeks of the Clerkship serves as the inpatient experience. During this experience, the students spend 1-2 weeks in Children's Hospital on the Inpatient Service. One to two weeks of the inpatient experience will also be spent in the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit at Bergan Mercy Medical Center or in the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit at Children's Hospital. For the second half of the clerkship, three weeks will be spent in a community based Pediatric Outpatient setting. Each student will also spend one week of mornings in the Normal Newborn Nursery at Bergan Mercy Medical Center. The clerkship involves several scheduled learning sessions ranging from didactic lectures, hands-on learning opportunities, and web-based simulated patient encounters (CLIPP cases). Students take both a midterm quiz and a practice exam during the clerkship to help them track their acquisition of knowledge.

PDT 333. Inpatient Pediatrics. 2 credits.

This course is designed to introduce third year medical students to various aspects of inpatient Pediatrics. Students will work with clinical faculty and also be exposed to academic, administrative and research components of Pediatrics.

PDT 334. Pediatrics. 2 credits.

The student will participate in well newborn nursery for one week and NYCU for one week under the supervision of an Attending Neonatologist and Pediatrician. The patients are both well and sick newborns. The student will also participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, daily teaching conferences, and nursery conferences.

PDT 335. Pediatric Opthamology. 2 credits.

PDT 420. Pediatric Endocrinology. 4 credits.

The student will evaluate patients primarily in the out-patient setting, but also have the opportunity to participate with consults and admission to the hospital. At the end of the elective, the student will have a chance to make a formal presentation of an interesting topic or clinical case.

PDT 421. Pediatric Hematology-Oncology. 4 credits.

The student will be assigned to the outpatient hematology/oncology clinic at Phoenix Children's Hospital. Working alongside a full-time faculty member, and with nurse practitioners, rotating house staff, nurses, and other health care personnel of the inter-disciplinary team, the student will gain experience with the diagnosis and management of patients with presumed and established hematological and oncological diagnoses.

PDT 422. Pediatric Rheumatology. 4 credits.

The student will evaluate patients primarily in the out-patient setting, but also have the opportunity to participate with consults and admission to the hospital. At the end of the elective, the student will prepare a formal presentation of an interesting topic of a clinical case encountered during the elective.

PDT 423. Pediatric Gastroenterology and Nutrition. 4 credits.

The student will be an active participant in out-patient GI clinics, inpatient consultative services and neonatal consultative services. Didactic sessions on major topics in Pediatric GI will be given frequently throughout the elective period. The student will present a short talk on a GI topic of interest. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences.

PDT 424. Medical Care for Homeless and At-Risk Kids and Teens. 2-4 credits.

The medical student will participate in the care of the indigent, underinsured and at risk teenagers in the Phoenix Metropolitan area.

PDT 425. Pediatric Cardiology. 4 credits.

The Pediatric Cardiology Rotation is designed for Senior Medical Students and is an opportunity to gain exposure to the full range of pediatric cardiac disease, both congenital and acquired, with a specific focus on the outpatient component of pediatric cardiology. Under the direct supervision of the Pediatric Cardiology faculty, students will spend most of their time in the clinic setting where they will have great opportunity to learn the fundamentals of performing a pediatric cardiovascular exam including listening to murmurs and heart sounds and refining their skills in cardiac disease recognition, evaluation and management. Students will also experience the inpatient aspect of pediatric cardiology by being an active participant in the team performing consults in the emergency department, neonatal intensive care unit and the pediatric wards. Students will also have the opportunity to spend time in the Cardiovascular Operating Rooms, cardiac catheterization lab and echocardiography labs. Clinic Schedule will be provided at the beginning of the rotation.

PDT 426. Pediatric Urology. 4 credits.

By providing patient care under direct supervision of the urology faculty, the student will become acquainted with general principles of pediatric urology. The student will participate in daily patient care/attending rounds and has continuous informal attending contact while in the patient care setting. When appropriate and with supervision, the student will perform or participate in various procedures such as, bladder catheterization, urodynamic studies, etc.

PDT 427. Pediatric Dermatology (PRC). 4 credits.

Students will obtain a generalized knowledge base of common skin conditions affecting neonates, infants, children and adolescents and acquire skills of dermatologic description used to accurately communicate skin findings and differential diagnoses to specialists. Students will become familiar with common skin disorders and basic treatment regimes.

PDT 428. Pediatric Rheumatology. 4 credits.

The student will participate in the care of pediatric patients with a variety of problems seen by Pediatric Rheumatology. There are weekly clinics and inpatient consults under the guidance of a board certified rheumatologist.

PDT 430. Pediatric Sports Medicine. 4 credits.

The student will participate in the care of pediatric patients with a variety of problems seen by a pediatrician specializing in sports related injuries. These include, but are not limited to: musculo-skeletal problems, concussions, nutrition, weight management, etc.

PDT 431. Introduction to Inpatient Rehabilitation. 1-5 credits.

The student will have the opportunity to diagnose, evaluate, and treat patients with disorders that require rehabilitation such as traumatic brain injury, spinal cord injury, stroke, and chronic pulmonary conditions.

PDT 440. Breastfeeding Medicine. 1-4 credits.

The Department of Pediatrics offers an elective course in Breastfeeding Medicine for 4th year medical students. Students who will be applying for residencies in Family Medicine, Pediatrics, OB GYN, and Internal Medicine are encouraged to take this elective. This elective is an introduction to the knowledge and skills necessary to evaluate and diagnose common breastfeeding concerns in the inpatient and outpatient setting. By the end of the rotation students will have achieved early competency in managing the following issues: basic position/latch, milk supply issues, nipple shields, use of supplemental nursing system (SNS), pumping, mastitis, thrush, tongue tie, reflux, milk-protein allergy, extended nursing, return to work, relactation, breast augmentation/reduction, medications in milk.

PDT 442. General Pediatrics Outpatient/Nursery. 4 credits.

The student will participate in nursery rounds and morning clinic providing primary care to infants and children under the supervision of an Attending Pediatrician. The patients are both well and sick children and include some specialty referral patients. The student will also participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, daily new teaching conferences, and nursery conferences.

PDT 444. Anatomic and Clinical Pathology. 4 credits.

The elective in pediatric anatomic and clinical pathology offers the senior medical student in-depth exposure to pediatric surgical pathology, cytopathology, and autopsy pathology. Various aspects of the clinical laboratory may be experienced, including hematopathology, microbiology, transfusion medicine, and clinical chemistry. Clinical conference attendance is required, including pediatric oncology tumor board, brain tumor conference, and gastroenterology conference. Students are expected to read relevant published material related to cases and specimens encountered in the laboratory. The student is responsible for keeping a case log.

PDT 446. Pediatric Emergency Medicine. 4 credits.

Students will participate in the care of patients presenting to the Pediatric Emergency Department at Children's Hospital. Students are assigned attending physicians, and will work with the attending physician to manage the patients during their Emergency Department visit. At all times, the student will be under the direct supervision of the attending physician. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in the care of minor and major traumatic injuries, multiple pediatric medical illnesses, care of the poisoned pediatric patient and pediatric patients with psychiatric illness. Patients seen in Phoenix Children's Hospital Emergency Department range in age from newborn to 18 years. Students are assigned eight-hour shifts, with week day and weekend exposure. There is no "on call" time during this rotation. The student is required to review the orientation pack and complete computer training prior to beginning the rotation.

PDT 450. Pediatric Orthopedics. 4 credits.

Students will spend time at Phoenix Children's Hospital, Children's Rehabilitation Services (CRS), and local outside clinics. The student will function in the role of an acting intern, take histories and perform physical exams, participate in the pediatric orthopaedic call schedule, have in-patient responsibilities, and participate in emergency and elective operative procedures as either an observer or assistant. Outside reading is expected with completion of reading Staheli's Pediatric Othopaedics and Rang's Pediatric Fracture texts provided during the rotation. Students are expected to attend teaching and clinical conferences. A pediatric orthopaedic topic will be decided upon by the student and faculty early in the elective and a presentation/discussion will be expected at the completion of the course. A pre- and post-rotation learning map will guide student education during the rotation. Students are expected to keep a log or portfolio of their pediatric activities.

PDT 451. Pediatrics Capstone. 4 credits.

This elective will combine didactic lectures, skill sessions, and simulated patient exercises. Learning activities will concentrate on general pediatric topics and be supervised by Creighton Pediatric Faculty and Residents.

PDT 459. Pediatric Genetics and Metabolic Disease. 4 credits.

The goal of this elective is to assist students to become familiar with the common genetic disorders seen in children and adolescents. Students will participate in the care of pediatric patients with a variety of problems seen by Genetics. There are weekly clinics and daily ward rounds with the on call physician.

PDT 460. Pediatric Inpatient Sub-Internship. 4 credits.

The student will participate in the care of the hospitalized pediatric patient. The acuity of the illness, the impact on the family, and the impact on the child make the care of the patient a multi-tiered task. The senior student on this rotation will assume primary responsibility for his/her patients, working with the resident and attending to ensure that quality and timely care is given. The student will continue to advance his/her communication, clinical problem solving and procedural skills, and become more familiar with common health problems in pediatrics.

PDT 461. Pediatric Critical Care. 1-8 credits.

During this rotation, the student will be expected to observe, appreciate and learn the care and management of critical disease processes in the pediatric patient, from the neonatal period through adolescence. The student will learn the unique care and knowledge required by those in the pediatric critical care field to take care of critically ill children whose anatomy and physiology are constantly changing as they develop.

PDT 463. Pediatrics Infectious Disease. 4 credits.

Students will learn to evaluate neonates, infants and children with a wide range of infectious diseases. This is primarily an inpatient experience with about 10% of patients seen in the outpatient clinic. Students will perform a complete workup and assessment, then present their findings and recommendations to the attending physician on daily rounds. Students are required to do considerable outside reading on their patients' illnesses. A selected reading list is provided to all students at the beginning of the rotation and students are responsible for all the material there in.

PDT 464. Neonatal Intensive Care Services. 2-4 credits.

The purpose of this selective is to educate the senior medical student in the field of neonatology. The student will demonstrate competence in the critical care of sick and high-risk newborns. Student's participating in this selective will serve as "junior house officer" under the supervision of a staff Neonatologist and complete required paperwork The student will learn to evaluate neonates. This is entirely an intensive care unit experience.

PDT 466. Pediatric Cardiology. 4 credits.

Students will participate in the care and evaluation of pediatric patients with known or suspected congenital heart disease. Students will also encounter pediatric patients with acquired cardiomyopathy. Students will develop the understanding of cardiovascular physiology and development. The goal of this course is to educate senior medical students in the field of pediatric cardiology in an outpatient setting.

PDT 467. Pediatric Neurology. 4 credits.

The purpose of this elective is to acquire skills required to perform pediatric exam, and develop a diagnostic and therapeutic approach to common pediatric neurologic problems. This elective will enable the student to work closely with the attending staff Pediatric Neurologist in the evaluation and treatment of children with neurologic disorders. The student will see patients in both hospital and outpatient settings.

PDT 468. Pediatric Gastroenterology. 2-4 credits.

Students will learn to evaluate pediatric patients with chronic and infectious diarrhea, abdominal pain, constipation, malabsorption, inflammatory bowel disease, gastrointestinal infections, Hirschsprung's disease, neonatal cholestasis, growth failure, chronic vomiting, and liver disease. Students will develop an understanding of gastrointestinal physiology and development. Basic principles of enteral and parenteral nutrition in Pediatrics will be reviewed. The student will participate in the care of both hospitalized and ambulatory patients at Children's Hospital and Outreach Clinics. The student may choose to emphasize inpatient or outpatient activities based upon his/her prior experiences and individual career goals and needs. The medical student would work closely with the Pediatric Gastroenterology fellow, the pediatric house officers as well as the attending.

PDT 469. Pediatric Endocrinology Services. 2-4 credits.

The student will participate in the care of pediatric patients with a variety of problems seen in pediatric endocrinology private practice. There are ten half-day clinics weekly, and daily ward rounds with the on call physician. Regular formal discussions concerning endocrine problems are held. The purpose of this elective is for students to become familiar with the common endocrine disorders seen in children and adolescents.

PDT 470. Pediatric Hematology/Oncology Service. 4 credits.

This elective is for those students who are thinking about a career in pediatrics and wish in depth clinical exposure to hematology and cancer patients. Students will follow patients in the clinic and, if time allows, on the inpatient service. The purpose if this elective is to become familiar with common childhood malignancies and hematologic disorders, including differential diagnosis, therapy, and acute and late complications. There will be opportunity to review blood smears and bone marrow aspirate slides.

PDT 471. Pediatric Respiratory and Critical Care Medicine. 4 credits.

The goal of this rotation is to give the student a broad range of exposure to various pulmonary and upper respiratory problems ranging from asthma to cystic fibrosis through both inpatient and outpatient experiences. During the four weeks of this elective students will be provided with clinical experiences evaluating children with disorders of the respiratory system and acquiring skills necessary to perform the pediatric pulmonary exam and to develop a diagnostic and therapeutic approach to common pulmonary problems in children. Students are expected to be prepared for rounds, write patient notes, present patients, and be available for all rounds and clinics. Students are also expected to dictate consults and some clinic letters after review with the attending physician. Students are expected to review all tests performed in the pulmonary lab as time allows.

PDT 472. General Pediatrics. 2-4 credits.

The purpose of this elective is to educate senior medical students on newborn exams, routine health maintenance for various ages and diagnosis and treatment of common pediatric conditions. The student will be exposed to educational opportunities mostly in a pediatric ambulatory setting, but will also include patients in the newborn nursery and hospitalized patients. Basic approaches to childhood behavioral issues will also be included. This course is an ambulatory pediatric experience for those wishing to work in a general pediatric setting.

PDT 473. Advanced Pediatrics. 4 credits.

This elective is a didactic lecture series. Lectures will concentrate on general pediatric topics and will be given by Creighton Pediatric Faculty and Residents. In addition, each student will select a pediatric topic and give an oral presentation. The goal of this elective is to educate senior medical students regarding general and specialty pediatric illnesses in preparation for their residency.

PDT 474. Pediatric Emergency Medicine. 4 credits.

The purpose of this rotation is to provide the students with exposure to the practice of pediatric emergency medicine. Students will participate in the care of patients presenting to the Pediatric Emergency Department. Students will work with the attending physician to manage the patients during their Emergency Department visit. At all times, the student will be under the direct supervision of the attending physician. The patient population provides a wide range of experience in the care of minor and major traumatic injuries, multiple pediatric medical illnesses, care of the poisoned pediatric patient and pediatric patients with psychiatric illness. Patients seen in the Children's Hospital Emergency Department range in age from newborn to 21 years.

PDT 475. Pediatric Pulmonology. 4 credits.

The student will participate in Inpatient rounds and patient evaluation of pulmonary patients in the morning. They will also participate in outpatient clinic visits, evaluate and treat pulmonary patients in the afternoon. Interactive didactic discussion regarding pulmonary diseases will occur periodically throughout the rotation. The student may participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences.

PDT 477. Clinical Genetics/Dysmorphology. 4 credits.

The student will attend all clinical genetics clinics at Phoenix Children's Hospital. The student will also participate in all inpatient consultations. The student will attend all genetics teaching conferences. The student will be provided a reading syllabus of original articles relating to the embryology of congenital anomalies and the approach to diagnosis of genetic disorders, which they are expected to read during the elective. Discussion will follow with faculty supervisor. The student will carry out an independent, thorough literature review of a genetics/dysmorphology topic of his/her choice. The topic will be presented orally to the faculty supervisor at the end of the rotation. The student may participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences.

PDT 478. Pediatric Nephrology. 4 credits.

The student will participate in the diagnosis and management of inpatients and outpatient with kidney diseases and related problems. They will perform the initial evaluation of new patients in both the inpatient and outpatient setting. They will participate in the methods and procedures performed in the renal metabolic laboratory. They will participate in daily formal and informal discussions on pre-assigned topics relating to renal disease. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences.

PDT 479. Newborn/General Pediatrics. 1-8 credits.

The student will participate in daily newborn nursery rounds with the student assuming primary care for 1-3 newborns. After assessment of the newborns, the cases are discussed with an attending pediatrician and management care plans are developed. The student then participates in morning and afternoon clinic with student providing primary care under supervision of attending physician. Patients will represent well and sick children as well as some specialty referral patients. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences.

PDT 480. Assessment of Child Abuse and Neglect. 4 credits.

Students will participate in consults, round on inpatients, observe multidisciplinary team meetings, read selected journal articles and chapters, participate in journal club, and complete a series of case studies that demonstrate common presentations of non-accidental injury. In addition, students may have the opportunity to "ride along" with CPS and observe courtroom testimony on a case by case basis.

PDT 481. Development and Behavioral Pediatrics. 4 credits.

The student will participate in patient care with direct attending faculty supervision in the Autism Diagnostic Clinic, ADHD Diagnostic Program, and the general Developmental-Behavioral Pediatric Clinic. The student has available independent learning from the Developmental-Behavior Pediatrics website (www.phoenixchildrens.com/dbpeds), ADHD packet, Autism packet, and Emily Center packets. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including grand rounds, and daily noon teaching conferences. The student will participate in site visits with residents to community partners.

PDT 483. Pediatric Neurology. 4 credits.

This elective is appropriate for students considering a career in pediatrics or neurology. It is particularly encouraged for those students considering a career in child neurology, developmental pediatrics, or developmental neuroscience. The student will act as a sub-intern, integrated into a team consisting of the pediatric neurology faulty member, pediatric neurology resident (fellow), and usually an adult neurology resident. Experience with inpatient consultation and a wide variety of outpatient clinics are provided. The choice of outpatient clinics can be tailored to the student's interests.

PDT 484. Pediatric Critical Care. 4 credits.

The student will participate in daily patient care/attending rounds and has continuous informal attending contact while in the patient care setting. When appropriate and with supervision the student will perform or participate in various procedures such as, endotracheal intubation, lumbar puncture, CPR, central line placement, etc. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences as well as at least twice weekly critical care conferences. There is an overnight call responsibility approximately every 4-5th night. By participating fully in these activities the student will improve their ability to integrate their understanding of physiology with the bedside care of a critically ill pediatric patient.

PDT 485. Neonatology Critical Care. 4 credits.

During this elective the student will attend high-risk deliveries, under the supervision of pediatric residents, neonatal nurse practitioners and/ or attending neonatologist carry a case load of 2-4 moderately ill NICU and intermediate nursery patients. Patients are followed from admission to discharge when possible. With supervision, the medical student will practice and become familiar with bag and mask ventilation, CPAP application, endotracheal intubation, assisted ventilation, venipuncture, arterial puncture, umbilical arterial and venous catheterization. Students will also participate in patient-related problem-solving sessions and attend scheduled didactic teaching sessions. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences. There is an overnight call responsibility approximately every 4-5th night.

PDT 486. Inpatient Pediatrics. 4 credits.

During this elective the student will be the primary care provider for up to five ward patients under the supervision of a senior resident and attending physician. The student will participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences. At this time there is no over-night call requirement but participating in occasional evening ward activities. Weekend rounds are required. By participating fully in these activities the student will improve their data collection and analysis skills along with improving their clinical problem solving. They will become familiar with a variety of common and not so common pediatric medical and surgical diagnoses.

PDT 487. Family-Centered Patient Care. 4 credits.

Incorporation of family-centered patient care in the medical education of health care professionals is imperative in order to fully care for and understand the complex nature of the patients we serve. The goal of this course is to provide the skills necessary to implement family-centered care in patient encounters, and in doing so,encompassing a more diverse viewpoint of how to care for the individuals who seek our care.

PDT 488. Pediatric Allergy and Immunology. 3-4 credits.

Students will participate in the care and evaluation of pediatric allergy and immunology patients seen with a variety of problems. Student will develop through clinical exposure, the understanding of common pediatric allergy and immunology conditions. The rotation is outpatient based

PDT 490. Pediatrics: Cardiac Critical Care. 4 credits.

The Pediatric Cardiac Critical Care Rotation is designed for Senior Medical Students and is an opportunity to gain exposure to the acute care of critically ill children in the setting of a Pediatric Cardiothoracic Intensive Care Unit. Under the direct supervision of the Pediatric Cardiac Intensive Care faculty, students will provide direct patient care to 2-3 critically ill children with various types of congenital or acquired heart disease as well as other organ system problems including respiratory failure, renal failure and shock. Students will participate in the pre and post-operative management of infants and children with heart disease and will have the opportunity to spend time in the Cardiovascular Operating Rooms, cardiac catheterization lab and echocardiography labs.

PDT 492. Pediatric Cardiology/Cardiac Critical Care. 1-8 credits.

The Pediatric Cardiology/Cardiac Critical Care Rotation is an opportunity for Senior Medical Students to gain exposure to the full discipline of pediatric cardiology in both the outpatient and inpatient setting including the acute care of critically ill children in the setting of a Pediatric Cardiovascular Intensive Care Unit. During the outpatient portion of the rotation, students will gain exposure to common cardiology problems including differentiating innocent from pathologic murmurs, basic electrocardiogram reading and diagnosing and treating a variety of congenital and acquired heart problems. In the inpatient setting, students will learn to recognize and manage common pediatric cardiac illnesses as well as participate in the pre and post-operative management of infants and children with congenital or acquired heart disease. Students will also have the opportunity to spend time in the Cardiovascular Operating Rooms, cardiac catheterization lab and echocardiography labs. Students will perform or participate in various procedures under the close supervision of the Pediatric Cardiac Critical Care Attending such as endotracheal intubation, central line placement, CPR, thoracostomy tube placement, etc.

PDT 494. Pediatric Urgent Care. 4 credits.

The student will attend the Phoenix Children's Hospital's Urgent Care Center. The student will attend 16 eight hour shifts per elective block. The student may participate in the department teaching activities including attending rounds, grand rounds, afternoon lectures and daily noon teaching conferences. The student is responsible for keeping a patient care log.

PDT 496. Directed Independent Study. 4 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students. The purpose is to provide an environment whereby the student is introduced to scientific research methods and can improve critical thinking and reading skills as well as exchanging scientific information.

PDT 498. Pediatrics Extramural, 1-8 credits.

PMH 462. Clinical Genetics. 1-8 credits.

This elective program will be devoted primarily to genetic models using families with a high frequency of different diseases (e.g. cancer, heart disease, and others). This will enable students to evaluate the risk factors involved and the mode of genetic transmission of these diseases. Seminars will be offered to students on this subject to explain the genetic models that have been used in clinical medicine.

PMH 470. Preventive Ophthalmology (Dominican Republic). 4 credits.

Students will participate as team members in HS-MACA's Prevent Blindness Initiative (PBI) in collaboration with the Institute for Latin American Concern (ILAC). Students will conduct blindness prevention screenings in Latin America, where children are at risk for vitamin A deficiency and adults are at risk for glaucoma, cataract and pterygium. Students will have the opportunity to assist with ocular surgeries performed by local ophthalmologists and visiting eye surgeons from the United States.

PMH 496. Directed Independent Study. 1-8 credits.

PMR 333. Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation. 2 credits.

This elective will provide the medical student with an introduction to the discipline of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation (PMR). Students on the inpatient service will assist with admissions, daily rounding, team conference, family conference, and discharge service for patients at Immanuel Rehabilitation Center; students on the outpatient service will train in various clinical locations.

PMR 334. Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation. 2 credits.

At the conclusion of this elective, the medical student will be able to describe the role of the physiatrist in the treatment and care of the PMR patient and gain a basic understanding of orthotics/prosthetics prescriptions.

PMR 401. Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 1-8 credits.

This elective will provide the medical student with a comprehensive overview of the discipline of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. The Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation elective is located at the Immanuel Rehabilitation Center, located on the campus of Alegent Health Immanuel Medical Center. The Immanuel Rehabilitation Center specializes in the care of inpatients and outpatients who have had spinal cord injury, brain injury or stroke, amputations and other neurologic disorders.

PMR 421. Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 4 credits.

This elective will provide the medical student with a comprehensive overview of the discipline of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. Topics to be included are: Traumatic Brain Injury, Traumatic Spinal Cord Injury, Stroke and Pediatric Rehabilitation.

PMR 425. Pain Management (PRC). 4 credits.

At the conclusion of this elective, the medical student will be able to develop a basic working knowledge of pharmacology, physiology, and pathophysiology of pain. The students will develop a working knowledge of neuroanatomy and of conducting a thorough neurological examination.

PMR 498. Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Extramural. 1-8 credits.

PTG 333. Pathology M3 Elective (OMA). 2 credits.

This elective will expose the medical student to the fields of Anatomic and Clinical Pathology including Surgical Pathology, Cytopathology, Hematopathology and Clinical Chemistry, Molecular Pathology, Autopsy Pathology, Microbiology and other areas of Laboratory Medicine.

PTG 334. Pathology. 2 credits.

Elective time is usually split between anatomic and clinical divisions including clinical chemistry, microbiology, hematology, blood bank, surgical pathology, cytology and autopsy pathology. Gross examination and in-patient and out-patient frozen section experience are highlighted. Molecular biology and cytogenetic laboratories are recent additions to the curriculum.

PTG 401. Neuropathology. 4 credits.

Students will be exposed to a variety of neurosurgical specimens as well as diagnostic nerve and muscle biopsies, evaluating these specimens at the gross and microscopic levels one-on-one with the neuropathology faculty. The student will be encouraged to expand his/her knowledge in neuroanatomy, which includes skull base and gross brain at autopsy, whole brain myelin stain preparations and microscopic neuroanatomy.

PTG 402. Molecular Genetics in Oncology. 4 credits.

The course will provide basic understanding of the personalized, precision medicine concept and its application to the discipline of Oncology through the extensive use of pharmacogenetics, cancer profiling and evidence based (literature surveys) practice of medicine. We now recognize that just as patients differ in how they are affected by their diseases, cancers have unique natural histories with distinctive biology. Tumors once described solely by their organs of origin now comprise subsets with different biological drivers and clinical outcomes. A goal of this course is for the student to achieve an understanding of the critical role of objective measurements of tumor characteristics (biomarkers, gene mutations) and evidence-based medicine.

PTG 450. Anatomic/Clinical Pathology. 1-4 credits.

Elective time is usually split between anatomic and clinical divisions including clinical chemistry, microbiology, hematology, blood bank, surgical pathology, cytology and autopsy pathology. Gross examination and in-patient and out-patient frozen section experience are highlighted. Molecular biology and cytogenetic laboratories are recent additions to the curriculum.

PTG 461. Introduction to Pathology Practice. 4 credits.

The goal of PTG 461 is to provide the medical student a broad introduction to the practice of modern day pathology built around interaction with clinicians, pathologists, residents, and technical staff. The student will gain an appreciation of the role of the laboratory in the practice of medicine. The student will gain some facility in the art of gross description, microscopic evaluation and diagnosis of surgical pathology specimens. The student will also be introduced to practical microbiology, hematology, and blood bank. The elective is designed and tailored to students' interests. It is a good experience for students interested any specialty. For those interested in pathology it offers a chance to experience what a residency is like.

PTG 462. Topics in Pathology. 4 credits.

The goal of PTG 462 is to provide the medical student with a more in depth experience in some aspects of pathology. The rotation will be customized based on the previous experience and interest of the student. For example, if the student is interested in OB/GYN, the student would focus on gynecology pathology.

PTG 467. Survey of Pathology Practice. 2 credits.

The objective of the 2 week Survey Elective is to give the 4th year medical student a broad introduction in the practice of pathology built around interaction with clinicians, pathologists, residents, and technical staff. This elective is designed to offer each student an opportunity to gain an introductory understanding of the practice of clinical and anatomic pathology.

PTG 468. Microbial Laboratory Diagnosis. 4 credits.

This course is designed to familiarize the student with the practical, technical, strategic aspects of clinical microbiology. Emphasis will be placed on specimen selection, collection and processing, identification of microbial pathogens and antimicrobial susceptibility testing as an aid for the diagnosis of infectious diseases.

PTG 497. Directed Independent Research. 1-8 credits.

Original investigation under supervision and guidance of individual staff members.

PTG 498. Pathology Extramural. 1-8 credits.

RAD 333. Diagnostic Radiology. 2 credits.

This is an introduction to clinical imaging targeted for students who are interested in radiology, as well as those pursuing other specialties.

RAD 334. Diagnostic Radiology. 2 credits.

This is an introduction to clinical imaging targeted at 3rd year medical students. This elective will provide an overview of medical radiology, including synthesis, imaging and management of diagnostic imaging. The focus will be on bone, abdomen, chest and pediatric imaging.

RAD 442. Interventional Radiology-Maricopa (PRC). 4 credits.

The student observes and participates in a wide variety of interventional radiology procedures, including angiography, vascular interventions (angioplasty, embolization, trauma, cancer treatment, thrombolysis, venous access procedures), non-vascular interventions (including CT-guided biopsy, abscess drainages), and complex non-vascular cases (such as biliary drainage and stenting, and percutaneous nephrostomy placement, tumor ablation).

RAD 450. Interventional Radiology. 1-4 credits.

The Department of Radiology offers an elective course in Vascular and Interventional Radiology in which the medical student will learn the indications and techniques, as well as patient care considerations, of a wide variety of interventional procedures. The rotation includes the work-up and evaluation of patients for diagnostic angiography, therapeutic vascular and interventions (angioplasty, thrombolysis, venous access procedures) and non-vascular interventional procedures (including CT-guided biopsy, abscess drainages), and complex non-vascular cases (such as biliary drainage and stenting, and percutaneous nephrostomy placement).

RAD 455. Musculoskeletal Radiology Elective. 1-5 credits.

This course is an introduction to Musculoskeletal Radiology for 4th year medical students with emphasis on overview of anatomy, common musculoskeletal fractures, appropriate use of various imaging modalities and image guided procedures.

RAD 460. Diagnostic Radiology. 1-4 credits.

The Department of Radiology offers an elective course in General Diagnostic Radiology. This is an introduction to clinical imaging targeted at 4th year medical students. This elective will provide an overview of medical radiology, including synthesis, imaging and management of diagnostic imaging. The focus will be on bone, abdomen, chest and pediatric imaging. The student will spend one week in each of these areas. Arrangements can be made if there is interest in other subspecialty areas.

RAD 463. Diagnostic Radiology. 1-4 credits.

The Department of Radiology offers an elective course in General Diagnostic Radiology. This is an intensive introduction to clinical imaging targeted for fourth year medical students, both those interested in radiology and those pursuing other specialties. This elective will provide a comprehensive overview of medical radiology, range, uses, limitations and costs of diagnostic techniques. The program consists of subspecialty rotations, faculty interactive conferences and independent study of selected cases.

RAD 464. Radiology Oncology. 4 credits.

This course is an elective which familiarizes students with cancer care. Very often, cancer care includes chemotherapy and surgery, therefore students should do reading appropriate to the topic in order to develop a well-rounded knowledge base. This elective will allow students the opportunity to consolidate his/her knowledge of Basic Science (Anatomy, Pathology) into clinical care of the cancer patients.

RAD 465. Angio/Interventional. 4 credits.

The Department of Radiology offers an elective course in Vascular and Interventional Radiology in which the medical student becomes a member of the interventional team. The rotation includes the work-up and evaluation of patients for diagnostic angiography, therapeutic vascular and interventions (angioplasty, thrombolysis, venous access procedures) and non-vascular interventional procedures (including CT-guided biopsy, abscess drainages), and complex non-vascular cases (such as biliary drainage and stenting, and percutaneous nephrostomy placement). The interventional team works as a cooperative group which provides initial assessment of a patient's care during the procedure and follow-up care on the ward as appropriate. The medical student will share the duties of the daily organization and management of the service.

RAD 468. Diagnostic Neuroradiology. 4 credits.

The Department of Neuroradiology offers an elective course in Diagnostic neuroradiology. This is an introduction to clinical neuro imaging targeted at 4th year medical students. This elective will provide an overview of neuroradiology, including synthesis, imaging and management of neuro diagnostic imaging. The focus will be on Head CT, brain MRI, Spine imaging and Neuroangiography.

RAD 496. Directed Independent Study. 1-8 credits.

Each student, supervised by faculty members, will pursue in-depth reading and discussions on current research topics of interest to faculty and students. The purpose is to provide an environment whereby the student is introduced to scientific research methods and can improve critical thinking and reading skills as well as exchanging scientific information.

RAD 498. Radiology Extramural. 1-8 credits.

RON 333. Radiation Oncology M3 Elective. 2 credits.

This elective familiarizes students with cancer care, including radiotherapy, chemotherapy and surgery.

RON 334. Radiation Oncology. 2 credits.

The student will be assigned to the Radiation Medicine department at St. Joseph's Hospital Medical Center and the University of Arizona Cancer Center. The student will work with the radiation oncologists, medical physicists, dosimetrists, nurses, and other medical personnel in order to manage and care for patients with established oncological diagnoses. In particular, the student will learn to compare and contrast the different radiation delivery modalities available for various malignancies, understand the nuances in radiation dosing, and anticipate and screen for common side effects based on treatment site.

RON 410. Radiation Medicine PRC. 4 credits.

The student will be assigned to the Radiation Medicine department at St. Joseph's Hospital Medical Center and the University of Arizona Cancer Center. The student will work with the radiation oncologists, medical physicists, dosimetrists, nurses, and other medical personnel in order to manage and care for patients with established oncological diagnoses. In particular, the student will learn to compare and contrast the different radiation delivery modalities available for various malignancies, understand the nuances in radiation dosing, and anticipate and screen for common side effects based on treatment site.

RON 498. Radiation Oncology Externship. 1-12 credits.

Fourth-year medical students may arrange to participate in externships at LCME- or ACGME-accredited institutions in order to further their education in the field of Radiation Oncology. They are allowed up to 12 credit hours (weeks) of externships during the fourth year of medical school. Radiation Oncology is an emerging field and education places a heavy emphasis on systems-based practice along with rigorous methods to assess and find solutions for the health and healthcare problems of cancer patients. Through didactics and clinical experiences, students learn to collaborate with patients, healthcare providers, and organizations to improve the health outcomes of cancer patients. They learn current treatment modalities in the healthcare setting. Students pay tuition at Creighton University and earn academic credit when participating in externships, thus a formal evaluation and grade are required of the host institution.

SIS 501. Death, Health and Dickens. 0.5 credits.

The representation of disease and death demonstrate an important social awareness of healthcare in Victorian Britain that helps us understand today's medical and social landscape. Students will explore the connection between health, social conditions, and the works of Charles Dickens.

SIS 502. A History of Disability and Medicine. 0.5 credits.

This course introduces students to a diversity of perspectives on the causes, nature, understanding, and appropriate management of disability. Through an examination of evolving historical perspectives on disability, in the clinic and in society, students will critically analyze traditional medical conceptions of disability as an individual "problem" with biological origins. P. Admission to Medical School.

SIS 503. Creative Writing Workshop for Future Physicians. 1 credit. Stories and writings are how we interact with the world. In keeping with the finest Jesuit and literary traditions to best prepare the student as a physician, the student will use creative writing to understand personal narratives and those narratives of patients.

SIS 504A. Communicating in Spanish for Medical Professionals I. 0.5 credits.

This course is designed for students who are planning a career in medicine and want to improve their communication skills when dealing with Spanish-speaking persons. Prior introduction to the Spanish language is recommended. This course is the first of two courses dedicated to this topic.

SIS 504B. Communicating in Spanish for Medical Professionals II. 0.5 credits

This course provides students with a culturally contextualized foundation in vocabulary and grammar. The course focuses equally on the development of new knowledge and the ability to communicate medical information to patients and family members. This is the second of two courses.

SIS 505. Is Race Real? Racialization in Medicine and Science. 0.5 credits.

Through an exposure to relevant primary literature, popular media writings, academic talks, and through reflective writing and discussion, students will explore the effects of race on the patients they care for, and determine for themselves whether their role as clinicians in confronting the racialization of the health care system.

SIS 506. Childbirth and Social Justice. 0.5 credits.

This course encourages students to reflect on the connections between childbirth and social justice, and how social issues of access, equity, and participation have historically influenced maternal healthcare, especially among underserved or minority populations.

SIS 507. Physician's Vocation Program, Year 1: Introduction to Ignatian Spirituality in Medicine. 1 credit.

The first year of the Physician's Vocation Program is a formative introduction to Ignatian spirituality that explores its potential influence on the practice of clinical medicine through the intersection of reading, prayer, reflective writing, discussion, and spiritual direction.

SIS 508. Narratives of Neurodiversity. Apprectng Variatns in Cognitive Ability to Enhance Comm & Understnding. 0.5 credits.

In this course, students will consider how the language used to address and describe neurodiverse individuals affects them and their treatment. Students will also examine definitions of "quality of life," the value they place on a certain kind of cognition, and how understanding the goals of neurodiverse individuals might challenge those definitions.

SIS 509. The Art of the Examination: How Observation Leads to Empathy in Healthcare. 0.5 credits.

This course introduces students to concepts of observation. By examining selected works of art students will increase visual literacy and observational skills. Pensive concentration is the basis for empathy. Through drawing, students will enhance their sensitivities to the role of empathy in health care. Students need no prior art training.

SUR 301. Surgery Clerkship. 1-8 credits.

Our Goal is to teach the basics of procedural medicine. Students will learn surgery as a component of integrated medicine directed towards promoting health through safe and effective procedures applied through best medical evidence. This eight-week clerkship is divided into three components: All students will participate in one 4-week general surgery rotation, and two 2- week sub-specialty rotations. During the four-week block, you will be an integral part of the surgical team. The rotation is designed to introduce you to the "core" of knowledge, skills, behaviors, and attitudes regarding surgery which are fundamental to the medical practice of all physicians, whether you are considering a career in surgery, have no interest in a career in surgery, or don't yet know. This experience will be intense as well as exhilarating; physically, mentally, and emotionally. It will challenge you to perform to the utmost of your abilities.

SUR 401. Selective in Trauma. 1-4 credits.

The student is expected to participate in teaching rounds and assist in the operating room for patients admitted to the general surgical trauma service. The student will function as a sub-intern and be expected to present cases during rounds as well as at trauma conferences. The student will also be expected to participate in research activities within the trauma division.

SUR 401A. Selective in Trauma. 2 credits.

The student is expected to participate in teaching rounds and assist in the operating room for patients admitted to the general surgical trauma service. The student will function as a sub-intern and be expected to present cases during rounds as well as at trauma conferences. The student will also be expected to participate in research activities within the trauma division.

SUR 405. General Surgery - Red. 1-8 credits.

This course is an intensive surgical experience with emphasis on miniinvasive general surgical procedures. The sub-intern will be given opportunities to first assist in selected cases and manage critically ill patients.

SUR 405A. Selective in General Surgery. 2 credits.

This course is an intensive surgical experience with emphasis on minimally-invasive general surgical procedures. The sub-intern will be given opportunities to first assist in selected cases and manage critically ill patients.

SUR 411. Orthopedic Surgery. 4 credits.

This elective will provide the senior medical student an opportunity to gain an understanding of the responsibilities, skills, and learning expectations of a PGY-1 resident. It is directed toward students interested in orthopedic surgery. On completion of the rotation, students should feel confident using their new understanding and skills to create a more seamless transition into residency. The purpose of the course is to provide the student with a basic foundation of the knowledge and skills required for first year resident training in orthopedic surgery.

SUR 412. Advanced Surgical Prep. 4 credits.

The purpose of the course is to provide the student with a basic foundation of the knowledge and skills required for first year resident training in surgery. It is directed toward students interested in general surgery or other surgical subspecialties. On completion of the rotation, students should feel confident using their new understanding and skills to create a more seamless transition into residency. Coursework will consist of small group exercises and discussions, teaching rounds, independent study, skills lab practical experience, (cadaver dissection) and operating room exposure.

SUR 414. Selective in Plastics and Reconstructive Surgery. 2-4 credits.

This elective will introduce to the student the spectrum of modern plastic surgery. It will encompass the basic fundamentals of wound healing, evaluation and treatment of maxillofacial injuries, repair and reconstruction of head and neck tumors, repair of congenital facial deformities, review of surgical physiology in the treatment of burns, in addition to exposure to the various cosmetic surgical procedures.

SUR 415. Urology. 1-4 credits.

The student will function as a sub-intern in urology, performing admission histories and physical examinations, planning patient study programs, and joining with the urology staff for patient care in the cystoscopy and operating rooms. This rotation provides students with an insight into general clinical urology and prepares them to identify common urological problems and recognize appropriate treatment plans.

SUR 416. Surgery Research. 4 credits.

This elective will provide the senior medical student an opportunity to gain an understanding of the responsibilities, skills, and learning expectations of a resident. The purpose of this course is to assist the student in their understanding of the key concepts in the responsible conduct of research allowing them to conduct research that conforms to the highest standards for the protection of human research subjects.

SUR 419. Head and Neck Surgery (OMA). 4 credits.

This elective is designed to provide students a broad experience in the general practice of Otolaryngology/Head and Neck Surgery (Pediatric and Adult) in both office and hospital/surgical settings. Students will receive exposure to the more complex specialty areas of Otolaryngology/Head and Neck Surgery including: Head and Neck/Reconstructive Surgery, Neuro-Otology, Skull Base Surgery, Laryngology, and Pediatric Otolaryngology.

SUR 420. Selective in Trauma/Acute Care Surgery. 1-8 credits.

In this selective, students will function as sub-interns and participate in acute trauma resuscitations, operative care and ICU rounds during the rotation on the Trauma surgery Service. The student will evaluate and write daily progress notes under the supervision of the senior surgical resident and the surgical attending. Presentations during trauma rounds and at the weekly Trauma conference will be required.

SUR 422. General Surgery. 4-5 credits.

Students in this course are expected to function as sub-interns and participate in office evaluation, daily hospital rounds, operative managements and pre and postoperative care of patients on the general surgical service. The student will evaluate and write daily progress notes under the supervision of the senior surgical resident and the surgical attending. The student will participate in daily "checkout rounds" with the surgical team. Presentations during teaching rounds and participation at General Surgery Basic Science and journal club will be required.

SUR 424. Selective in General Thoracic Surgery. 4 credits.

The General Thoracic Surgery Rotation is designed for Senior Medical Students who have an interest in the specialty of thoracic surgery. It is an opportunity for students to gain exposure to the full range of management with regards to general thoracic diseases – e.g. benign esophageal disease, esophageal cancer, lung cancer, advanced lung disease – and their surgical management. Under the supervision of the faculty and residents, the students will spend their time both in the inpatient and outpatient setting where they will have an opportunity to understand disease processes of the chest and foregut, learn about their surgical management, and spend time in the Operating Rooms.

SUR 425. Selective in Otolaryngology. 4 credits.

This rotation in Otolaryngology, Head and Neck surgery, offers an exposure to the medical and surgical evaluation and management of associated problems of this specialty. Patient population consists of both outpatients and inpatients at St Joseph Hospital and Medical Center, Phoenix, AZ. It focuses on the adult and pediatric population. Time will be divided between clinical experience and operative experience. Students will also obtain experience in head and neck tumor patients. It is anticipated the student will acquire adequate skill in the performance of a complete ENT examination and become familiar with the diagnosis and management of the major ENT disorders. Student progress will be assessed with periodic oral presentations. Knowledge of surgical indications and complication will be required and the student will be involved in patient management.

SUR 430. Selective in Pediatric Ophthalmology. 4 credits.

This ophthalmology elective serves as an introduction to the medical and surgical diseases of the eye. This course will give students the opportunity to become very familiar with Pediatric Ophthalmology and Adult Strabismus. Students will participate in primary eye care and assist with the responsibilities of care for patient.

SUR 431. Selective in Pediatric Surgery. 4 credits.

This rotation will expose the student to common surgical diseases and congenital deformities in infants and children. The student will be required to perform selected histories and physicals on these patients and will second or first assist in surgery.

SUR 432. Selective in General & Oncology Surgery. 2-4 credits.

This course is an intensive surgical experience with emphasis on minimally invasive general surgical procedures. The sub-intern will be given opportunities to first assist in selected cases and manage critically ill patients. The student will incorporate into the team, with sub-intern responsibilities and will have opportunity to develop a skill set and foundational knowledge to help transition into the PGY1 year.

SUR 432A. Selective in Oncology/Surgery. 2 credits.

This course is an intensive surgical experience with emphasis on minimally invasive general surgical procedures. The sub-intern will be given opportunities to first assist in selected cases and manage critically ill patients. The student will incorporate into the team, with sub-intern responsibilities and will have opportunity to develop a skill set and foundational knowledge to help transition into the PGY1 year.

SUR 433. Selective in Urology. 4 credits.

The student will function as a sub-intern in urology, performing admission histories and physical examinations, planning patient study programs, and joining with the urology staff for patient care in the cystoscopy and operating rooms. The student will assist in postoperative management of their patients. Students will function as a member of the urology team. Students will also learn the interpretation of other imaging studies such as CT scans.

SUR 434. Comprehensive Ophthalmology. 1-4 credits.

This elective will familiarize students with the diagnosis and care of patients with ocular disease, the exam techniques of the eye, and the medical and surgical treatments used in Ophthalmology. At the conclusion of this rotation, the student should be able to perform a thorough history and a comprehensive eye exam on patients with eye disease, identify and have the ability to treat non vision-threatening eye disorders and recognize vision-threatening and urgent eye conditions so that timely referral to an Ophthalmologist is obtained.

SUR 435. Otolaryngology. 4 credits.

This surgical subspecialty course is designed to provide students a broad experience in all aspects of the general practice of Otolaryngology/ Head and Neck Surgery (Pediatric and Adult) in both office and hospital/ surgical settings. In addition, students will receive exposure to the more complex specialty areas of Otolaryngology/Head and Neck Surgery including: Head and Neck/Reconstructive Surgery, Neuro-Otology, Skull Base Surgery, Laryngology, and Pediatric Otolaryngology.

SUR 436. Urology/Gynecology. 4 credits.

The student will function as a sub-intern in urology/gynecology, performing admission histories and physical examinations, planning patient study programs, and joining with the urology staff for patient care in the cystoscopy and operating rooms. The student will assist in postoperative management of their patients. Students will function as a member of the urology team. Students will also learn the interpretation of other imaging studies such as CT scans.

SUR 450. Otolaryngology. 4 credits.

This rotation in Otolaryngology and Human Communications offers an exposure to the medical and surgical evaluation and management of associated problems of this specialty. Patient population consists of both outpatients and inpatients at Creighton University Medical Center, Bergan Mercy Hospital, and Outpatient Surgical Specialties Center. It focuses on the adult and pediatric populations. The student will have the opportunity to observe audiological, vestibular and speech/language evaluations, integral parts of the total ENT diagnostic and treatment plan. Student will also obtain extensive experience in head and neck tumor patients. It is anticipated the student will acquire adequate skill in the performance of a complete ENT examination and become familiar with the diagnosis and management of the major ENT disorders.

SUR 460. Vascular Surgery. 4 credits.

This elective will include all aspects of peripheral vascular surgery both venous and arterial, preoperative evaluation, intra-operative experience, and postoperative management of patients. Responsibilities will involve following and caring for critically ill patients who have undergone the above surgical procedures. Exposure in the operating room will include first assistant duties. The student will be part of a team caring for these patients and will participate actively in bedside and operating room teaching The goal of this course is that students will learn the basics of vascular disease being able to diagnose arterial, venous and lymphatic disease and understand treatment goals both surgical and non-surgical for the above disease processes.

SUR 461. Selective in Cardiovascular and Cardiothoracic Surgery. 1-8 credits.

To goal of this selective is to introduce the student to the basic topics in cardiac and thoracic surgery through an intensive month long patient centered rotation, where the students is actively engaged in all aspects of patient care. By the end of the rotation, the student shall have acquired knowledge and skills covering the basic diagnostic categories in the specialties. This would include: disease processes, pathophysiology, relevant anatomy, diagnostic work-up, therapeutic options, pre and post operative management, ICU care and basic suturing skills. The student is expected to participate in teaching rounds and assist in the operating room for patients admitted to the general surgical trauma service. The student will function as a sub-intern and be expected to present cases during rounds as well as at trauma conferences.

SUR 468. General Vascular & Orthopedic Surgery. 4 credits.

In this course the student will work closely with two surgeons, gaining experience in all aspects of a busy general surgery practice. This practice includes not only general surgery but vascular and orthopaedic surgery as well. The student will be involved with patients through surgical care including diagnosing and determining the need for surgical intervention, participating in the surgical suite with exposure to pathology and anatomic didactic, and following up on patients in the hospital and clinical setting. She/he will be expected to be on call for trauma and other emergencies.

SUR 472. Selective in Neurological Surgery. 4 credits.

Students on this service will be responsible for routine daily care of neurological patients. Students will perform histories and physicals with emphasis on neurological examination. Students will actively participate in daily care, neurodiagnostic procedures, surgery, postoperative care, and attend Neurosurgery clinics and Neurosurgery conferences.

SUR 472A. Selective Neurological Surgery. 2 credits.

Students on this service will be responsible for routine daily care of neurological patients. Students will perform histories and physicals with emphasis on neurological examination. Students will actively participate in daily care, neurodiagnostic procedures, surgery, postoperative care, and attend Neurosurgery clinics and Neurosurgery conferences.

SUR 474. Selective in Ophthalmology. 4 credits.

In this selective, students will be exposed to the field of ophthalmology and have the opportunity to become familiar with common ocular conditions and microsurgery of the eye. Time will be spent in an outpatient office/clinic setting and in the operating room observing anterior and posterior segment surgeries. By the end of the rotation, the student will be able to diagnose and manage patients with ocular problems commonly found in the emergency room, outpatient and inpatient setting.

SUR 475. Orthopedic Surgery. 1-8 credits.

The goal of this selective is to expose the senior medical student to the full range of clinical and teaching activities associated with an orthopaedic service, providing opportunity for the student to develop a sound foundation in Orthopaedic patient management. This includes the emergent, operative, inpatient, and outpatient care of patients. On this service, the students participate in the full range of clinical and teaching activities. The students evaluate patients in outpatient clinics and participate in the outline of the treatment plan. Students assist at surgery to become familiar with orthopaedic procedures and master the anatomy of the extremities and axial skeleton. The students participate in the post-operative in-hospital management and post-hospital clinic follow-up by preparing progress notes and writing patient care orders. The students participate in all teaching and conference aspects of the service.

SUR 475A. Selective in Orthopedic Surgery. 2 credits.

The goal of this selective is to expose the senior medical student to the full range of clinical and teaching activities associated with an orthopaedic service, providing opportunity for the student to develop a sound foundation in Orthopaedic patient management. This includes the emergent, operative, inpatient, and outpatient care of patients. On this service, the students participate in the full range of clinical and teaching activities. The students evaluate patients in outpatient clinics and participate in the outline of the treatment plan. Students assist at surgery to become familiar with orthopaedic procedures and master the anatomy of the extremities and axial skeleton. The students participate in the post-operative in-hospital management and post-hospital clinic follow-up by preparing progress notes and writing patient care orders. The students participate in all teaching and conference aspects of the service.

SUR 476. Selective in Otolaryngology. 4 credits.

This rotation in Otolaryngology and Human Communication, offers an exposure to the medical and surgical evaluation and management of associated problems of this specialty. Patient population consists of both outpatients and inpatients focusing on the adult and pediatric populations. Time will be divided between clinical experience, operative experience, and formal didactic on the various aspects of ENT. The student will have the opportunity to observe audiological, vestibular and speech/language evaluations, integral parts of the total ENT diagnostic and treatment plan. It is anticipated the student will acquire adequate skill in the performance of a complete ENT examination and become familiar with the diagnosis and management of the major ENT disorders. Knowledge of surgical indications and complication will be required and the student will be responsible for patient management.

SUR 477. Selective in Pediatric Surgery. 4 credits.

This rotation will expose the student to common surgical diseases and congenital deformities in infants and children. The student will be required to perform selected histories and physicals on these patients and will second or first assist in surgery.

SUR 478. Elective in Pediatric Surgery. 4 credits.

In this away rotation, the student will be exposed to a wide variety of surgical diseases to include pediatric cardiology and trauma. The student will work closely with our Creighton surgical resident rotating at Children's Mercy Hospital in Kansas City, MO.

SUR 479. Selective in Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery. 1-4 credits.

The purpose of the course is to expose the medical student to the comprehensive care of plastic surgery patient in the outpatient and inpatient setting. This selective will introduce to the student the spectrum of modern plastic surgery encompassing the basic fundamentals of wound healing, evaluation and treatment of maxillofacial injuries, repair and reconstruction of head and neck tumors, repair of congenital facial deformities, review of surgical physiology in the treatment of burns, and exposure to the various cosmetic surgical procedures. Instruction will include observation, assistance and instruction on plastic surgical techniques. During this rotation students are expected to assist in surgery.

SUR 481. Selective in Orthopaedic Surgery. 4 credits.

On this service the students participate in the full range of clinical and teaching activities. The students evaluate patients in outpatient clinics and participate in the outline of the treatment plan. Students assist at surgery to become familiar with orthopaedic procedures and master the anatomy of the extremities. The students participate in the post-operative in-house management and post-hospital clinic follow-up by preparing progress notes and writing patient care orders. The students participate in all teaching and conference aspects of the service including discussions of a scientific basis of orthopaedic surgery. Finally, the students prepare a formal written presentation on a patient of their choice, citing current literature and having an evidence based explanation for their treatment plan during the rotation.

SUR 485. Surgical Intensive Care Unit. 1-4 credits.

The student is expected to participate in daily teaching rounds in the ICU. The student will function as a sub-intern and be expected to present assigned patients on rounds, attend all lectures and conferences and read required material. Students will also have the opportunity to do procedures under close supervision.

SUR 486. Burns. 4 credits.

This course includes participation in preoperative and postoperative care of the general surgical patient. Students are expected to round with attending physicians and make appropriate orders and notes on patient charts. Students will act as sub-intern and will observe surgical techniques and perform simple procedures. During the month, students will be expected to present a 30-minute topic of their choice in an area of general surgery or Burns to the attending physicians.

SUR 489. Selective in Pediatric Ophthalmology. 4 credits.

This ophthalmology elective serves as an introduction to the medical and surgical diseases of the eye. This course will give students the opportunity to become very familiar with Pediatric Ophthalmology and Adult Strabismus. Students will participate in primary eye care and assist with the responsibilities of care for patients. At the conclusion of this elective, students will be able to identify common causes of amblyopia, strabismus, chalazions, and blocked tear ducts.

SUR 490. Urology. 4 credits.

Students will rotate for four weeks at Urology Health Center and Fremont Area Medical Center. The student will function as a sub-intern in urology, performing admission histories and physical examinations, planning patient study programs, and joining with the urology staff for patient care in the cystoscopy and operating rooms. The student will assist in postoperative management of their patients. Students will function as a member of the urology team. This rotation provides students with an insight into general clinical urology. While on the urology service, the student will join faculty in the clinic practice, outpatient procedure and minor surgeries, as well as the hospital wards and the operating room.

SUR 491. Selective in Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery. 4 credits.

This rotation will introduce to the student the spectrum of modern plastic surgery. It will encompass the basic fundamentals of wound healing, evaluation and treatment of maxillofacial injuries, repair and reconstruction of head and neck tumors, repair of congenital facial deformities, review of surgical physiology in the treatment of burns, in addition to exposure to the various cosmetic surgical procedures. Instruction will include observation, assistance and instruction on plastic surgical techniques performed in Creighton University Medical Center. Didactic lectures will include a basic core of information supplemented by topics appropriate to the interests of the individual student.

SUR 492. General Surgery. 4 credits.

This service involves the participation in preoperative and postoperative care of the general surgical patient. Students will be expected to make rounds daily with attending staff and play an integral role in patient care decisions. The students should be prepared for cases on which they scrub by reading appropriate text prior to participating in the procedures.

SUR 494. Selective in Neurological Surgery Sub-Internship. 4 credits. In this selective, students will learn skills fundamental to entering into PGY1 of residency; performing neurological examinations, introduced to reading neuroimaging and will be exposed to a breadth of neurological diseases and treatments for conditions such as intracranial diseases (i.e., trauma, tumors, headaches), spinal and peripheral nerve disease, epilepsy, pain management and movement disorders. This selective exposes the senior medical student to a high volume, full spectrum clinical neurosurgery service. 182 beds of the hospital are dedicated to the treatment of neurological patients, including 11 state-of-theart neurosurgical operating theaters and 2 dedicated neurosurgery endovascular suites. Academic activities are an integral part of the program. Students are expected to actively participate in the care of patients, attend department conferences and will make one presentation during Clinical Conference. Students will also be assigned to the endovascular and pediatric neurosurgery services in addition to attending outpatient clinic.

SUR 495. Surgery Capstone. 4 credits.

This elective will provide the senior medical student an opportunity to gain an understanding of the responsibilities, skills, and learning expectations of a PGY-1 resident. It is directed toward students interested in general surgery or other surgical subspecialties. On completion of the rotation, students should feel confident using their new understanding and skills to creat a more seamless transition into residency. Coursework will consist of small group exercises and lectures, teaching rounds, independent study, skills lab practical experience, (cadaver dissection) and operating room exposure.

SUR 496. Surgery Capstone (PRC). 4 credits.

This elective will provide the senior medical student an opportunity to gain an understanding of the responsibilities, skills, and learning expectations of a PGY-1 resident. It is directed toward students interested in general surgery or other surgical subspecialties.

SUR 498. Surgery Extramural. 1-8 credits.

SUR 795. Directed Independent Study. 4 credits.

Academic Policies

Please review the MD Student Handbook (https://medschool.creighton.edu/about/medical-education/md-student-handbook) for a complete list of the Medical Education Program policies and procedures.

University Immunization Requirement

All Creighton University students are required to comply with the University's immunization requirements. Students receive approval for course registration upon the completion and verification of their immunization records as coordinated by the Student Health Education and Compliance Office. Failure to meet these requirements will result in denial of class registration privileges. The requirements follow CDC guidelines and are reviewed annually. Immunization requirements apply to all students. International students, health science students

and residential students (living in campus housing) have specific requirements. The Student Health Education and Compliance Office is the official record keeper for Creighton University regarding student immunizations and University immunization requirements. Please consult the Student Immunization Requirements website (https://studentlife.creighton.edu/wellness/health-and-counseling/student-health-education-and-compliance/immunization-requirements) for additional details.

Residential Students:Students must have immunization requirements completed and immunization records verified by Student Health Education and Compliance prior to registering for classes and prior to receiving a housing assignment. Students who are in process of completing immunization requirements (i.e., have started a series for the first time) may be granted class registration and/or housing assignment privileges at the discretion of Student Health Services.

Immunization Exemptions: Exemptions to the University immunization requirements are considered for students who have a documented medical contraindication to receiving immunizations. Religious exemptions are not accepted. Students may request an exemption form from Student Health Services. Completed exemption forms are reviewed by the Student Health Services Medical Director. Students are provided written notification of the acceptance or denial of the immunizations exemption request.

ALL STUDENTS attending classes on campus: Measles, Mumps, & Rubella (MMR)

- 2 doses MMR vaccine given after the 1st birthday <u>and at least</u> 30 days apart are required of all students born in 1957 or later OR
- · Positive titers showing immunity for Measles, Mumps and Rubella.
- · History of disease does NOT meet the requirement

RESIDENTIAL STUDENTS (living on campus):

- · Measles, Mumps, & Rubella (MMR) (See Above under ALL STUDENTS)
- Meningitis Vaccine 1 dose Meningitis vaccine given after 16 years of age. Applies to ages 21 and under
- Tdap Vaccine 1 dose Tdap vaccine (Tetanus, Diphtheria, Pertussis)
- Varicella (Chicken Pox) Two (2) doses of Varicella vaccine OR Verification of chickenpox disease

INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS:

Must meet requirements for ALL STUDENTS (see above).

If living on campus, must also meet requirements for ALL STUDENTS LIVING ON CAMPUS.

Tuberculosis Screening

QuantiFERON or T-SPOT (IGRA testing) within the previous 12 months; Chest x-ray completed within the previous 12 months for students with a history of a positive PPD skin test or IGRA blood test (QuantiFERON Gold or T-Spot) who have not completed tuberculosis treatment

ALL Health Science Students (Dentistry, EMS, Medicine, Nursing, Occupational Therapy, Pharmacy, Physical Therapy, Physician Assistant):

Measles, Mumps, & Rubella (MMR)

2 doses MMR vaccine given after the 1 $^{\rm st}$ birthday $\underline{\rm and}$ at least 30 days apart ${\bf OR}$

Positive blood tests showing immunity for Measles, Mumps and Rubella; History of illness does NOT meet the requirement

One (1) does of adult Tdap; If last Tdap is more than 10 years old, provide date of last Td and Tdap

Hepatitis B

3 dose series AND a positive blood test showing immunity (Hepatitis B surface antibody test). A positive blood test alone meets the requirement. If lab titer is negative, additional doses of vaccine and repeat titer will be necessary.

Varicella (Chicken Pox)

Two (2) doses Varicella vaccine **OR** positive blood test showing immunity; History of illness does NOT meet requirement for Health Science Students

Tuberculosis Screening

- Initial two (2)-step screening 2 separate PPD skin tests given and read at least 1 week apart OR 2 tests in a 12 month period.
- · Annual PPD screening after two-step requirement is met
- QuantiFERON or T-SPOT is also acceptable
- Students with a positive skin test and subsequent positive IGRA testing: Chest x-ray done in the past 12 months
- · Annual Provider Review

Annual Influenza Vaccine

Due before December 1st each year.

Meningitis Vaccine (IF LIVING ON CAMPUS)

1 dose Meningitis vaccine given after 16 years of age. Applies to ages 21 and under.

Additional vaccine information can be found at www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/vis (https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/vis)

Dual Degree Programs

Dual Degree Programs

The School of Medicine offers dual degree programs for students earning a Doctor of Medicine (MD) degree along with a:

- PhD (p. 55)
- MBA (p. 56)

For additional information please review the Dual-Degree Programs Policy within the MD Student Handbook (https://medschool.creighton.edu/about/medical-education/md-student-handbook).

MD/PhD Dual Degree Program MD/PhD

The MD/PhD program's objective is to train physician-scientists to be an integral component of the healthcare system, now and into the future. Training such individuals is as unique as the expectations for successful trainees:

- · Provide excellent patient care.
- Lead discovery in disease focused biomedical research.

- Promote translational research with accelerated progression of discoveries to the bed-side.
- · Be a leader in biomedical research and healthcare delivery.

Please review the following sources for a complete explanation of the MD/PhD program, curriculum, and application process.

- MD/PhD Overview (https://medschool.creighton.edu/futurestudents/dual-degree-programs/md-phd-programs)
- MD/PhD Application (https://medschool.creighton.edu/futurestudents/md-program/application-process)

MD/MBA Dual Degree Program MD/MBA

Students have the opportunity to obtain a Doctor of Medicine (MD) and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) through a coordinated dual degree program offered by the School of Medicine and the Heider College of Business. This dual degree program pairs the traditional medical curriculum with a MBA degree. The MBA degree is largely completed during a sabbatical year from medical school. Students in the program complete the MBA curriculum as full-time students between the M2 and M3 years of medical school. This degree program provides students with additional career opportunities as administrators and executives in health-care related fields. It will also help MDs in large and small practices perform business-related functions more effectively and with a deeper level of understanding.

For additional information please review the Dual-Degree Programs Policy within the MD Student Handbook (https://medschool.creighton.edu/about/medical-education/md-student-handbook).

Post-Baccalaureate Program (PBP)

Program Director: Sade Kosoko-Lasaki, MD, MSPH, MBA Program Office: Hixson-Lied Science Building G13

Program and Objectives Certificate Program

Pre-Medical Post-baccalaureate Pre-Professional Studies

Creighton University's Post-baccalaureate Program is designed to aid disadvantaged students in their preparation and admission to medical school. The Program is comprised of three parts. The first is an 8-week Summer Diagnostic Session in which students are involved in academic pretesting and curricular review sessions. Next, in the Academic Year Program, students participate in intensive coursework in the sciences, mathematics, and English. Finally in the Pre-matriculation Summer Session, students attend medical school preview courses. Throughout the program, students are provided academic and psychosocial support, clinical experiences, and mentoring in order to assure successful completion of the program and admittance to the Creighton University School of Medicine or another medical school or health sciences program.

Prerequisites for Admission

Prior to admission to the post-baccalaureate program, each applicant must have fulfilled all pre-medical science requirements and have completed an undergraduate degree or higher from a regionally accredited United States college or university. Applicants must have earned a baccalaureate degree and must not have been previously accepted to a medical school. However, applicants must have been previously denied admission to medical school. An eligible applicant must be a U. S. citizen, non-citizen national, or foreign national who possesses a visa permitting permanent residence in the United States.

Goal

Code

The goal of the Post-baccalaureate program is to strengthen the academic and test-taking skills of disadvantaged students in order to enhance their competitiveness for application to medical school.

Credits

Required Courses (55 Credits)

Code	Title	Credits		
Diagnostic Summ	ner Session			
PBP 400	Pre-Medical Biology Preview	1		
PBP 401	Pre-Medical Chemistry Preview	1		
PBP 402	Pre-Medical Analytical Reading Preview	1		
PBP 403	Pre-Medical Writing Preview	1		
PBP 404	Pre-Medical Mathematics Preview	1		
PBP 405	Pre-Medical Physics Preview	1		
PBP 420	Pre-Medical Academic Excellence	1		
PBP 418	Pre-Medical Integrated Cultural Awareness	1.5,2		
PBP 426	Pre-Medical Behavioral Science-Introduction to Psychology	1,1.5		
PBP 427	Pre-Medical Cultural Connections	1		
PBP 430	Pre-Medical Behavioral Science-Introduction to Sociology	1,1.5		
Fall Academic Se	ssion			
PBP 406	Pre-Medical Biology Review	3		
PBP 407	Pre-Medical Chemistry Review	3		
PBP 408	Pre-Medical Analytic Reading Review Part A	1		
PBP 424	Pre-Medical Analytic Reading Review Part B	1,2		
PBP 409	Pre-Medical Writing Review	1		
PBP 410	Pre-Medical Mathematics Review	3		
PBP 411	Pre-Medical Physics Review	3		
PBP 428	Pre-Medical Cultural Analytical Literature	2		
PBP 421	Pre-Medical Academic Excellence	1-2		
PBP 430	Pre-Medical Behavioral Science-Introduction to Sociology	1,1.5		
Spring Academic	Session			
PBP 412	Pre-Medical Biology	3		
PBP 413	Pre-Medical Chemistry	4		
PBP 434	Pre-Medical Analytical Reading	1		
PBP 415	Pre-Medical Writing	1		
PBP 416	Pre-Medical Mathematics	3		
PBP 417	Pre-Medical Physics	3		
PBP 422	Pre-Medical Academic Excellence	1-2		
PBP 538	Pre-Pharmacy Biology	1		
PBP 446	Pre-Medical Behavioral Science II	1.5		
PBP 424	Pre-Medical Analytic Reading Review Part B	1,2		
PBP 430	Pre-Medical Behavioral Science-Introduction to Sociology	1,1.5		
Prematriculation Session				
PBP 501	Pre-Medical Molecular and Cell Biology	2		

PBP 502	Pre-Medical Anatomy	2
PBP 503	Pre-Medical Principles of Microbiology	1
PBP 504	Pre-Medical Host Defense	1
PBP 505	Pre-Medical Pharmacology	1
PBP 506	Pre-Medical Neurosciences	1
PBP 419	Pre-Medical Academic Excellence	1

INDEX

A
Academic Calendar16
Academic Policies54
Accreditations and Approvals5
Admission14
American Jesuit Colleges and Universities8
Application Process
C
Campus Facilities6
Creighton Colleges and Schools2
D
Degree Policies8
Diversity and Inclusion Policy7
Dual Degree Programs55
E
Email as Official Means of Communication8
G
Graduation Rates
1
Immunization Requirement54
J
Joint and Dual Degree Definitions8
M
MD/MBA
MD/PhD
Medicine
Mission, Learning Outcomes, and Goals and Objectives4
N
Nondiscrimination Statement
P
PostBaccalaureate Program (PBP)56
R
Recognition of Scholarship and Leadership6
Requirements for Admission15
S
School of Medicine
Services for Students with Disabilities7

T

The Alumni Association	7
The Jesuit Order	8
The M.D. Curriculum	17
U	
University Administration	10
University General Information	2
University Libraries	6